
City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
April 11, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 

Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, the City Council is conducting its public 
meeting in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Members of the public may view and 
provide public comment during the meeting in person at City Hall, via the online 
platform zoom (link below), or via telephone (number below). The public may also view 
the meeting live on the City’s YouTube channel. 

Remote access: 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/J/83764307482 

Zoom Webinar ID: 837 6430 7482 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

Guiding Principles 
• Are we raising the bar?
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past?
• Are we building connections with outside partners?
• Is the decision-making process positively impacting diversity, equity, and

inclusion?

1. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. Please keep your comments respectful and no personal attacks. This is a 
comment period and not a question-and-answer session. When recognized by the Mayor, please 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 
from your keypad to raise your hand. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Port Orchard Municipal Code

Chapter 10.12 Related to Parking, Stopping, or Standing in Certain Areas
of the City (Lang) Page 4

D. Adoption of an Ordinance Authorizing Acceptance of an Increased
Award of a FY2021-23 Stormwater Capacity Grant from the Department
of Ecology (Lang) Page 51

E. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Fifteen Mobile
Radar Systems via DES Master Contract No. 00218 (M. Brown) Page 80

Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 

Councilmembers: 
Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair   
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Transportation Committee 
KRCC-alt 

 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Lodging Tax, Chair  

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 

Jay Rosapepe  
Finance Committee,  
Land Use Committee 
KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-
alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,  

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

Tony Lang 
Public Works Director 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 

https://us02web.zoom.us/J/83764307482


Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 
The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 

Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 
April 11, 2023, Meeting Agenda      Page 2 of 3 

F. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 074-21 with CodePros, LLC for Plan Review and Building
Inspection Services (Bond) Page 86

G. Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property as Surplus and Authorizing its Disposition
Thereof (Wallace) Page 104

5. PRESENTATION

6. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Vacating City Right-of-Way, an Alley Commonly Known as Mystery Lane and the Westerly Portion of

Harrison Avenue (Wallace) Page 111

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.

8. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way, an Alley Commonly

Known as Mystery Lane and the Western Portion of Harrison Avenue (Wallace) Page 151
B. Approval of a Contract with 4Leaf Inc. for Building/Fire Code Plan Review and Building/Fire Code

Inspection Services (Bond) Page 194
C. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Payment of Additional Relocation Benefits to Ocean and

Arlene Williams (Prior Owners of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4027-023-017-0004) for the Bay Street
Pedestrian Pathway Project (Archer) Page 213

D. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Vista Motel for Emergency Shelter Services
(Archer) Page 238

E. Approval of Road Closures for a Special Event: The Cruz by the Bay (Wallace) Page 246
F. Approval of Road Closures for a Special Event: Cruisin’ Sunday (Wallace) Page 268
G. Approval of the March 14, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes Page 306
H. Approval of the March 21, 2023, City Council Work Study Session Meeting Minutes Page 310
I. Approval of the March 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes Page 313

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)

10. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES

11. REPORT OF MAYOR

12. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS

13. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state 
your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to raise your hand.) 

14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER

15. ADJOURNMENT

COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

April 11, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

Economic Development and Tourism  April 17, 2023: 9:30am Remote Access 

Utilities  June 13, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Finance April 18, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation April 25, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Festival of Chimes & Lights April 17, 2023; 3:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  May 10, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  TBD, 2023 Remote Access 

Sewer Advisory  June 21, 2023; 6:30pm City Hall 

Council Retreat April 14, 2023; 9AM Council Chambers 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 10.12  Public Works Director 
 Related to Parking, Stopping or Standing    Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 in Certain Areas of the City Atty Review Date: April 6, 2023 

 
Summary:  The City has codified regulations for parking at Port Orchard Municipal Code (POMC) Chapter 
10.12.  As a continued housekeeping measure, working in conjunction with the City’s Parking Enforcement 
staff, the City’s Public Works Department inventories existing parking signage on a continual basis and has 
compiled corrections, revisions, and modifications to current POMC Chapter 10.12 at Sections 10.12.460, 
10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, and 10.12.520 to reflect existing needs and conditions for parking within 
the City and to make grammatical and typographical corrections to these sections.  By this Ordinance, the 
Council would adopt the recommended amendments (see attached redline of the Ordinance to assist with 
review.)   
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends adoption of an Ordinance, amending POMC Chapter 10.12 Sections 
10.12.460, 10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, and 10.12.520 regarding Parking, Stopping or Standing in Certain 
Areas of the City. 
 

Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt an Ordinance, amending Sections of POMC Sections Chapter 
10.12, regarding Parking, Stopping or Standing in the City.  
 

Fiscal Impact:  None 
 

Alternatives:  Do not approve and provide further direction to staff 
 

Attachments:       Ordinance Amending POMC 10.12.460, 10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, 10.12.520 
(Clean, for adoption)  
Municipal Code Modifications: POMC 10.12.460, 10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, 
10.12.520 (Redline to assist with review) 

  
 
 

Page 4 of 318



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
        

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO 
PARKING, STANDING, AND STOPPING; AMENDING SECTIONS 10.12.460, 
10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, AND 10.12.520 OF THE PORT ORCHARD 
MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, WAC 308-330-270 authorizes the City to adopt regulations to prohibit, 
regulate or limit stopping, standing or parking of vehicles in areas of the City; and  

 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with that authority, the City’s regulations for this topic are 
codified at Port Orchard Municipal Code (POMC) Chapter 10.12, and POMC Section 
10.12.050(1) authorizes the City Council to from time to time, establish parking prohibitions 
and restrictions on portions of certain specified streets, with those prohibitions and restrictions 
codified at POMC 10.12.460 through 10.12.530; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Port Orchard to 
periodically review and update such regulations; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council chooses to codify any updates to the parking regulations in 
order to aid the public in its ability to access and review said regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, staff audited the existing regulations and identified necessary, specific 
revisions to POMC Section 10.12.460, Parking prohibited at all times, Section 10.12.490, Parking 
time limited on certain streets, Section 10.12.500, Parking time limited on certain city parking 
lots, and Section 10.12.510, Parking passes, Section 10.12.520, Parking passes- Rules; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed amendments and believes it to 
be in the best interests of the City to enact the proposed amendments; now, therefore 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Section 10.12.460 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

 
10.12.460 Parking prohibited at all times. 
(1) When signs or markings are installed giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at 
any time upon any of the streets or parts of streets described as follows: 

1. Advantage 
Avenue: 

on the west side of the 
north 350 feet of roadway 
and on the left-hand side, 

Page 5 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 2 of 24 

 
as the traffic flows, of the 
remainder of the street. 

2. Amherst Way 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

3. Andasio Loop 
SE: 

on the outside curb along 
the entire loop. 

4. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

along the west side of 
Arnold Avenue E, from 
the Lawrence Street 
intersection, to the 
northeast towards Bay 
Street, 100 feet. 

5. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

along the east side of 
Arnold Avenue E, from 
the Bay Street 
intersection, to the south 
66 feet. 

6. Bay Street: at the intersection with 
Wharf Street (Mitchell 
Point), along the outside 
radius of the existing road 
as delineated by the 
established guardrail. 

7. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Tracy Avenue, westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 

8. Bay Street: on the north side, from 
the DeKalb Street 
pedestrian pier westerly 
for 70 feet and in front of 
501 Bay Street. 

9. Bay Street: at the southwest corner 
of the intersection with 
Arnold Avenue E, from 
the point of curvature to 
the point of tangency of 
the curve radius. 

10. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Dekalb Street, 130 feet to 
the east. 

Page 6 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 3 of 24 

 
11. Becky 
Avenue: 

on both sides of street, 
from Dallas Street south 
to dead end. 

12. Bethel 
Avenue: 

on the west side from the 
driveway at 1130 Bethel 
Avenue, 245 feet north. 

13. Bittern Lane: on both sides of the street 
from McCormick Village 
Drive to Wandering Way. 

14. Bristol Lane 
SE: 

on the east side of the 
street. 

15. Castleton 
Road SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

16. Cedar 
Canyon: 

on both sides of the street 
within 100 feet of the 
Tremont Street right-of-
way. 

17. Chanting 
Circle SW: 

on both sides of street, 
from Old Clifton Road 260 
feet. Then on the east 
side to Chanting Circle. 
Then along the inside 
curb of the remaining part 
of Chanting Circle. 

18. Chatterton 
Avenue SW: 

on the west side of street. 

19. Chowchilla 
Way: 

on the south side of 
street. 

20. SW Colbert 
Way: 

on left-hand side of street 
as the traffic flows, from 
Pickford Place SW to 
Chatterton Avenue SW. 

21. Currant Lane 
SW: 

on the west side of the 
street. 

22. Dallas Street: on the right-hand side, as 
the traffic flows. 

23. DeKalb 
Street: 

on south side from Cline 
Avenue easterly to dead 
end. 

Page 7 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 4 of 24 

 
24. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 100 feet. 

25. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Tracy Avenue easterly to 
the end of DeKalb Street. 

26. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Mitchell Avenue to the 
east side of Tracy Avenue. 

27. Donna 
Street: 

on the south side of 
street. 

28. Donnegal 
Circle SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

29. Egret Street: on the south side of the 
street. 

30. Explorer Ave: on the inside radius of the 
street. 

31. Fantail Place: on the east side of the 
street. 

32. Farragut 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Morton 
Street; except, on the east 
side, 160 feet north of 
DeKalb Street. 

33. SW Fielder 
Place: 

on the west side including 
the cul-de-sac. 

34. Fiscal Street: on the south side of the 
street. 

35. Forest Park 
Street: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

36. Glenmore 
Loop: 

on the inside radius of the 
entire loop. 

37. Glenwood 
Road SW: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Road 350 feet 
west. 

38. Grebe Way: on the north side, from 
Siskin Circle to Swift 
Avenue. 

Page 8 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 5 of 24 

 
39. Guy Wetzel 
Street: 

on both sides from Bay 
Street to Perry Avenue. 

40. Hales Court 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

41. Hibiscus 
Circle SW: 

on the outside radius of 
the entire circle. 

42. Huntington 
Street: 

on both sides from Olney 
Avenue to Glenmore Loop 
and the north side from 
Glenmore Loop to west 
end terminus. 

43. Jabirin Way: on the north side of 
street. 

44. Keppel Loop 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

45. Koda Circle: along fire lanes where 
marked/posted. 

46. Ladd Court 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

47. Landis Court 
SW: 

on the northeast side. 

48. Lazuli Street: on the south side, from 
Wigeon Avenue to Siskin 
Circle. 

49. Limerick 
Drive SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

50. Lippert 
Drive: 

on both sides, from 
Pottery Avenue to 
Advantage Street. 

51. Lloyd 
Parkway: 

on both sides from SW 
Old Clifton Road to 
Lumsden Road. 

52. Lone Bear 
Drive: 

on both sides from Feigley 
Road to 100 feet west of 
Chatterton Avenue SW. 

53. Longview 
Avenue: 

on east side of street. 

54. Lowren on the right-hand side, as 

Page 9 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 6 of 24 

 
Street: the traffic flows on the 

one-way portion of the 
street. 

55. Lumsden 
Road: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

56. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Bay 
Street to Kitsap Street. 

57. Murrelet 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Old 
Clifton Road to Siskin 
Circle. 

58. SE 
Nordmann Loop: 

on the outside curb of the 
entire loop. 

59. SW Old 
Clifton Road: 

on both sides from 
Chanting Circle SW to 
Campus Parkway. 

60. Olivine Drive 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

61. SW 
Pendleton Way: 

on the south side of the 
street.  

62. Pickford 
Place SW: 

on the left-hand side as 
the traffic flows on the 
street, from SW Colbert 
Way to end of cul-de-sac. 

63. Plisko 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue to Mile 
Hill Drive. 

64. Pottery 
Avenue: 

on both sides of the 
street, within 100 feet of 
the Tremont Street right-
of-way. 

65. Prospect 
Street: 

on the inside radius of the 
curve between Robert 
Geiger Street and 
Frederick Avenue. 

66. Retsil Road: on the west side, from the 
north corporate limits to 
the south property line of 
982 Retsil Road. 

67. Robert other than official city 

Page 10 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 7 of 24 

 
Geiger Street: vehicles, parking is 

prohibited at all times 
along the south side, from 
Bay Street to Prospect 
Street. 

68. Rockwell 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Bay 
Street to Kitsap Street. 

69. Ross Street: on the south side of the 
400 block. 

70. Sage Court: on both sides of street. 

71. Sage Street: on both sides from 
Pottery Avenue east for a 
distance of 70 feet and on 
the left-hand side, as the 
traffic flows, on the 
remainder of the street. 

72. Seattle 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from Bay 
Street southerly for a 
distance of 82 feet. 

73. SW Sedge St: On the north side of the 
street including the cul-
de-sac. 

74. Sherman 
Avenue: 

on the east side of the 
1200-1300 block from the 
dead end 980 feet north. 

75. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on the west side from Bay 
Street to Prospect Street. 

76. Siskin Circle: on the inside curb of 
Siskin Circle throughout 
the circle. 

77. Snowridge 
Avenue: 

on the left-hand side, as 
the traffic flows on the 
street. 

78. Sprague 
Street: 

on the right-hand side, as 
the traffic flows on the 
one-way portion of the 
street. 

79. Sroufe 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue to 

Page 11 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 8 of 24 

 
Portland Avenue. 

80. SW Stanwick 
Way: 

on the right-hand side of 
street as the traffic flows, 
from Lone Bear Drive to 
Pickford Place SW. 

81. Strathmore 
Circle SW: 

on outside of circle 
traveling either direction. 

82. Sweany 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Cline Avenue westerly for 
a distance of 340 feet. 

83. Sweany 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 

84. Swift 
Avenue: 

on west side, from Siskin 
Circle to Lazuli Street. 

85. Tremont 
Place: 

on both sides of street 
from 233 Tremont Place 
driveway to end of road 
guardrail. 

86. Tremont 
Street: 

on both sides of the 
street, within 100 feet of 
Pottery Avenue right-of-
way. 

87. Vardon Circle 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

88. Viridian 
Avenue SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

89. Wandering 
Way: 

on the outside radius of 
the street. 

90. Warbler 
Way: 

on both sides of street 
from Old Clifton Road to 
Siskin Circle. 

91. Warbler 
Way: 

from Siskin Circle to curve 
(park) on south side and 
on east side from curve 
(park) to Grebe Way. 

92. Waverly Rd 
SW: 

on the west side of the 
street. 

Page 12 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 9 of 24 

 
93. Wilkins 
Drive: 

on both sides, from the 
west terminus, eastward 
350 feet. 

 
(2) Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 049-22 § 2; Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

 
 SECTION 2.  Section 10.12.490 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
10.12.490 Parking time limited on certain streets. 
(1) When signs are erected by the city engineer in each block giving notice thereof, no person 
shall park a vehicle for longer than the time specified in this section, on the days specified in 
this section, upon any of the streets described as follows except vehicles complying with the 
residential parking permit program: 

1. Ada Street: on both sides of Ada 
Street, from Sidney 
Avenue to Harrison 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

2. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

on the west side of Arnold 
Avenue E, south of Bay 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

3. Austin 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Division Street to Dwight 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

4. Bay Street: on both sides, from 

Page 13 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 10 of 24 

 
Orchard Avenue to 
Harrison Avenue. There 
will be two-hour parking 
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m., on any day except 
Saturday, Sunday, and 
federal holidays. Vehicles 
with residential parking 
permits are not exempt 
from the parking 
restrictions specified 
within this subsection. 

5. Bay Street: on the north side from 
the DeKalb Street 
pedestrian pier easterly 
for 110 feet. There will be 
15-minute loading and 
unloading only. 

6. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Port Orchard Boulevard to 
DeKalb Street and 130 
feet east of DeKalb Street 
to Kitsap Street there will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday and federal 
holidays. 

7. Bay Street: on west side of the 1500 
and 1600 block. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

8. Bay Street: on the north side at Ross 
Point (SR 166). There will 
be four-hour parking. 

9. Bay Street: on the south side of Bay 
Street, west of Arnold 
Avenue E. There will be 

Page 14 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 11 of 24 

 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day, except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

10. Bravo 
Terrace: 

on the east side from the 
Bravo Terrace 
intersection south to end 
of cul-de-sac. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

11. Cline 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to Dwight Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

12. Cline 
Avenue: 

from the northeast corner 
of Kitsap Street and Cline 
Avenue northerly along 
the east line of Cline 
Avenue to Bay Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

13. Cline 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Taylor 
Street to Division Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

14. DeKalb 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Seattle Avenue to Sidney 
Avenue. There will be 

Page 15 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 12 of 24 

 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays; except for a 
space on the south side of 
DeKalb Street beginning 
105 feet east of Harrison 
Avenue and continuing 
easterly for 175 feet. The 
175 feet as described 
shall be designated all day 
parking. 

15. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 120 feet. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

16. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Tracy Avenue easterly to 
the end of DeKalb Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

17. DeKalb 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 340 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

18. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Mitchell Avenue to Tracy 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 

Page 16 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 13 of 24 

 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

19. Division 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Seattle 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

20. Division 
Street: 

on both sides, from Cline 
Avenue to Sidney Avenue. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

21. Division 
Street: 

on both sides from Cline 
Avenue westerly to dead 
end. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday and federal 
holidays. 

22. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Seattle 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

23. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 250 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 

Page 17 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 14 of 24 

 
and federal holidays. 

24. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from Austin 
Avenue to Cline Avenue. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

25. Farragut 
Avenue: 

on the east side, 160 feet 
north of DeKalb Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

26. Frederick 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
waterfront parking lot to 
Prospect Street. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

27. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from Bay 
St northerly for a distance 
of 80 feet.  There will be 
one-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

27. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Dwight 
Street. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

28. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Dwight Street to Division 

Page 18 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 15 of 24 

 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

29. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides from Ada 
Street to dead end. There 
will be two-hour parking 
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m., on any day except 
Saturday, Sunday, and 
federal holidays. 

30. Kitsap Street: on both sides, from Cline 
Avenue to Rockwell 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

31. Kitsap Street: on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 150 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

32. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from 
DeKalb Street northerly 
for a distance of 70 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

33. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the west side, from 
Kitsap Street to Taylor 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 

Page 19 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 16 of 24 

 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

34. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from 
DeKalb Street southerly to 
the bus loading access 
road, shall be designated 
all day parking except for 
the revetment area which 
is two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

35. Morton 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Rockwell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 230 feet 
on both sides. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

36. Morton 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Rockwell Avenue easterly 
for a distance of 230 feet 
on both sides. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

37. Prospect 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Robert 
Geiger Street. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
(except where posted as 
one-hour parking for the 
City Permit Center located 
at 720 Prospect Street; 

Page 20 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 17 of 24 

 
holders of residential 
parking permits are not 
exempt from this 
restriction), on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays, and 
the inside radius of the 
curve between Robert 
Geiger Street and 
Frederick Avenue. 

38. Prospect 
Street: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to Robert Geiger 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays, except where 
30-minute zone is 
delineated. 

39. Prospect 
Street: 

along the green curb, in 
front of City Hall at 216 
Prospect Street. There is 
30-minute parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

40. Robert 
Geiger Street: 

on the north side, from 
Prospect Street to Bay 
Street. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

41. Seattle 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to Dwight Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 

Page 21 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 18 of 24 

 
and federal holidays. 

42. Seattle 
Avenue: 

on both sides from 
Dwight Street to Division 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

43. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides from Bay 
Street to the waterfront. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

44. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on the east side from Bay 
Street to Prospect Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

45. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Prospect to Kitsap Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

46. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to DeKalb Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

47. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Ada 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 

Page 22 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 19 of 24 

 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

48. Sweany 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Cline Avenue westerly for 
a distance of 300 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

49. Sweany 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

50. Tracy 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Guy 
Wetzel Street. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

51. Tracy 
Avenue: 

abutting 219 Tracy 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

52. Water 
Street: 

from Bay Street to 
waterfront on the west 
side. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 

Page 23 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 20 of 24 

 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

53. SW Yarrow 
St: 

on the south side, from 
Explorer Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 360 feet 
and easterly for a distance 
of 390 feet. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays.  

 
 SECTION 3.  Section 10.12.500 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
10.12.500 Parking time limited on certain city parking lots. 
(1) The city parking lots are identified as follows: 

(a) Lot 1, which lies between Orchard and Frederick Streets, on the north of Bay Street. 
Parking in Lot 1 is a combination of city parking and Port Orchard Marina parking. Port 
Orchard Marina parking is the three northernmost rows and shall be managed by the Port 
of Bremerton. City parking is limited to four hours maximum and/or monthly merchant 
parking. 

(b) Lot 2, which lies between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay Street. 
Parking in Lot 2 shall be allowed for a maximum period of four hours, including two car 
charging stalls limited to four hours maximum, and one motorcycle stall. 

(c) Lot 3, which is the five rows of parking area under city jurisdiction west of Harrison 
Avenue and east of and parallel to the library’s easternmost exterior wall. Parking in the 
three westerly rows of Lot 3 shall be allowed for a maximum period of four hours at no 
monetary charge. Parking in the easterly two rows is paid parking and shall require a paid 
daily parking pass as established in POMC 10.12.520. 

(d) Lot 4, which is all parking area under city jurisdiction which lies east of Parking Lot 3 and 
Harrison Avenue and west of the Marina Park. Parking in Lot 4 is a combination of free two-
hour parking for the park at the most northerly and easterly corner and paid parking and 
shall require a paid daily parking pass as established in POMC 10.12.520.  Parking is 
prohibited at all times on Saturdays from 5 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., from April 1st through 
October 31st.   

(e) Lot 5, which is all parking spaces on City Hall property (first floor entry). Parking in Lot 5 
shall be for City Hall ADA parking patrons and official vehicles only. The police chief or 

Page 24 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 21 of 24 

 
his/her designate may authorize deviations to this policy for Lot 5, if necessary. No 
monetary charge. 

(f) Lot 6, which is all parking spaces abutting the landscaped area at the southwest corner 
of the intersection of Bay Street and DeKalb Street (Bayside Plaza). Parking in Lot 6 shall be 
allowed for a maximum period of two hours. No monetary charge. 

(g) Lot 7, which is all parking spaces located on the library property. Parking in Lot 7 shall be 
limited to library staff only. Access to Lot 7 and parallel parking stalls via the adjacent parcel 
to the south pursuant to easement AF# (8903310122). No monetary charge. 

(h) Lot 8, which lies east of City Hall, north of and adjacent to Prospect Alley (between 
Kitsap Street and Prospect Street). Lot 8 is for designated city vehicles and city employees 
via pass Monday through Friday. No monetary charge. 

(i) Lot 9, 720 Prospect Street, which lies east of Lot 8, north of and adjacent to Prospect 
Alley (between Kitsap Street and Prospect Street). Lot 9 is for designated vehicles and city 
employees via pass Monday through Friday. No monetary charge.  

(j) Lot 10, which lies on the east side of McCormick Village Drive between SW Old Clifton 
Road and SW Yarrow Street. Parking in Lot 10 shall be allowed for a maximum period of 
four hours, enforced on a 24-hour basis. 

(k) Paul Powers Park, which lies north and east of the public works department “south 
shed” located at 2051 Sidney Avenue. Paul Powers Park parking is limited to dawn-to-dusk 
parking only. 

(l) Van Zee Park, which lies south of Tremont Street and west of Sidney Avenue, located at 
300 Tremont Street. Van Zee Park parking is limited to dawn-to-dusk parking only. 

(m) Rockwell Pocket Park will be limited to two-hour parking from dawn to dusk. 

(2) Parking restrictions in Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 shall be enforced on a 24-hour basis, 
except Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays within the city. 

(3) Parking restrictions in Lot 4 shall also be enforced on a 24-hour basis on each Saturday in the 
period of April 1st to October 31st. 

(4) Currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar 
instrument provided near the parking space for each 12-hour interval or part thereof. 

(5) Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 049-22 § 4; Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

 
 SECTION 4.  Section 10.12.510 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 

Page 25 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 22 of 24 

 
10.12.510 Parking passes. 
Parking passes are established for city parking lots defined in POMC 10.12.500 and are subject 
to sales and use tax defined in RCW 82.14.020(3). 

(1) Hourly Public Parking Pass. An hourly public parking pass is available to the general public 
and will require the payment as designated in subsection (1)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space for each one-hour interval. 

(a) Hourly public parking pass rates are as follows: $1.00. 

(2) Daily Public Parking Pass. A daily public parking pass is available to the general public and 
will require the payment as designated in subsection (2)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space for each 12-hour interval or part thereof. 

(a) Daily public parking pass rates are as follows: $8.00. 

(3) Weekly Public Parking Pass. A weekly public parking pass is available to the general public 
and will require the payment as designated in subsection (3)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space. The weekly pass will be good for five consecutive business 
calendar days from the date of purchase. Weekly parking passes are nonrefundable and not 
valid Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays; and will not be prorated. 

(a) Weekly public parking pass rates are as follows: $38.00. 

(4) Monthly Downtown Merchant Parking Pass. A downtown merchant parking pass is available 
to documented business owners, and their documented employees, whose business and place 
of employment is located in the downtown Port Orchard area between and including the 500 
and 1300 blocks of Bay Street and the north and west side of Prospect Street. Downtown 
merchant parking passes will require the payment as designated in subsection (4)(a) of this 
section in United States currency and may be purchased from the city finance department. 
Downtown merchant parking passes are nonrefundable. 

(a) Monthly downtown merchant parking pass rates are as follows: $35.00. 

(5) Monthly Commuter Vanpool or Carpool Parking Pass (Three or More Persons per Vehicle, 
Registered with Kitsap Transit). A commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass is available to 
registered vanpools and carpools and will require the payment as designated in subsection 
(5)(a) of this section in United States currency. Commuter vanpool or carpool parking passes 
may be purchased from the city finance department. Commuter vanpool or carpool parking 
passes are nonrefundable; guarantee designated parking spaces between the hours of 4:00 
a.m. and 10:00 a.m. except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays; and will not be prorated. 
Does not apply to city employee Lot 8 carpool designated stalls. 

(a) Monthly commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass rates are as follows: $35.00. 

Page 26 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 23 of 24 

 
(6) Daily Contractor’s Parking Pass. A contractor’s parking pass shall be $8.00 per day per 
parking space per 24-hour period. The purpose of this pass is to accommodate a temporary 
need of parking, as determined by the city engineer.  

(7) City Employee Parking Pass. Each employee may receive one (1) employee parking pass at 
no cost to the employee upon request to the Finance Department.  The pass must be 
relinquished to the City on the employee’s last day of employment or at any time upon request 
by the City.   

 
 SECTION 5.  Section 10.12.520 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
10.12.520 Parking passes – Rules. 
The following rules apply to the use of city parking passes as defined in POMC 10.12.510 as 
follows: 

(1) Applicable Parking Lots. The city-issued parking passes, except for the contractor’s parking 
pass, are applicable only to Lot 1 and Lot 4. The city-issued parking passes, to include the 
contractor’s parking pass, do not provide parking privileges in city-owned Lots 2, 3, 5, 6, or 7. 
Available parking areas for contractor’s parking passes will be specified when the parking pass 
is issued. This subsection does not apply to city employee Lot 8. 

(2) Stalls Reserved 4:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. Designated parking stalls in Lot 1 and Lot 4 will be 
marked to allow parking only by monthly public parking pass, downtown merchant parking 
pass, and commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass holders between the hours of 4:00 a.m. 
and 10:00 a.m. except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. 

(3) Posting of Passes. The city-issued parking passes for hourly and daily parking must be affixed 
on the inside of the vehicle’s driver’s door window (not the front windshield). Passes for 
monthly, merchant, carpool, city employee, and contractor’s passes must be affixed to the 
bottom portion of the hangtag provided and then hung from the rearview mirror located on the 
vehicle’s front windshield. If no rearview mirror exists, the hangtag shall be placed face up on 
the middle of the dash and made clearly visible from outside of the front of the vehicle. It is the 
responsibility of the pass holder to place the parking pass as described above. 

(4) Enforcement. The city-issued parking pass allows the specified vehicle to park in a city-
designated paid parking lot without making daily parking fee deposits. The parking pass does 
not allow the vehicle to park in excess of the posted hours or be exempt from any posted 
parking rules in any other location. Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 029-22 
§ 1 (Exh. A)). 

 
SECTION 6. Authorization to Post Signs.  The City Engineer is hereby directed to post 

the signs as required by this Ordinance and as a result of the amendment of POMC Sections 

Page 27 of 318



  Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 24 of 24 

 
10.12.460, 10.12.490, 10.12.500, 10.12.510, and 10.12.520 upon the effective date of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 7.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this ordinance is declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 8.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after posting and publication as required by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may be 
published in lieu of the entire ordinance, as authorized by State Law. 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 11th day of April 2023. 

 

       ____________________________ 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________        
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   SPONSOR: 

_____________________________  ____________________________ 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney  Scott Diener, Councilmember 

 

PUBLISHED: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Page 28 of 318



Ordinance No. XXX-23 – Tracked POMC Chapter 10.12 

10.12.460 Parking prohibited at all times. 
(1) When signs or markings are installed giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at 
any time upon any of the streets or parts of streets described as follows: 

1. Advantage 
Avenue: 

on the west side of the 
north 350 feet of roadway 
and on the left-hand side, 
as the traffic flows, of the 
remainder of the street. 

2. Amherst Way 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

3. Andasio Loop 
SE: 

on the outside curb along 
the entire loop. 

4. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

along the west side of 
Arnold Avenue E, from 
the Lawrence Street 
intersection, to the 
northeast towards Bay 
Street, 100 feet. 

5. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

along the east side of 
Arnold Avenue E, from 
the Bay Street 
intersection, to the south 
66 feet. 

6. Bay Street: at the intersection with 
Wharf Street (Mitchell 
Point), along the outside 
radius of the existing road 
as delineated by the 
established guardrail. 

7. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Tracy Avenue, westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 

8. Bay Street: on the north side, from 
the DeKalb Street 
pedestrian pier westerly 
for 70 feet and in front of 
501 Bay Street. 

9. Bay Street: at the southwest corner 
of the intersection with 
Arnold Avenue E, from 

Page 29 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 2 of 22 

 
the point of curvature to 
the point of tangency of 
the curve radius. 

10. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Dekalb Street, 130 feet to 
the east. 

11. Becky 
Avenue: 

on both sides of street, 
from Dallas Street south 
to dead end. 

12. Bethel 
Avenue: 

on the west side from the 
driveway at 1130 Bethel 
Avenue, 245 feet north. 

13. Bittern Lane: on both sides of the street 
from McCormick Village 
Drive to Wandering Way. 

14. Bristol Lane 
SE: 

on the east side of the 
street. 

15. Castleton 
Road SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

16. Cedar 
Canyon: 

on both sides of the street 
within 100 feet of the 
Tremont Street right-of-
way. 

17. Chanting 
Circle SW: 

on both sides of street, 
from Old Clifton Road 260 
feet. Then on the east 
side to Chanting Circle. 
Then along the inside 
curb of the remaining part 
of Chanting Circle. 

18. Chatterton 
Avenue SW: 

on the west side of street. 

19. Chowchilla 
Way: 

on the south side of 
street. 

20. SW Colbert 
Way: 

on left-hand side of street 
as the traffic flows, from 
Pickford Place SW to 
Chatterton Avenue SW. 

21. Currant Lane on the west side of the 

Page 30 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 3 of 22 

 
SW: street. 

22. Dallas Street: on the right-hand side, as 
the traffic flows. 

23. DeKalb 
Street: 

on south side from Cline 
Avenue easterly to dead 
end. 

24. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 100 feet. 

25. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Tracy Avenue easterly to 
the end of DeKalb Street. 

26. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Mitchell Avenue to the 
east side of Tracy Avenue. 

27. Donna 
Street: 

on the south side of 
street. 

28. Donnegal 
Circle SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

29. Egret Street: on the south side of the 
street. 

30. Explorer Ave: on the inside radius of the 
street. 

31. Fantail Place: on the east side of the 
street. 

32. Farragut 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Morton 
Street; except, on the east 
side, 160 feet north of 
DeKalb Street. 

33. SW Fielder 
Place: 

on the west side including 
the cul-de-sac. 

34. Fiscal Street: on the south side of the 
street. 

35. Forest Park 
Street: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

36. Glenmore 
Loop: 

on the inside radius of the 
entire loop. 

Page 31 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 4 of 22 

 
37. Glenwood 
Road SW: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Road 350 feet 
west. 

38. Grebe Way: on the north side, from 
Siskin Circle to Swift 
Avenue. 

39. Guy Wetzel 
Street: 

on both sides from Bay 
Street to Perry Avenue. 

40. Hales Court 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

41. Hibiscus 
Circle SW: 

on the outside radius of 
the entire circle. 

42. Huntington 
Street: 

on both sides from Olney 
Avenue to Glenmore Loop 
and the north side from 
Glenmore Loop to west 
end terminus. 

43. Jabirin Way: on the north side of 
street. 

44. Keppel Loop 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

45. Koda Circle: along fire lanes where 
marked/posted. 

46. Ladd Court 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

47. Landis Court 
SW: 

on the northeast side. 

48. Lazuli Street: on the south side, from 
Wigeon Avenue to Siskin 
Circle. 

49. Limerick 
Drive SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

50. Lippert 
Drive: 

on both sides, from 
Pottery Avenue to 
Advantage Street. 

51. Lloyd 
Parkway: 

on both sides from SW 
Old Clifton Road to 
Lumsden Road. 

Page 32 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 5 of 22 

 
52. Lone Bear 
Drive: 

on both sides from Feigley 
Road to 100 feet west of 
Chatterton Avenue SW. 

53. Longview 
Avenue: 

on east side of street. 

54. Lowren 
Street: 

on the right-hand side, as 
the traffic flows on the 
one-way portion of the 
street. 

55. Lumsden 
Road: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

56. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Bay 
Street to Kitsap Street. 

57. Murrelet 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Old 
Clifton Road to Siskin 
Circle. 

58. SE 
Nordmann Loop: 

on the outside curb of the 
entire loop. 

59. SW Old 
Clifton Road: 

on both sides from 
Chanting Circle SW to 
Campus Parkway. 

60. Olivine Drive 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

61. SW 
Pendleton Way: 

on the south side of the 
street.  

62. Pickford 
Place SW: 

on the left-hand side as 
the traffic flows on the 
street, from SW Colbert 
Way to end of cul-de-sac. 

63. Plisko 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue to Mile 
Hill Drive. 

64. Pottery 
Avenue: 

on both sides of the 
street, within 100 feet of 
the Tremont Street right-
of-way. 

65. Prospect 
Street: 

on the inside radius of the 
curve between Robert 
Geiger Street and 

Page 33 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 6 of 22 

 
Frederick Avenue. 

66. Retsil Road: on the west side, from the 
north corporate limits to 
the south property line of 
982 Retsil Road. 

67. Robert 
Geiger Street: 

other than official city 
vehicles, parking is 
prohibited at all times 
along the south side, from 
Bay Street to Prospect 
Street. 

68. Rockwell 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Bay 
Street to Kitsap Street. 

69. Ross Street: on the south side of the 
400 block. 

70. Sage Court: on both sides of street. 

71. Sage Street: on both sides from 
Pottery Avenue east for a 
distance of 70 feet and on 
the left-hand side, as the 
traffic flows, on the 
remainder of the street. 

72. Seattle 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from Bay 
Street southerly for a 
distance of 82 feet. 

73. SW Sedge St: On the north side of the 
street including the cul-
de-sac. 

74. Sherman 
Avenue: 

on the east side of the 
1200-1300 block from the 
dead end 980 feet north. 

75. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on the west side from Bay 
Street to Prospect Street. 

76. Siskin Circle: on the inside curb of 
Siskin Circle throughout 
the circle. 

77. Snowridge 
Avenue: 

on the left-hand side, as 
the traffic flows on the 
street. 

Page 34 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 7 of 22 

 
78. Sprague 
Street: 

on the right-hand side, as 
the traffic flows on the 
one-way portion of the 
street. 

79. Sroufe 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue to 
Portland Avenue. 

80. SW Stanwick 
Way: 

on the right-hand side of 
street as the traffic flows, 
from Lone Bear Drive to 
Pickford Place SW. 

81. Strathmore 
Circle SW: 

on outside of circle 
traveling either direction. 

82. Sweany 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Cline Avenue westerly for 
a distance of 340 feet. 

83. Sweany 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 

84. Swift 
Avenue: 

on west side, from Siskin 
Circle to Lazuli Street. 

85. Tremont 
Place: 

on both sides of street 
from 233 Tremont Place 
driveway to end of road 
guardrail. 

86. Tremont 
Street: 

on both sides of the 
street, within 100 feet of 
Pottery Avenue right-of-
way. 

87. Vardon Circle 
SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

88. Viridian 
Avenue SW: 

on both sides of the 
street. 

89. Wandering 
Way: 

on the outside radius of 
the street. 

90. Warbler 
Way: 

on both sides of street 
from Old Clifton Road to 
Siskin Circle. 

91. Warbler from Siskin Circle to curve 

Page 35 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 8 of 22 

 
Way: (park) on south side and 

on east side from curve 
(park) to Grebe Way. 

92. Waverly Rd 
SW: 

on the west side of the 
street. 

93. Wilkins 
Drive: 

on both sides, from the 
west terminus, eastward 
350 feet. 

94. Lot 4: all of Lot 4, as defined in 
POMC 10.12.500, 
Saturdays from 5:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., from April 
1st through October 31st. 

 
(2) Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 049-22 § 2; Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

*** 

10.12.490 Parking time limited on certain streets. 
(1) When signs are erected by the city engineer in each block giving notice thereof, no person 
shall park a vehicle for longer than the time specified in this section, on the days specified in 
this section, upon any of the streets described as follows except vehicles complying with the 
residential parking permit program: 

1. Ada Street: on both sides of Ada 
Street, from Sidney 
Avenue to Harrison 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

2. Arnold 
Avenue E: 

on the west side of Arnold 
Avenue E, south of Bay 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

3. Austin on both sides, from 

Page 36 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 9 of 22 

 
Avenue: Division Street to Dwight 

Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

4. Bay Street: on both sides, from 
Orchard Avenue to 
Harrison Avenue. There 
will be two-hour parking 
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m., on any day except 
Saturday, Sunday, and 
federal holidays. Vehicles 
with residential parking 
permits are not exempt 
from the parking 
restrictions specified 
within this subsection. 

5. Bay Street: on the north side from 
the DeKalb Street 
pedestrian pier easterly 
for 110 feet. There will be 
15-minute loading and 
unloading only. 

6. Bay Street: on the south side from 
Port Orchard Boulevard to 
DeKalb Street and 130 
feet east of DeKalb Street 
to Kitsap Street there will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday and federal 
holidays. 

7. Bay Street: on west side of the 1500 
and 1600 block. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 

Page 37 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 10 of 22 

 
holidays. 

8. Bay Street: on the north side at Ross 
Point (SR 166). There will 
be four-hour parking. 

9. Bay Street: on the south side of Bay 
Street, west of Arnold 
Avenue E. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day, except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

10. Bravo 
Terrace: 

on the east side from the 
Bravo Terrace 
intersection south to end 
of cul-de-sac. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

11. Cline 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to Dwight Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

12. Cline 
Avenue: 

from the northeast corner 
of Kitsap Street and Cline 
Avenue northerly along 
the east line of Cline 
Avenue to Bay Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

13. Cline 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Taylor 
Street to Division Street. 
There will be two-hour 

Page 38 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 11 of 22 

 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

14. DeKalb 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Seattle Avenue to Sidney 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays; except for a 
space on the south side of 
DeKalb Street beginning 
105 feet east of Harrison 
Avenue and continuing 
easterly for 175 feet. The 
175 feet as described 
shall be designated all day 
parking. 

15. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 120 feet. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

16. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Tracy Avenue easterly to 
the end of DeKalb Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

17. DeKalb 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 340 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 

Page 39 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 12 of 22 

 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

18. DeKalb 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Mitchell Avenue to Tracy 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

19. Division 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Seattle 
Avenue. There will be 
two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

20. Division 
Street: 

on both sides, from Cline 
Avenue to Sidney Avenue. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

21. Division 
Street: 

on both sides from Cline 
Avenue westerly to dead 
end. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday and federal 
holidays. 

22. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Seattle 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

Page 40 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 13 of 22 

 
23. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 250 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

24. Dwight 
Street: 

on both sides, from Austin 
Avenue to Cline Avenue. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

25. Farragut 
Avenue: 

on the east side, 160 feet 
north of DeKalb Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

26. Frederick 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
waterfront parking lot to 
Prospect Street. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

27. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from Bay 
St northerly for a distance 
of 80 feet.  There will be 
one-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

27. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Dwight 
Street. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 

Page 41 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 14 of 22 

 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

28. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Dwight Street to Division 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

29. Harrison 
Avenue: 

on both sides from Ada 
Street to dead end. There 
will be two-hour parking 
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m., on any day except 
Saturday, Sunday, and 
federal holidays. 

30. Kitsap Street: on both sides, from Cline 
Avenue to Rockwell 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

31. Kitsap Street: on both sides, from 
Mitchell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 150 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

32. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from 
DeKalb Street northerly 
for a distance of 70 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 

Page 42 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 15 of 22 

 
and federal holidays. 

33. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the west side, from 
Kitsap Street to Taylor 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

34. Mitchell 
Avenue: 

on the east side, from 
DeKalb Street southerly to 
the bus loading access 
road, shall be designated 
all day parking except for 
the revetment area which 
is two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

35. Morton 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Rockwell Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 230 feet 
on both sides. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

36. Morton 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Rockwell Avenue easterly 
for a distance of 230 feet 
on both sides. There will 
be four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

37. Prospect 
Street: 

on both sides, from 
Sidney Avenue to Robert 
Geiger Street. There will 
be four-hour parking from 

Page 43 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 16 of 22 

 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
(except where posted as 
one-hour parking for the 
City Permit Center located 
at 720 Prospect Street; 
holders of residential 
parking permits are not 
exempt from this 
restriction), on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays, and 
the inside radius of the 
curve between Robert 
Geiger Street and 
Frederick Avenue. 

38. Prospect 
Street: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to Robert Geiger 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays, except where 
30-minute zone is 
delineated. 

39. Prospect 
Street: 

along the green curb, in 
front of City Hall at 216 
Prospect Street. There is 
30-minute parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

40. Robert 
Geiger Street: 

on the north side, from 
Prospect Street to Bay 
Street. There will be four-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

41. Seattle on both sides, from Kitsap 

Page 44 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 17 of 22 

 
Avenue: Street to Dwight Street. 

There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

42. Seattle 
Avenue: 

on both sides from 
Dwight Street to Division 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

43. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides from Bay 
Street to the waterfront. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

44. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on the east side from Bay 
Street to Prospect Street. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

45. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
Prospect to Kitsap Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

46. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from Kitsap 
Street to DeKalb Street. 
There will be four-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

Page 45 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 18 of 22 

 
47. Sidney 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Ada 
Street. There will be two-
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

48. Sweany 
Street: 

on the south side, from 
Cline Avenue westerly for 
a distance of 300 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

49. Sweany 
Street: 

on the north side, from 
Sidney Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 200 feet. 
There will be two-hour 
parking from 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m., on any day 
except Saturday, Sunday, 
and federal holidays. 

50. Tracy 
Avenue: 

on both sides, from 
DeKalb Street to Guy 
Wetzel Street. There will 
be two-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

51. Tracy 
Avenue: 

abutting 219 Tracy 
Avenue. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

52. Water 
Street: 

from Bay Street to 
waterfront on the west 
side. There will be four-

Page 46 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 19 of 22 

 
hour parking from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays. 

53. SW Yarrow 
St: 

on the south side, from 
Explorer Avenue westerly 
for a distance of 360 feet 
and easterly for a distance 
of 390 feet. There will be 
four-hour parking from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on 
any day except Saturday, 
Sunday, and federal 
holidays.  

 
(2) Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 049-22 § 3; Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

*** 

10.12.500 Parking time limited on certain city parking lots. 
(1) The city parking lots are identified as follows: 

(a) Lot 1, which lies between Orchard and Frederick Streets, on the north of Bay Street. 
Parking in Lot 1 is a combination of city parking and Port Orchard Marina parking. Port 
Orchard Marina parking is the three northernmost rows and shall be managed by the Port 
of Bremerton. City parking is limited to four hours maximum and/or monthly merchant 
parking. 

(b) Lot 2, which lies between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay Street. 
Parking in Lot 2 shall be allowed for a maximum period of four hours, including two car 
charging stalls limited to four hours maximum, and one motorcycle stall. 

(c) Lot 3, which is the five rows of parking area under city jurisdiction west of Harrison 
Avenue and east of and parallel to the library’s easternmost exterior wall. Parking in the 
three westerly rows of Lot 3 shall be allowed for a maximum period of four hours at no 
monetary charge. Parking in the easterly two rows is paid parking and shall require a paid 
daily parking pass as established in POMC 10.12.520. 

(d) Lot 4, which is all parking area under city jurisdiction which lies east of Parking Lot 3 and 
Harrison Avenue and west of the Marina Park. Parking in Lot 4 is a combination of free two-
hour parking for the park at the most northerly and easterly corner and paid parking and 
shall require a paid daily parking pass as established in POMC 10.12.520.  Parking is 
prohibited at all times on Saturdays from 5 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., from April 1st through 
October 31st.   

Page 47 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 20 of 22 

 
(e) Lot 5, which is all parking spaces on City Hall property (first floor entry). Parking in Lot 5 
shall be for City Hall ADA parking patrons and official vehicles only. The police chief or 
his/her designate may authorize deviations to this policy for Lot 5, if necessary. No 
monetary charge. 

(f) Lot 6, which is all parking spaces abutting the landscaped area at the southwest corner 
of the intersection of Bay Street and DeKalb Street (Bayside Plaza). Parking in Lot 6 shall be 
allowed for a maximum period of two hours. No monetary charge. 

(g) Lot 7, which is all parking spaces located on the library property. Parking in Lot 7 shall be 
limited to library staff only. Access to Lot 7 and parallel parking stalls via the adjacent parcel 
to the south pursuant to easement AF# (8903310122). No monetary charge. 

(h) Lot 8, which lies east of City Hall, north of and adjacent to Prospect Alley (between 
Kitsap Street and Prospect Street). Lot 8 is for designated city vehicles and city employees 
via pass Monday through Friday. No monetary charge. 

(i) Lot 9, 720 Prospect Street, which lies east of Lot 8, north of and adjacent to Prospect 
Alley (between Kitsap Street and Prospect Street). Lot 9 is for designated vehicles and city 
employees via pass Monday through Friday. No monetary charge.  

(j) Lot 10, which lies on the east side of McCormick Village Drive between SW Old Clifton 
Road and SW Yarrow Street. Parking in Lot 10 shall be allowed for a maximum period of 
four hours, enforced on a 24-hour basis. 

(k) Paul Powers Park, which lies north and east of the public works department “south 
shed” located at 2051 Sidney Avenue. Paul Powers Park parking is limited to dawn-to-dusk 
parking only. 

(l) Van Zee Park, which lies south of Tremont Street and west of Sidney Avenue, located at 
300 Tremont Street. Van Zee Park parking is limited to dawn-to-dusk parking only. 

(m) Rockwell Pocket Park will be limited to two-hour parking from dawn to dusk. 

(2) Parking restrictions in Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 shall be enforced on a 24-hour basis, 
except Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays within the city. 

(3) Parking restrictions in Lot 4 shall also be enforced on a 24-hour basis on each Saturday in the 
period of April 1st to October 31st. 

(4) Currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar 
instrument provided near the parking space for each 12-hour interval or part thereof. 

(5) Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 049-22 § 4; Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

*** 

Page 48 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 21 of 22 

 
10.12.510 Parking passes. 
Parking passes are established for city parking lots defined in POMC 10.12.500 and are subject 
to sales and use tax defined in RCW 82.14.020(3). 

(1) Hourly Public Parking Pass. An hourly public parking pass is available to the general public 
and will require the payment as designated in subsection (1)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space for each one-hour interval. 

(a) Hourly public parking pass rates are as follows: $1.00. 

(2) Daily Public Parking Pass. A daily public parking pass is available to the general public and 
will require the payment as designated in subsection (2)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space for each 12-hour interval or part thereof. 

(a) Daily public parking pass rates are as follows: $8.00. 

(3) Weekly Public Parking Pass. A weekly public parking pass is available to the general public 
and will require the payment as designated in subsection (3)(a) of this section in United States 
currency through electronic payment in an electronic parking pay station or similar instrument 
provided near the parking space. The weekly pass will be good for five consecutive business 
calendar days from the date of purchase. Weekly parking passes are nonrefundable and not 
valid Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays; and will not be prorated. 

(a) Weekly public parking pass rates are as follows: $38.00. 

(4) Monthly Downtown Merchant Parking Pass. A downtown merchant parking pass is available 
to documented business owners, and their documented employees, whose business and place 
of employment is located in the downtown Port Orchard area between and including the 500 
and 1300 blocks of Bay Street and the north and west side of Prospect Street. Downtown 
merchant parking passes will require the payment as designated in subsection (4)(a) of this 
section in United States currency and may be purchased from the city finance department. 
Downtown merchant parking passes are nonrefundable. 

(a) Monthly downtown merchant parking pass rates are as follows: $35.00. 

(5) Monthly Commuter Vanpool or Carpool Parking Pass (Three or More Persons per Vehicle, 
Registered with Kitsap Transit). A commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass is available to 
registered vanpools and carpools and will require the payment as designated in subsection 
(5)(a) of this section in United States currency. Commuter vanpool or carpool parking passes 
may be purchased from the city finance department. Commuter vanpool or carpool parking 
passes are nonrefundable; guarantee designated parking spaces between the hours of 4:00 
a.m. and 10:00 a.m. except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays; and will not be prorated. 
Does not apply to city employee Lot 8 carpool designated stalls. 

(a) Monthly commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass rates are as follows: $35.00. 

Page 49 of 318



  Ordinance No. 049-22 
Page 22 of 22 

 
(6) Daily Contractor’s Parking Pass. A contractor’s parking pass shall be $8.00 per day per 
parking space per 24-hour period. The purpose of this pass is to accommodate a temporary 
need of parking, as determined by the city engineer. (Ord. 029-22 § 1 (Exh. A)). 

(7) City Employee Parking Pass.  Each employee may receive one (1) employee parking pass at 
no cost to the City upon request to the Finance Department.  The pass must be relinquished to 
the City on the employee’s last day of employment or at any time upon request by the City.   

*** 

10.12.520 Parking passes – Rules. 
The following rules apply to the use of city parking passes as defined in POMC 10.12.510 as 
follows: 

(1) Applicable Parking Lots. The city-issued parking passes, except for the contractor’s parking 
pass, are applicable only to Lot 1 and Lot 4. The city-issued parking passes, to include the 
contractor’s parking pass, do not provide parking privileges in city-owned Lots 2, 3, 5, 6, or 7. 
Available parking areas for contractor’s parking passes will be specified when the parking pass 
is issued. This subsection does not apply to city employee Lot 8. 

(2) Stalls Reserved 4:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. Designated parking stalls in Lot 1 and Lot 4 will be 
marked to allow parking only by monthly public parking pass, downtown merchant parking 
pass, and commuter vanpool or carpool parking pass holders between the hours of 4:00 a.m. 
and 10:00 a.m. except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. 

(3) Posting of Passes. The city-issued parking passes for hourly and daily parking must be affixed 
on the inside of the vehicle’s driver’s door window (not the front windshield). Passes for 
monthly, merchant, carpool, city employee, and contractor’s passes must be affixed to the 
bottom portion of the hangtag provided and then hung from the rearview mirror located on the 
vehicle’s front windshield. If no rearview mirror exists, the hangtag shall be placed face up on 
the middle of the dash and made clearly visible from outside of the front of the vehicle. It is the 
responsibility of the pass holder to place the parking pass as described above. 

(4) Enforcement. The city-issued parking pass allows the specified vehicle to park in a city-
designated paid parking lot without making daily parking fee deposits. The parking pass does 
not allow the vehicle to park in excess of the posted hours or be exempt from any posted 
parking rules in any other location. Violation of this section is a Class A infraction. (Ord. 029-22 
§ 1 (Exh. A)). 

 

Page 50 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D  Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Authorizing  Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Acceptance of an Increased Award of   PW Director 
 a FY2021-23 Stormwater Capacity     Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 Grant from the Department of Ecology  Atty Review Date: April 6, 2023 

 
Summary: On September 13, 2022, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 035-22, accepting a grant 
from the Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology) Capacity Grants Program in the amount of 
$50,000.00.  On March 14, 2023, Ecology authorized Amendment No. 1 to the grant agreement, increasing 
the available funding for the City by an additional $25,000.00 and extending the duration of the grant to 
June 30, 2023. The Mayor executed Amendment No. 1 in the interest of preserving the City’s rights to the 
additional grant funding.  Staff recommend the City Council ratify the Mayor’s execution of Amendment 
No. 1 to Contract No. 103-22/Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-00135 with Ecology, thereby 
accepting the additional $25,000 in available funding through this grant. The additional grant funding will 
be utilized to perform NPDES Municipal Permit related activities. This amendment increases the total 
available funding to $75,000.00.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Chapter 7-Utilities 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council accept the grant amendment and ratify the Mayor’s 
execution of FY2021-23 Stormwater Capacity Grant Amendment No. 1 for Agreement WQSWCAP-2123-
PoOrPW-00135 with the Department of Ecology, increasing the grant allocation to $75,000.00. 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt an Ordinance accepting Amendment No. 1 for the FY2021-23 
Stormwater Capacity Grant Agreement with the Department of Ecology, and ratifying the Mayor’s 
execution of the amended grant agreement.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  Funding is 100% grant funding, no local match required. 
 
Alternatives:  Do not approve and provide staff with alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments:   Ordinance  

2021-23 Municipal Stormwater Capacity Grant Program Amendment No. 1 
Copy- 2021-23 Municipal Stormwater Grant Program Agreement 

Page 51 of 318



 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

           
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
ACCEPTING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF WATER QUALITY 
STORMWATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH THE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY, AND RATIFYING 
THE MAYOR’S EXECUTION OF THE AMENDMENT; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the City was awarded a grant from the Washington State Department of 

Ecology’s FY2021-23 Municipal Stormwater Capacity Grants Program in the amount of $50,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, funds awarded through this grant will be used to meet the City’s obligations 
under its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for stormwater 
discharge, including operation and maintenance program activities; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, the City Council accepted the grant (Contract No. 

103-22, Ecology Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-00135) from the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (Ecology) Capacity Grants Program and authorized the Mayor to 
execute the Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 14, 2023, Ecology authorized Amendment No. 1 to the grant, 

increasing the available funding by an additional $25,000 and extending the grant period to 
June 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of 

the City and its Residents to authorize execution of the Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 
WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-00135 with Ecology for additional grant funding of $25,000, 
increasing the total grant funding to $75,000; now, therefore, 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Findings and Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted and 

incorporated as findings in support of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2. Ratification.  The City Council hereby Ratifies the Mayors execution of 

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 103-22, Ecology Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-
00135, and the acceptance of additional grant funding from the Washington State Department 
of Ecology (Ecology) under Ecology’s FY 2021-2023 Municipal Stormwater Capacity Grants 
Program in the amount of $25,000.00, for a total grant acceptance of $75,000. The Mayor is 
authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the City’s receipt of this grant funding.  

 

Page 52 of 318



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

SECTION 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 3.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 

consisting of the title.  
 

SECTION 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect five days after publication, as provided by law.    

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 11th day of April 2023. 
 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      SPONSOR: 
 
              
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk                                  Cindy Lucarelli, Councilmember 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

Page 53 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 6710024F-C0F4-4 103-B84C-424123DACCFB

DEPARTMENT OF

ECOLOGY
State of Washington

AMENDMENT NO. I
TO AGREEM ENT NO. WQSWC AP-2123-PoOrPW-001 35

BETWEEN

THE STATE OFWASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OFECOLOGY
AND

City of Port Orchard

PURPOSE: To amend the above-referenced agreement (AGREEMENT) between the state of Washington Department of
Ecology (ECOLOGY) and City of Port Orchard (RECIPIENT) for the 2021-2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

(PROJECT).

The purpose of this amendment is to increase the grant funding by an additional $25,000. The grant end date will also be

extended from the original end date of 3l3ll23 to 6130123 to allow more time for the additional funding to be utilized.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED that the AGREEMENT is amended as follows:

Total Cost:

Original: 50,000.00 Amended: 75,000.00

Total Eligible Cost:

Original: 50,000.00 Amended: 75,000.00

Expiration Date:

Original: 0313112023 Amended: 0613012023

CHANGES TO THE BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG220353

Funding Title: 2021-23 capacity grant

FundingType: Grant

Funding Effective Date: 0710112021 Funding Expiration Date:

Funding Source:

Title: Model Toxics Control Operating Account (MTCOA)

Fund: FD

Type: State

, Funding Source %o: 100%

Description: MTCA

0613012023

Tenrplate Version I 0/30/20 I 5

Page 54 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 67'l 0024F-C0F4-41 03-B84C -424 1 23D ACCFB
State ofWashington Department of Ecology

City of Port Orchard

2021-2023 Biennial Stonnwater Capacity Grants Project

Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-00135

Page2 of 6

Approved Indirect Costs Rate: Approved State Indirect: 30%o

Recipient Matchoh: 0%

InKind Interlocal Allowed: No

InKind OtherAllowed: No
Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant? No

Total: $ 75,000.00

CHANGES TO SCOPE OFWORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $2,000.00

Task Title: Proj ect Adm inistration/Management

Task Descriotion:

A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements.

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to: maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for reimbursement and

corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and a recipient closeout report (including photos).

B. The RECIPIENT shall maintain documentation demonstrating compliance with applicable procurement, contracting, and

interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, and compliance with all required petmits, licenses, easements, or

property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items.

C. The RECIPIENT shall manage the project. Efforts include, but are not limited to: conducting, coordinating, and scheduling

project activities and assuring quality control. Every effort will be made to maintain effective communication with the

RECIPIENT's designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or federaljurisdictions; and any interested individuals or

groups. The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates outlined in this agreement.

Task Goal Statement:

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY's grant and loan administrative requirements

Task Expected Outcome:
* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quafterly progress reports, Recipient Closeout Report, and

two-page Outcome Summary Report. <br>
x Properly maintained project documentation.

2021-23 capacity grant Task Total

Project Adm inistration/Management $ 2,000.00

Permit Implementation s 73,000.00

Ternplate Version I 0/30/201 5

Page 55 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 671 0024F-C0F4-41 03-BB4C-424123DACCFB
State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Port Orchard

2021-2023 Biennral Stonnwater Capacity Grants Project

Agreernent No. WQSWCAP-21 23-PoOrPW-001 35

Page 3 of6

Deliverables

CHANGES TO SCOPE OFWORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $73,000.00

Task Title Permit Implementation

Task Description:

Conduct wort related to implementation of municipal stormwater National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)

permit requirements. If the RECIPIENT is out of compliance with the municipal stormwater National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System O{PDES) permit, the RECIPIENT will ensure funds are used to attain compliance where applicable. The

following is a list of elements RECIPIENT's project may include.

1) Public education and outreach activities, including stewardship activities.

2) Public involvement and participation activities.

3) Illicit discharge detection and elimination (IDDE) program activities, including:

a) Mapping of municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s).

b) Staff training.

c) Activities to identif and remove illicit stormwater discharges.

d) Field screening procedures.

e) Complaint hotline database or tracking system improvements.

4) Activities to support programs to control runofffrom new development, redevelopment, and construction sites, including:

a) Development ofan ordinance and associated technical manual or update ofapplicable codes.

b) Inspections before, during, and upon completion ofconstruction, or for post-construction long-term maintenance.

c) Training for plan review or inspection staff.

d) Participation in applicable watershed planning effort.

5) Pollution prevention, good housekeeping, and operation and maintenance program activities, such as:

a) Inspecting and/or maintaining the MS4 infrastructure.

b) Developing and/or irnplementing policies, procedures, or stormwater pollution prevention plans at municipal properties or

facilities.

6) Annual reporting activities.

7) Establishing and refining stormwater utilities, including stable rate structures.

8) Water quality monitoring to implement permit requirements for a Water Cleanup Plan (TMDL). Note that any monitoring

funded by this program requires submittal of a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) that the DEPARMENT approves prior

Template Version l0/30/201 5

Number Description Due Date

l.l Progress Reports that include descriptions of work accomplished,

project challenges, and changes in the project schedule. Submitted at

least quafterlv in EAGL.

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report (EAGL Form).

1.3 Two-page draft and Final Outcome Summary Reports.

Page 56 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 671 0024F-C0F4-41 03-B84C-424123DACCFB
State ofWashington Deparhnent of Ecology

City of Port Orchard

2021-2023 Biennial Stonnwater Capacity Grants Project

Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2 1 23-PoOrPW-00 I 35

Page 4 of6

to awarding funding for rnonitoring.

Monitoring, including:

a) Development of applicable QAPPs.
b) Monitoring activities, in accordance with a DEPARTMENT- approved QAPP, to meet Phase I/II permit requirements.

9) Structural stormwater controls program activities (Phase I permit requirement)

10) Source control for existing developrnent (Phase I permit requirement), including:

a) Inventory and inspection program.

b) Technical assistance and enforcement.

c) Staff training.

I I ) Equipment purchases that result directly in improved permit compliance. Equipment purchases must be specific to

implementing a permit requirement (such as a vactor truck) rather than general use (such as a pick-up truck). Equipment

purchases over $5,000 must be pre-approved by Ecology.

Documentation of all tasks completed is required. Docurnentation may include: field reports, dates and number of inspections

conducted, dates of trainings held and participant lists, number of illicit discharges investigated and removed, summaries of
planning, stormwater utility or procedural updates, annual repofts, copies of approved QAPPs, summaries of structural or

source control activities, summaries of how equipment purchases have increased or improved permit compliance. Capital

construction projects, incentives or give-a-ways, grant application preparation, TAPE review for proprietary treatment systems,

or tasks that do not suppofi Municipal Stormwater Permit implernentation are not eligible expenses.

Task Goal Statement:

This task will improve water quality in the State of Washington by reducing the pollutants delivered by stormwater to lakes,

streams, and the Puget Sound by implementing measures required by Phase I and II NPDES permits.

Task Expected Outcome:

RECIPIENTS will implement measures required by Phase I and II NPDES permits

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

2.1 Documentation of tasks completed

Template Version 10/30/201 5

Page 57 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 6710024F-C0F4-41 03-B84C-424123DACCFB
State of Washington Department of Ecology

Crty of Port Orchard

2021-2023 Biennial Stonnwater Capacity Grants Project

Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2 I 23-PoOrPW-00 I 35

Fundins Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Page 5 of 6

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match 7o Recipient Share Ecology Share Total

2021-23 capacity grant 0% $ 0.00 $ 75,000.00 $ 75,000.00

Total $ 0.00 $ 75,000.00 $ 75,000.00

Template Version lo/30/201 5

Page 58 of 318



DocuSign Envelope lD: 67 1 0024F-C0F4-4 1 03-B84C-424 1 23D ACCF B

State ofWashrngton Department of Ecology

City of Port Orchard

, 2021-2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Crants Project

Agreement No. WQSWCAP-2 I 23-PoOrPW-00 I 35

Page 6 of 6

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement including any Amendments remain in full force and effect, except as

expressly provided by this Amendment.

The signatories to this Amendment represent that they have the authority to execute this Amendment and bind their respective

organizations to this Amendment.

This amendment will be effective 0710112022

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: the parties hereto, having read this Amendment in its entirety, including all attachments, do agree in

each and every particular and have thus set their hands hereunto.

Washington State City of Port Orchard

Department of Ecology

by:

By By: trblaxt lulaawsw 3
Vincent McGowan, P.E.

Water Quality

Program Manager

Template Approved to Form by

Attorney General's Oflice

Date Robert B Putaansuu

Mayor

Date

Ternplate Version I 0 l3O/201 5

Page 59 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6CO- OE7B- 4BO4- A140- 48E11E4EFB26

DEPARTMENT OF

ECOLOGY
State of Washington

Agreement No. WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

WATER QUALITY STORMWATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

This is a binding Agreement entered into by and between the state of Washington, Department of Ecology, hereinafter

referred to as " ECOLOGY," and City of Port Orchard, hereinafter referred to as the " RECIPIENT," to carry out with the

provided funds activities described herein. 

GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Title: 

Total Cost: 

Total Eligible Cost: 

Ecology Share: 
Recipient Share: 

The Effective Date of this Agreement is: 

The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than: 

Project Type: 

2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

50, 000. 00

50, 000. 00

50, 000. 00

0. 00

07/ 01 /2021

03/ 31/ 2023

Capacity Grant

Project Short Description: 

This project will assist Phase I and II Permittees in implementation or management of municipal stormwater programs. 

Project Long Description: 

N/A

Overall Goal: 

This project will improve water quality in the State of Washington by reducing stormwater pollutants discharged to state
water bodies. 

Page 60 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 2 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

Organization Name: City of Port Orchard

Federal Tax ID: 

DUNS Number: 

Mailing Address

Physical Address: 

Contacts

91- 6001487

081932790 UEI Number: 

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, WA 98366

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, Washington 98366

EA6VQLNKKKF7

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 61 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 3 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

Project Manager
Zack Holt

Stormwater Program Manager

216 Prospect St. 

Port Orchard, Washington 98366

Email: zholt@cityofportorchard. us

Phone: ( 360) 876- 4991

Billing Contact
Heidi Draper

Accounting Assistant III

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, Washington 98366

Email: hdraper@cityofportorchard. us

Phone: ( 360) 874- 5523

Robert B Putaansuu

Authorized Mayor

Signatory

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, Washington 98366

Email: rputaansuu@cityofportorchard. us

Phone: ( 360) 876- 4991

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 62 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 4 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

ECOLOGY INFORMATION

Mailing Address: Department of Ecology

Water Quality
PO BOX 47600

Olympia, WA 98504- 7600

Physical Address: Water Quality
300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503
Contacts

Kyle Graunke

Project

Manager

PO Box 47600

Olympia, Washington 98504- 7600

Email: kygr461@ecy. wa. gov
Phone: ( 360) 628- 3890

Kyle Graunke

Financial

Manager

PO Box 47600

Olympia, Washington 98504- 7600

Email: kygr461@ecy. wa. gov
Phone: ( 360) 628- 3890

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 63 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology Page 5 of 20

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants
Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

RECIPIENT agrees to furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, materials, services, and otherwise do all things necessary

for or incidental to the performance of work as set forth in this Agreement. 

RECIPIENT acknowledges that they had the opportunity to review the entire Agreement, including all the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, Scope of Work, attachments, and incorporated or referenced documents, as well as all applicable laws, 

statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines mentioned in this Agreement. Furthermore, the RECIPIENT has read, understood, 
and accepts all requirements contained within this Agreement. 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and there are no other understandings or representations

other than as set forth, or incorporated by reference, herein. 

No subsequent modifications or amendments to this agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing, signed by

authorized representatives of the RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY and made a part of this agreement. ECOLOGY and

RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts without the concurrence of either party. 

This Agreement shall be subject to the written approval of Ecology' s authorized representative and shall not be binding until so
approved. 

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement and bind their respective
organizations to this Agreement. 

Washington State

Department of Ecology

by: 

By.[

DocuSigned

2BCA6B80046746E... 

Vincent McGowan, P. E. 

Water Quality

Program Manager

Template Approved to Form by

Attorney General' s Office

Date

9/ 22/ 2022

City of Port Orchard

DocuSigned by: 

r, v Pt MA& SW
By. 

F69E88B5DOE74EF... 

Robert B Putaansuu

Mayor

Date

9/ 22/ 2022

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 64 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 6 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number

Task Title: Project Administration/ Management

Task Cost: $ 2, 000. 00

Task Description: 

A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements. 

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to: maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for reimbursement and

corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and a recipient closeout report ( including photos). 

B. The RECIPIENT shall maintain documentation demonstrating compliance with applicable procurement, contracting, and

interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, and compliance with all required permits, licenses, easements, or

property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items. 

C. The RECIPIENT shall manage the project. Efforts include, but are not limited to: conducting, coordinating, and scheduling

project activities and assuring quality control. Every effort will be made to maintain effective communication with the

RECIPIENT' s designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions; and any interested individuals or

groups. The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates outlined in this agreement. 

Task Goal Statement: 

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY' s grant and loan administrative requirements. 

Task Expected Outcome: 

Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports, Recipient Closeout Report, and

two -page Outcome Summary Report. < br> 

Properly maintained project documentation. 

Recipient Task Coordinator: Zack Holt

Project Administration/ Management

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

1. 1 Progress Reports that include descriptions of work accomplished, project

challenges, and changes in the project schedule. Submitted at least quarterly in
EAGL. 

1. 2 Recipient Closeout Report ( EAGL Form). 

1. 3 Two -page draft and Final Outcome Summary Reports. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 65 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 7 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 

Task Title: Permit Implementation

Task Cost: $ 48, 000. 00

Task Description: 

Conduct work related to implementation of municipal stormwater National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) 

permit requirements. If the RECIPIENT is out of compliance with the municipal stormwater National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System ( NPDES) permit, the RECIPIENT will ensure funds are used to attain compliance where applicable. The

following is a list of elements RECIPIENT' s project may include. 

1) Public education and outreach activities, including stewardship activities. 

2) Public involvement and participation activities. 

3) Illicit discharge detection and elimination ( IDDE) program activities, including: 

a) Mapping of municipal separate storm sewer systems ( MS4s). 

b) Staff training. 

c) Activities to identify and remove illicit stormwater discharges. 

d) Field screening procedures. 

e) Complaint hotline database or tracking system improvements. 

4) Activities to support programs to control runoff from new development, redevelopment, and construction sites, including: 
a) Development of an ordinance and associated technical manual or update of applicable codes. 

b) Inspections before, during, and upon completion of construction, or for post -construction long- term maintenance. 

c) Training for plan review or inspection staff. 
d) Participation in applicable watershed planning effort. 

5) Pollution prevention, good housekeeping, and operation and maintenance program activities, such as: 

a) Inspecting and/ or maintaining the MS4 infrastructure. 

b) Developing and/ or implementing policies, procedures, or stormwater pollution prevention plans at municipal properties or
facilities. 

6) Annual reporting activities. 

7) Establishing and refining stormwater utilities, including stable rate structures. 

8) Water quality monitoring to implement permit requirements for a Water Cleanup Plan ( TMDL). Note that any monitoring

funded by this program requires submittal of a Quality Assurance Project Plan ( QAPP) that the DEPARMENT approves prior

to awarding funding for monitoring. 

Monitoring, including: 

a) Development of applicable QAPPs. 

b) Monitoring activities, in accordance with a DEPARTMENT- approved QAPP, to meet Phase I/II permit requirements. 

9) Structural stormwater controls program activities ( Phase I permit requirement) 

10) Source control for existing development ( Phase I permit requirement), including: 

a) Inventory and inspection program. 
b) Technical assistance and enforcement. 

c) Staff training. 

11) Equipment purchases that result directly in improved permit compliance. Equipment purchases must be specific to

implementing a permit requirement ( such as a vactor truck) rather than general use ( such as a pick- up truck). Equipment

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 66 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 8 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

purchases over $ 5, 000 must be pre -approved by Ecology. 

Documentation of all tasks completed is required. Documentation may include: field reports, dates and number of inspections

conducted, dates of trainings held and participant lists, number of illicit discharges investigated and removed, summaries of

planning, stormwater utility or procedural updates, annual reports, copies of approved QAPPs, summaries of structural or

source control activities, summaries of how equipment purchases have increased or improved permit compliance. Capital

construction projects, incentives or give -a -ways, grant application preparation, TAPE review for proprietary treatment systems, 
or tasks that do not support Municipal Stormwater Permit implementation are not eligible expenses. 

Task Goal Statement: 

This task will improve water quality in the State of Washington by reducing the pollutants delivered by stormwater to lakes, 

streams, and the Puget Sound by implementing measures required by Phase I and II NPDES permits. 

Task Expected Outcome: 

RECIPIENTS will implement measures required by Phase I and TI NPDES permits. 

Permit Implementation

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

2. 1 Documentation of tasks completed

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 67 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants
Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG220353

NOTE: The above funding distribution number is used to identify this specific agreement and budget on payment

remittances and may be referenced on other communications from ECOLOGY. Your agreement may have multiple

funding distribution numbers to identify each budget. 

Funding Title: 
Funding Effective Date

Funding Source: 

Title: 

Fund: 

Type: 

Funding Source %: 

Description: 

2021- 23 capacity grant
07/ 01 / 2021

Funding Type: Grant

Funding Expiration Date: 03/ 31/ 2023

Model Toxics Control Operating Account ( MTCOA) 

State

100% 

MTCA

Approved Indirect Costs Rate: Approved State Indirect Rate: 30% 

Recipient Match %: 0% 

InKind Interlocal Allowed: No

InKind Other Allowed: No

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant? No

2021- 23 capacity grant Task Total

Project Administration/ Management 2, 000. 00

Permit Implementation 48, 000. 00

Total: $ 50, 000. 00

Page 9 of 20

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 68 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 10 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

Funding Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match % Recipient Share Ecology Share Total

2021- 23 capacity grant 0. 00 % 0. 00 50, 000. 00 50, 000. 00

Total 0. 00 50, 000. 00 50, 000. 00

AGREEMENT SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

N/A

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

GENERAL FEDERAL CONDITIONS

If a portion or all of the funds for this agreement are provided through federal funding sources or this agreement is

used to match a federal grant award, the following terms and conditions apply to you. 

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY

EXCLUSION: 

1. The RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, debarred, proposed for

debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal government, or from receiving

contracts paid for with federal funds. If the RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the statements

contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot. 
2. The RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to ECOLOGY if at any time the

RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances. 

3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, 

primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set

out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact

ECOLOGY for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
4. The RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a

person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred, suspended, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction. 
5. The RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled

CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY

EXCLUSION" without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

transactions. 

6. Pursuant to 2CFR180. 330, the RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered

transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements. 

7. RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of Federal

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 69 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 11 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal remedies, including
suspension and debarment. 

8. RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file, that it, and all lower tier recipients or

contractors, are not suspended or debarred, and will make this proof available to ECOLOGY before requests for

reimbursements will be approved for payment. RECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR must run a search in

http:// www. sam. gov> and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance. 

B. FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT ( FFATA) REPORTING

REQUIREMENTS: 

CONTRACTOR/ RECIPIENT must complete the FFATA Data Collection Form ( ECY 070- 395) and return it with the

signed agreement to ECOLOGY. 

Any CONTRACTOR/ RECIPIENT that meets each of the criteria below must report compensation for its five

top executives using the FFATA Data Collection Form. 

Receives more than $ 25, 000 in federal funds under this award. 

Receives more than 80 percent of its annual gross revenues from federal funds. 
Receives more than $ 25, 000, 000 in annual federal funds. 

Ecology will not pay any invoices until it has received a completed and signed FFATA Data Collection Form. Ecology is

required to report the FFATA information for federally funded agreements, including the required DUNS number, at

www. fsrs. ogv <http:// www. fsrs. go within 30 days of agreement signature. The FFATA information will be available to

the public at www. usaspendin, g. gov < http:// www. usaspending_ gov/>. 

For more details on FFATA requirements, see www. fsrs. ogv <http:// www. fsrs. gov/>. 

C. FEDERAL FUNDING PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS OR VIDEO SURVEILLANCE

SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT: 

As required by 2 CFR 200. 216, federal grant or loan recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending

loan or grant funds to: 

1. Procure or obtain; 

2. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
3. Enter into a contract ( or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that use

covered telecommunications equipment, video surveillance services or services as a substantial or essential component

of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115- 232

https:// www. izovinfo. gov/ content/ pka/ PLAW- 115publ232/ pdf/PLAW- 115publ232. pdf>, section 889, covered

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE

Corporation ( or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

Recipients, subrecipients, and borrowers also may not use federal funds to purchase certain prohibited equipment, systems, or

services, including equipment, systems, or services produced or provided by entities identified in section 889, are recorded in
the System for Award Management( SAM) < https:// sam.izov/ SAM/> exclusion list. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 70 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology Page 12 of 20

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants
Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Pertaining to Grant and Loan Agreements With the state of Washington, Department of Ecology

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

For DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY GRANTS and LOANS

06/ 24/ 2021 Version

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

a) RECIPIENT shall follow the " Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans — EAGL Edition." 

https: Hfortress. wa. gov/ ecy/ publications/ SummaryPages/ 1701004. html) 

b) RECIPIENT shall complete all activities funded by this Agreement and be fully responsible for the proper management of all
funds and resources made available under this Agreement. 

c) RECIPIENT agrees to take complete responsibility for all actions taken under this Agreement, including ensuring all

subgrantees and contractors comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ECOLOGY reserves the right to request

proof of compliance by subgrantees and contractors. 

d) RECIPIENT' s activities under this Agreement shall be subject to the review and approval by ECOLOGY for the extent and
character of all work and services. 

2. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS

This Agreement may be altered, amended, or waived only by a written amendment executed by both parties. No subsequent

modification( s) or amendment( s) of this Agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing and signed by authorized

representatives of both parties. ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts and administrative

information without the concurrence of either party. 

ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR COVERED TECHNOLOGY

The RECIPIENT must comply with the Washington State Office of the Chief Information Officer, OCIO Policy no. 188, 

Accessibility ( https:// ocio. wa. gov/ policy/ accessibility) as it relates to " covered technology." This requirement applies to all

products supplied under the Agreement, providing equal access to information technology by individuals with disabilities, 

including and not limited to web sites/ pages, web -based applications, software systems, video and audio content, and electronic

documents intended for publishing on Ecology' s public web site. 

4. ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

RECIPIENT shall take all reasonable action to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to archaeological and historic

archaeological sites, historic buildings/ structures, traditional cultural places, sacred sites, or other cultural resources, hereby
referred to as Cultural Resources. 

The RECIPIENT must agree to hold harmless ECOLOGY in relation to any claim related to Cultural Resources discovered, 

disturbed, or damaged due to the RECIPIENT' s project funded under this Agreement. 
RECIPIENT shall: 

a) Contact the ECOLOGY Program issuing the grant or loan to discuss any Cultural Resources requirements for their project: 

Cultural Resource Consultation and Review should be initiated early in the project planning process and must be completed

prior to expenditure of Agreement funds as required by applicable State and Federal requirements. 

For state funded construction, demolition, or land acquisitions, comply with Governor Executive Order 21- 02, Archaeological
and Cultural Resources. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 71 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 13 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

For projects with any federal involvement, comply with the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 ( Section 106). 

b) If required by the ECOLOGY Program, submit an Inadvertent Discovery Plan ( IDP) to ECOLOGY prior to implementing

any project that involves field activities. ECOLOGY will provide the IDP form. 
RECIPIENT shall: 

Keep the IDP at the project site. 

Make the IDP readily available to anyone working at the project site. 

Discuss the IDP with staff, volunteers, and contractors working at the project site. 

Implement the IDP when Cultural Resources or human remains are found at the project site. 

c) If any Cultural Resources are found while conducting work under this Agreement, follow the protocol outlined in the project
IDP. 

Immediately stop work and notify the ECOLOGY Program, who will notify the Department ofArchaeology and Historic

Preservation at ( 360) 586- 3065, any affected Tribe, and the local government. 

d) If any human remains are found while conducting work under this Agreement, follow the protocol outlined in the project
IDP. 

Immediately stop work and notify the local Law Enforcement Agency or Medical Examiner/ Coroner' s Office, the

Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation at ( 360) 790- 1633, and then the ECOLOGY Program. 

e) Comply with RCW 27. 53, RCW 27. 44, and RCW 68. 50. 645, and all other applicable local, state, and federal laws

protecting Cultural Resources and human remains. 

5. ASSIGNMENT

No right or claim of the RECIPIENT arising under this Agreement shall be transferred or assigned by the RECIPIENT. 

6. COMMUNICATION

RECIPIENT shall make every effort to maintain effective communications with the RECIPIENT' s designees, ECOLOGY, all

affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any interested individuals or groups. 

7. COMPENSATION

a) Any work performed prior to effective date of this Agreement will be at the sole expense and risk of the RECIPIENT. 

ECOLOGY must sign the Agreement before any payment requests can be submitted. 
b) Payments will be made on a reimbursable basis for approved and completed work as specified in this Agreement. 

c) RECIPIENT is responsible to determine if costs are eligible. Any questions regarding eligibility should be clarified with

ECOLOGY prior to incurring costs. Costs that are conditionally eligible require approval by ECOLOGY prior to expenditure. 

d) RECIPIENT shall not invoice more than once per month unless agreed on by ECOLOGY. 

e) ECOLOGY will not process payment requests without the proper reimbursement forms, Progress Report and supporting

documentation. ECOLOGY will provide instructions for submitting payment requests. 

f) ECOLOGY will pay the RECIPIENT thirty ( 30) days after receipt of a properly completed request for payment. 

g) RECIPIENT will receive payment through Washington State' s Office of Financial Management' s Statewide Payee Desk. 

To receive payment you must register as a statewide vendor by submitting a statewide vendor registration form and an IRS W -9

form at website, https:// ofin. wa.gov/ it-systems/ statewide- vendorpayee- services. If you have questions about the vendor

registration process, you can contact Statewide Payee Help Desk at ( 360) 407- 8180 or email PayeeRegistration@ofm. wa. gov. 

h) ECOLOGY may, at its sole discretion, withhold payments claimed by the RECIPIENT if the RECIPIENT fails to

satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Agreement. 

i) Monies withheld by ECOLOGY may be paid to the RECIPIENT when the work described herein, or a portion thereof, has

been completed if, at ECOLOGY' s sole discretion, such payment is reasonable and approved according to this Agreement, as
appropriate, or upon completion of an audit as specified herein. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 72 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology Page 14 of 20

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants
Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

j) RECIPIENT must submit within thirty ( 30) days after the expiration date of this Agreement, all financial, performance, and

other reports required by this Agreement. Failure to comply may result in delayed reimbursement. 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

RECIPIENT agrees to comply fully with all applicable federal, state and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits related to

this Agreement, including but not limited to: 

a) RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies of the United States and the State of

Washington which affect wages and job safety. 

b) RECIPIENT agrees to be bound by all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and policies against discrimination. 
c) RECIPIENT certifies full compliance with all applicable state industrial insurance requirements. 

d) RECIPIENT agrees to secure and provide assurance to ECOLOGY that all the necessary approvals and permits required

by authorities having jurisdiction over the project are obtained. RECIPIENT must include time in their project timeline for the

permit and approval processes. 

ECOLOGY shall have the right to immediately terminate for cause this Agreement as provided herein if the RECIPIENT fails to

comply with above requirements. 

If any provision of this Agreement violates any statute or rule of law of the state of Washington, it is considered modified to
conform to that statute or rule of law. 

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY agree that any officer, member, agent, or employee, who exercises any function or responsibility

in the review, approval, or carrying out of this Agreement, shall not have any personal or financial interest, direct or indirect, nor

affect the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/ she is a part, in this Agreement or the proceeds
thereof. 

10. CONTRACTING FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

RECIPIENT may contract to buy goods or services related to its performance under this Agreement. RECIPIENT shall award

all contracts for construction, purchase of goods, equipment, services, and professional architectural and engineering services

through a competitive process, if required by State law. RECIPIENT is required to follow procurement procedures that ensure
legal, fair, and open competition. 

RECIPIENT must have a standard procurement process or follow current state procurement procedures. RECIPIENT may be

required to provide written certification that they have followed their standard procurement procedures and applicable state law

in awarding contracts under this Agreement. 

ECOLOGY reserves the right to inspect and request copies of all procurement documentation, and review procurement

practices related to this Agreement. Any costs incurred as a result of procurement practices not in compliance with state

procurement law or the RECIPIENT' s normal procedures may be disallowed at ECOLOGY' s sole discretion. 

11. DISPUTES

When there is a dispute with regard to the extent and character of the work, or any other matter related to this Agreement the

determination of ECOLOGY will govern, although the RECIPIENT shall have the right to appeal decisions as provided for
below: 

a) RECIPIENT notifies the funding program of an appeal request. 

b) Appeal request must be in writing and state the disputed issue( s). 

c) RECIPIENT has the opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of its appeal. 
d) ECOLOGY reviews the RECIPIENT' s appeal. 

e) ECOLOGY sends a written answer within ten ( 10) business days, unless more time is needed, after concluding the review. 
Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 73 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 15 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

The decision of ECOLOGY from an appeal will be final and conclusive, unless within thirty ( 30) days from the date of such

decision, the RECIPIENT furnishes to the Director of ECOLOGY a written appeal. The decision of the Director or duly
authorized representative will be final and conclusive. 

The parties agree that this dispute process will precede any action in a judicial or quasi- judicial tribunal. 

Appeals of the Director' s decision will be brought in the Superior Court of Thurston County. Review of the Director' s decision
will not be taken to Environmental and Land Use Hearings Office. 

Pending final decision of a dispute, the RECIPIENT agrees to proceed diligently with the performance of this Agreement and in
accordance with the decision rendered. 

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to limit the parties' choice of another mutually acceptable method, in addition to the

dispute resolution procedure outlined above. 

12. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA STANDARDS

a) RECIPIENT shall prepare a Quality Assurance Project Plan ( QAPP) for a project that collects or uses environmental

measurement data. RECIPIENTS unsure about whether a QAPP is required for their project shall contact the ECOLOGY

Program issuing the grant or loan. If a QAPP is required, the RECIPIENT shall: 

Use ECOLOGY' s QAPP Template/ Checklist provided by the ECOLOGY, unless ECOLOGY Quality Assurance ( QA) 

officer or the Program QA coordinator instructs otherwise. 

Follow ECOLOGY' s Guidelines for Preparing Quality Assurance Project Plans for Environmental Studies, July 2004

Ecology Publication No. 04- 03- 030). 

Submit the QAPP to ECOLOGY for review and approval before the start of the work. 

b) RECIPIENT shall submit environmental data that was collected on a project to ECOLOGY using the Environmental
Information Management system ( EIM), unless the ECOLOGY Program instructs otherwise. The RECIPIENT must confirm

with ECOLOGY that complete and correct data was successfully loaded into EIM, find instructions at: 

http:// www. ecy. wa. gov/ eim. 
c) RECIPIENT shall follow ECOLOGY' s data standards when Geographic Information System ( GIS) data is collected and

processed. Guidelines for Creating and Accessing GIS Data are available at: 

https: Hecology. wa. gov/ Research- Data/ Data- resources/ Geographic- Information- Systems- GIS/ Standards. RECIPIENT, when

requested by ECOLOGY, shall provide copies to ECOLOGY of all final GIS data layers, imagery, related tables, raw data

collection files, map products, and all metadata and project documentation. 

13. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and the venue of any action brought hereunder will be

in the Superior Court of Thurston County. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION

ECOLOGY will in no way be held responsible for payment of salaries, consultant' s fees, and other costs related to the project

described herein, except as provided in the Scope of Work. 

To the extent that the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington permit, each party will indemnify and hold the other

harmless from and against any liability for any or all injuries to persons or property arising from the negligent act or omission of

that party or that parry' s agents or employees arising out of this Agreement. 

15. INDEPENDENT STATUS

The employees, volunteers, or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement will continue to be

employees, volunteers, or agents of that party and will not for any purpose be employees, volunteers, or agents of the other

party. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 74 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 16 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

16. KICKBACKS

RECIPIENT is prohibited from inducing by any means any person employed or otherwise involved in this Agreement to give up

any part of the compensation to which he/ she is otherwise entitled to or receive any fee, commission, or gift in return for award
of a subcontract hereunder. 

17. MINORITY AND WOMEN' S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES ( MWBE) 

RECIPIENT is encouraged to solicit and recruit, to the extent possible, certified minority -owned ( MBE) and women - owned

WBE) businesses in purchases and contracts initiated under this Agreement. 

Contract awards or rejections cannot be made based on MWBE participation; however, the RECIPIENT is encouraged to

take the following actions, when possible, in any procurement under this Agreement: 

a) Include qualified minority and women' s businesses on solicitation lists whenever they are potential sources of goods or
services. 

b) Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities, to permit maximum participation

by qualified minority and women' s businesses. 

c) Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which will encourage participation of qualified minority and
women' s businesses. 

d) Use the services and assistance of the Washington State Office of Minority and Women' s Business Enterprises ( OMWBE) 

866- 208- 1064) and the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the U. S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate. 

18. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of inconsistency in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving

precedence in the following order: ( a) applicable federal and state statutes and regulations; ( b) The Agreement; ( c) Scope of

Work; ( d) Special Terms and Conditions; ( e) Any provisions or terms incorporated herein by reference, including the

Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans"; ( f) Ecology Funding Program Guidelines; and ( g) 
General Terms and Conditions. 

19. PRESENTATION AND PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS

ECOLOGY reserves the right to approve RECIPIENT' s communication documents and materials related to the fulfillment of

this Agreement: 

a) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide a draft copy to ECOLOGY for review and approval ten ( 10) business days prior to

production and distribution. 

b) RECIPIENT shall include time for ECOLOGY' s review and approval process in their project timeline. 

c) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide ECOLOGY two ( 2) final copies and an electronic copy of any tangible products
developed. 

Copies include any printed materials, and all tangible products developed such as brochures, manuals, pamphlets, videos, audio

tapes, CDs, curriculum, posters, media announcements, or gadgets with a message, such as a refrigerator magnet, and any

online communications, such as web pages, blogs, and twitter campaigns. If it is not practical to provide a copy, then the

RECIPIENT shall provide a description ( photographs, drawings, printouts, etc.) that best represents the item. 

Any communications intended for public distribution that uses ECOLOGY' s logo shall comply with ECOLOGY' s graphic

requirements and any additional requirements specified in this Agreement. Before the use of ECOLOGY' s logo contact

ECOLOGY for guidelines. 

RECIPIENT shall acknowledge in the communications that funding was provided by ECOLOGY. 

20. PROGRESS REPORTING

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 75 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 17 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

a) RECIPIENT must satisfactorily demonstrate the timely use of funds by submitting payment requests and progress reports to
ECOLOGY. ECOLOGY reserves the right to amend or terminate this Agreement if the RECIPIENT does not document

timely use of funds. 

b) RECIPIENT must submit a progress report with each payment request. Payment requests will not be processed without a

progress report. ECOLOGY will define the elements and frequency of progress reports. 

c) RECIPIENT shall use ECOLOGY' s provided progress report format. 

d) Quarterly progress reports will cover the periods from January 1 through March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1 through

September 30, and October 1 through December 31. Reports shall be submitted within thirty ( 30) days after the end of the

quarter being reported. 

e) RECIPIENT must submit within thirty ( 30) days of the expiration date of the project, unless an extension has been approved

by ECOLOGY, all financial, performance, and other reports required by the Agreement and funding program guidelines. 

RECIPIENT shall use the ECOLOGY provided closeout report format. 
21. PROPERTY RIGHTS

a) Copyrights and Patents. When the RECIPIENT creates any copyrightable materials or invents any patentable property

under this Agreement, the RECIPIENT may copyright or patent the same but ECOLOGY retains a royalty free, nonexclusive, 

and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, recover, or otherwise use the material( s) or property, and to authorize others to

use the same for federal, state, or local government purposes. 

b) Publications. When the RECIPIENT or persons employed by the RECIPIENT use or publish ECOLOGY information; 

present papers, lectures, or seminars involving information supplied by ECOLOGY; or use logos, reports, maps, or other data

in printed reports, signs, brochures, pamphlets, etc., appropriate credit shall be given to ECOLOGY. 

c) Presentation and Promotional Materials. ECOLOGY shall have the right to use or reproduce any printed or graphic

materials produced in fulfillment of this Agreement, in any manner ECOLOGY deems appropriate. ECOLOGY shall

acknowledge the RECIPIENT as the sole copyright owner in every use or reproduction of the materials. 

d) Tangible Property Rights. ECOLOGY' s current edition of "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants
and Loans," shall control the use and disposition of all real and personal property purchased wholly or in part with funds

furnished by ECOLOGY in the absence of state and federal statutes, regulations, or policies to the contrary, or upon specific
instructions with respect thereto in this Agreement. 

e) Personal Property Furnished by ECOLOGY. When ECOLOGY provides personal property directly to the RECIPIENT

for use in performance of the project, it shall be returned to ECOLOGY prior to final payment by ECOLOGY. If said property

is lost, stolen, or damaged while in the RECIPIENT' s possession, then ECOLOGY shall be reimbursed in cash or by setoff by

the RECIPIENT for the fair market value of such property. 

f) Acquisition Projects. The following provisions shall apply if the project covered by this Agreement includes funds for the
acquisition of land or facilities: 

1. RECIPIENT shall establish that the cost is fair value and reasonable prior to disbursement of funds provided for in this
Agreement. 

2. RECIPIENT shall provide satisfactory evidence of title or ability to acquire title for each parcel prior to disbursement of

funds provided by this Agreement. Such evidence may include title insurance policies, Torrens certificates, or abstracts, and

attorney' s opinions establishing that the land is free from any impediment, lien, or claim which would impair the uses intended by
this Agreement. 

g) Conversions. Regardless of the Agreement expiration date, the RECIPIENT shall not at any time convert any equipment, 

property, or facility acquired or developed under this Agreement to uses other than those for which assistance was originally

approved without prior written approval of ECOLOGY. Such approval may be conditioned upon payment to ECOLOGY of

that portion of the proceeds of the sale, lease, or other conversion or encumbrance which monies granted pursuant to this

Agreement bear to the total acquisition, purchase, or construction costs of such property. 

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 76 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants
Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

22. RECORDS, AUDITS, AND INSPECTIONS

Page 18 of 20

RECIPIENT shall maintain complete program and financial records relating to this Agreement, including any engineering
documentation and field inspection reports of all construction work accomplished. 

All records shall: 

a) Be kept in a manner which provides an audit trail for all expenditures. 
b) Be kept in a common file to facilitate audits and inspections. 

c) Clearly indicate total receipts and expenditures related to this Agreement. 

d) Be open for audit or inspection by ECOLOGY, or by any duly authorized audit representative of the State of Washington, 

for a period of at least three ( 3) years after the final grant payment or loan repayment, or any dispute resolution hereunder. 

RECIPIENT shall provide clarification and make necessary adjustments if any audits or inspections identify discrepancies in the
records. 

ECOLOGY reserves the right to audit, or have a designated third party audit, applicable records to ensure that the state has

been properly invoiced. Any remedies and penalties allowed by law to recover monies determined owed will be enforced. 

Repetitive instances of incorrect invoicing or inadequate records may be considered cause for termination. 

All work performed under this Agreement and any property and equipment purchased shall be made available to ECOLOGY

and to any authorized state, federal or local representative for inspection at any time during the course of this Agreement and for

at least three ( 3) years following grant or loan termination or dispute resolution hereunder. 

RECIPIENT shall provide right of access to ECOLOGY, or any other authorized representative, at all reasonable times, in

order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and any other conditions under this Agreement. 

23. RECOVERY OF FUNDS

The right of the RECIPIENT to retain monies received as reimbursement payments is contingent upon satisfactory performance
of this Agreement and completion of the work described in the Scope of Work. 

All payments to the RECIPIENT are subject to approval and audit by ECOLOGY, and any unauthorized expenditure( s) or

unallowable cost charged to this Agreement shall be refunded to ECOLOGY by the RECIPIENT. 

RECIPIENT shall refund to ECOLOGY the full amount of any erroneous payment or overpayment under this Agreement. 

RECIPIENT shall refund by check payable to ECOLOGY the amount of any such reduction of payments or repayments within

thirty ( 30) days of a written notice. Interest will accrue at the rate of twelve percent ( 12%) per year from the time ECOLOGY
demands repayment of funds. 

Any property acquired under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, may become ECOLOGY' s property and the

RECIPIENT' s liability to repay monies will be reduced by an amount reflecting the fair value of such property. 

24. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by reference shall be held invalid, such

invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to

this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 
25. STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT ( SEPA) 

RECIPIENT must demonstrate to ECOLOGY' s satisfaction that compliance with the requirements of the State Environmental

Policy Act ( Chapter 43. 21C RCW and Chapter 197- 11 WAC) have been or will be met. Any reimbursements are subject to

this provision. 

26. SUSPENSION

When in the best interest of ECOLOGY, ECOLOGY may at any time, and without cause, suspend this Agreement or any

portion thereof for a temporary period by written notice from ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT. RECIPIENT shall resume

performance on the next business day following the suspension period unless another day is specified by ECOLOGY. 
Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 77 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 19 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

27. SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES

In order to sustain Washington' s natural resources and ecosystems, the RECIPIENT is fully encouraged to implement

sustainable practices and to purchase environmentally preferable products under this Agreement. 

a) Sustainable practices may include such activities as: use of clean energy, use of double - sided printing, hosting low impact

meetings, and setting up recycling and composting programs. 

b) Purchasing may include such items as: sustainably produced products and services, EPEAT registered computers and

imaging equipment, independently certified green cleaning products, remanufactured toner cartridges, products with reduced

packaging, office products that are refillable, rechargeable, and recyclable, 100% post -consumer recycled paper, and toxic free

products. 

For more suggestions visit ECOLOGY' s web page, Green Purchasing, 

https: Hecology. wa. gov/ Regulations- Permits/ Guidance- technical- assistance/ Sustainable- purchasing. 

28. TERMINATION

a) For Cause

ECOLOGY may terminate for cause this Agreement with a seven ( 7) calendar days prior written notification to the

RECIPIENT, at the sole discretion of ECOLOGY, for failing to perform an Agreement requirement or for a material breach of

any term or condition. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs

incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 
Failure to Commence Work. ECOLOGY reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if RECIPIENT fails to commence work

on the project funded within four ( 4) months after the effective date of this Agreement, or by any date mutually agreed upon in

writing for commencement of work, or the time period defined within the Scope of Work. 

Non -Performance. The obligation of ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT is contingent upon satisfactory performance by the

RECIPIENT of all of its obligations under this Agreement. In the event the RECIPIENT unjustifiably fails, in the opinion of

ECOLOGY, to perform any obligation required of it by this Agreement, ECOLOGY may refuse to pay any further funds, 

terminate in whole or in part this Agreement, and exercise any other rights under this Agreement. 

Despite the above, the RECIPIENT shall not be relieved of any liability to ECOLOGY for damages sustained by ECOLOGY

and the State of Washington because of any breach of this Agreement by the RECIPIENT. ECOLOGY may withhold

payments for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ECOLOGY from the RECIPIENT is
determined. 

b) For Convenience

ECOLOGY may terminate for convenience this Agreement, in whole or in part, for any reason when it is the best interest of

ECOLOGY, with a thirty ( 30) calendar days prior written notification to the RECIPIENT, except as noted below. If this

Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the

terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

Non -Allocation of Funds. ECOLOGY' s ability to make payments is contingent on availability of funding. In the event funding

from state, federal or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date and prior to the

completion or expiration date of this Agreement, ECOLOGY, at its sole discretion, may elect to terminate the Agreement, in

whole or part, or renegotiate the Agreement, subject to new funding limitations or conditions. ECOLOGY may also elect to

suspend performance of the Agreement until ECOLOGY determines the funding insufficiency is resolved. ECOLOGY may

exercise any of these options with no notification or restrictions, although ECOLOGY will make a reasonable attempt to provide
notice. 

In the event of termination or suspension, ECOLOGY will reimburse eligible costs incurred by the RECIPIENT through the

effective date of termination or suspension. Reimbursed costs must be agreed to by ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT. In no
Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 78 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 984CC6C0- 0E7B- 4B04- A140- 48E1 1 E4EFB26

State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: WQSWCAP- 2123- PoOrPW- 00135

Project Title: 2021- 2023 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Page 20 of 20

Recipient Name: City of Port Orchard

event shall ECOLOGY' s reimbursement exceed ECOLOGY' s total responsibility under the Agreement and any amendments. 

If payments have been discontinued by ECOLOGY due to unavailable funds, the RECIPIENT shall not be obligated to repay

monies which had been paid to the RECIPIENT prior to such termination. 

RECIPIENT' s obligation to continue or complete the work described in this Agreement shall be contingent upon availability of

funds by the RECIPIENT' s governing body. 

c) By Mutual Agreement

ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, by mutual written agreement. 

d) In Event of Termination

All finished or unfinished documents, data studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, reports or other materials

prepared by the RECIPIENT under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, will become property of ECOLOGY and the

RECIPIENT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such
documents and other materials. 

Nothing contained herein shall preclude ECOLOGY from demanding repayment of all funds paid to the RECIPIENT in

accordance with Recovery of Funds, identified herein. 

29. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

RECIPIENT shall ensure that in all subcontracts entered into by the RECIPIENT pursuant to this Agreement, the state of

Washington is named as an express third parry beneficiary of such subcontracts with full rights as such. 

30. WAIVER

Waiver of a default or breach of any provision of this Agreement is not a waiver of any subsequent default or breach, and will

not be construed as a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated as such in writing by the authorized
representative of ECOLOGY. 

End of General Terms and Conditions

Template Version 12/ 10/ 2020 Page 79 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4E Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the  Prepared by: Matt Brown 

 Purchase of Fifteen Mobile Radar Systems   Chief of Police 
 Via DES Master Contract No. 00218     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0012 
  Atty Review Date: April 6, 2023 

 
Summary:  In 2022, the Police Department recognized the need to replace its aging inventory of mobile radar 
systems. The replacement would include the mobile radar unit, dual antennas, and appropriate tuning forks. 
 
Staff conducted research and identified a mobile radar system that met the requirements of the department. The 
Police Department identified MPH Industries as an approved vendor for the desired mobile radar system, along 
with a corresponding State of Washington Department of Enterprise Services (DES) Master Contract No. 00281. As 
a member of DES, the City may utilize contracts procured and hosted by DES. Consistent with the City’s 
Procurement Policies and Procedures, staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by DES for this contract to 
confirm the City’s procurement requirements were met and obtained necessary documentation from DES and the 
vendor regarding procurement. On April 4, 2023, Police Department staff requested a quote from MPH Industries 
consistent with DES Master Contract No. 00218. On April 5, 2023, MPH Industries provided a quote of $19,885.05 
(applicable tax and shipping not included), which is consistent with DES contract rates. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the purchase of fifteen 
(15) mobile radar systems from MPH Industries through DES Master Contract No. 00218 for a total purchase price 
of $19,885.05 (applicable tax and shipping not included). 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A. 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the purchase of fifteen (15) mobile radar 
systems from MPH Industries through DES Master Contract No. 00218 for a purchase price of $19,885.05, plus 
applicable tax and shipping. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Costs for the replacement of mobile radar systems are budgeted in the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget. 
 
Alternatives:  Not authorize the Resolution and provide further guidance. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 
   Vendor Quote 
   ILA Checklist    

     
 

Page 80 of 318



        
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF MOBILE RADAR SYSTEMS FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND 
DOCUMENTING PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES.  
  
WHEREAS, the Police Department identified the need to replace its aging inventory of mobile 

radar systems; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City has an agreement with the Washington State Department of Enterprise 

Services (DES) which allows the City to utilize the contracts hosted by DES for services and purchases, so 
long as the City confirms the contract complies with all applicable statutory procurement requirements 
for the purchase or service, per RCW 39.34.030; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Police Department identified MPH Industries as an approved vendor for the 

desired mobile radar systems, awarded via DES Master Contract No. 00218; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by DES for this Master Contract to 

confirm the procurement requirements were met and obtained necessary documentation from DES and 
the vendor regarding procurement; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2023, Police Department staff requested a quote from MPH Industries, 
and on April 5, 2023, MPH Industries provided a quote of $19,885.05 (applicable tax and shipping not 
included), which is consistent with the DES Master Contract rates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 5, 2023, the City’s Police Department completed the Interlocal Agreement 
Purchase Checklist for the selected vendor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the amount of $30,000 in the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget 

for this purchase; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State Auditor's 
Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein for this purchase 
by Resolution; now, therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are hereby 
 adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 

THAT: The City Council approves the purchase of fifteen (15) mobile radar systems, from MPH 
Industries in the amount of $19,885.05 (applicable tax and shipping not included). The Mayor or 
his designee is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the purchase, consistent with 
this authorization. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures hereon. 

 

Page 81 of 318



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor, and attested by 
the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 11th day of April 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
City Clerk, Brandy Wallace, MMC 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82 of 318



Quote To:     Port Orchard Police Dept.
                      546 Bay St.
                      Port Orchard WA 98366
                      USA
         Phone: 206-876-1700            Fax: 
          Email: 
Customer #: 983663

Ship To:   Port Orchard Police Dept.
                 Attn:  Chief Matt Brown
                 546 Bay St.
                 Port Orchard, WA 98366
                 USA
 Phone #: 360-876-1700     Fax #:
Ship Via: Best Way GND

Chief Matt Brown (360)876-1700 mbrown@portorchardwa.gov  ** WA NASPO Contract # 00218 **  9.2% Tax
USD

Line Part RevDescription
1 PYT3STD-2K Python 3 standard radar with two K-band 

antennas, basic kit with remote control 
and tuning forks

-

 Sales Kit
WA Contract price:  Python III radar w/single K antenna $943 + $313 K rear antenna = $1,256

--------------- Kit Components ---------------
Kit Seq. Part Number Description Qty Per
1.001 991239 UNIT,PYT III, K-BAND,STD 1 EA
1.003 903389 FORK,TUNING,35MPH K 1 EA
1.002 990831 ANT ASSY,K-

BAND,PYTHON 3, 24in 24i
2 EA

1.004 903390 FORK,TUNING,65MPH K    
       

1 EA
Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA 1,256.00 18,840.00 

Line Part RevDescription
2 951388 BRKT,CRADLE,PTY3/RANGER ND

Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA

Line Part Rev DrawingDescription
7 951660 BRKT,2020+ Ford Interc SUV/Sedan A 951660A

Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA 69.67 1,045.05 
Line Part RevDescription

8 950961 BRKT,ANT,VISOR,MOUNT A
Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA

Line Part RevDescription
9 950963 BRKT,ANT,CLAM.W/L -

Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA
Line Part RevDescription

10 909866G02 CABLE,ANT EXT ,5FT,PYT 3 ND
Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA

Line Part RevDescription
11 909866G03 CABLE,ANT EXTENSION,25FT,PYT 3 ND

Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:15 EA
Line Part RevDescription

12 NASPO Contract NASPO Master Contract # 00218
Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:1 EA

Line Part RevDescription
13 550004 $0 Shipping per contract

QuotForm: SDH-PROD:Ver1.4 (2021-08-05) For detail Terms of Sale, please go to http://mpdinc.com/cos.htm 1 of 2Page:

QUOTE: 33955

MPH Industries, Inc.
316 East 9th Street
Owensboro KY 42303
Phone: 888-689-9222
Fax: 270-685-6288 Sales Person: Toni Thompson

            Phone: 888-689-9222
                 Fax: 270-685-6288
              Email: tcthompson@mphindustries.com

         Date: 4/5/2023
    Expires: 6/4/2023
Reference: 
Terms: NET 30 DAYS

Page 83 of 318

http://mpdinc.com/cos.htm


Quantity Unit Price Ext Price:1 EA

QUOTE - Miscellaneous Charge -
1,829.42Sales Tax

21,714.47Total:
Plus shipping and any applicable taxes

QuotForm: SDH-PROD:Ver1.4 (2021-08-05)

Thank you for an opportunity to quote.

For detail Terms of Sale, please go to http://mpdinc.com/cos.htm 2 of 2Page:

QUOTE: 33955

MPH Industries, Inc.
316 East 9th Street
Owensboro KY 42303
Phone: 888-689-9222
Fax: 270-685-6288 Sales Person: Toni Thompson

            Phone: 888-689-9222
                 Fax: 270-685-6288
              Email: tcthompson@mphindustries.com

         Date: 4/5/2023
    Expires: 6/4/2023
Reference: 
Terms: NET 30 DAYS

Page 84 of 318

http://mpdinc.com/cos.htm
toni_thompson
Highlight



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
PURCHASES THROUGH INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS 

 

City Contract No.: C057-13 
Interlocal Agreement with the Host Agency (government agency or Purchasing Co-Op name):  
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services 
Item Description: ___Mobile radar systems_______________               
               
 

Do you have an Interlocal agreement signed with the Contract (host) Agency? 
☒  If yes, where is it filed:  Clerks Office 
☐  If no, get a mutually signed Agreement in place before you continue. 

 

PCA Contract No.#: Contract No. 00218    
If you have an Office of State Procurement (OSP) contract number you may skip the remainder of this test 
because the OSP contracts comply with remaining requirements and retain the documentation on hand for 
SAO to review in the OSP offices. 
 

Is this a technology contract?     
☐  If yes, do your own rules allow for technology contracts to be negotiated? 
☐  If your own rules allow for negotiated IT contracts, you can skip this test. 

 

Is this a services contract?     
☐  If yes, do your own rules allow services to be negotiated? 
☐  If your own rules allow for negotiated services, you can skip the remainder of the test. 
 

Are you using this as only one of multiple quotes, for a small purchase?     
☐  If yes, you can skip the remainder of the test.  Your purchase will not mandate the sealed bid rules. 
☐  If no, complete the remainder of the checklist. 
 

Checklist for Required Compliance 
Is the Host agency a public agency1?  ☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, what state laws apply to Host Agency: 

Texas 
Does the host agency have a requirement 
to run a newspaper ad in their local paper 
and did they comply 

☒  Yes ☐ No See RFP on file. 

Did they list on the public agency’s 
website?  

☒  Yes ☐ No See RFP on file. 

Did the bid & award comply with the 
Host agency’s state procurement laws? 

☒  Yes ☐ No See documentation on file. 

 

 
1 RCW 39.34.020 (1), “public agency” means any agency, political subdivision, or unit of local government of this state including, but 
not limited to, municipal corporations, quasi municipal corporations, special purpose districts, and local service districts; any agency 
of the state government; any agency of the United States; any Indian tribe recognized as such by the federal government; and any 
political subdivision of another state 

Page 85 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4F Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract Prepared by: Nick Bond 

 No. 074-21 with CodePros, LLC for Plan  DCD Director 
 Review and Building Inspection Services     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0011 – DCD 
  Atty Review Date: March 31, 2023 

 
Summary:  Due to the volume of building and development permit and plans submitted to the City, the City 
utilizes consulting services to assist staff with plan review and building inspections to ensure that the need is 
timely met. On July 13, 2022, the City executed a Professional Service Agreement with CodePros, LLC, a 
qualified consultant, for Plan Review and Building Inspection Services (Contract C074-21), after selecting 
CodePros from the MRSC Professional Services Roster for this service. On April 12, 2022, the City executed 
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement to increase the total compensation limit for the remaining term due to 
an influx of additional work. Staff desires to extend the term of the Agreement to continue the use of 
CodePros LLC for this service for an additional year. There is currently capacity in the monetary cap for this 
Agreement, so this is a time-only extension.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 
2 to C074-21, extending the term of the Agreement by one (1) year. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A. 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 
C074-21 with CodePros LLC for Plan Review and Building Inspection Services. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   None expected; current budget and contract authority should cover this extension.  
 
Alternatives:   Not authorize and provide further guidance. 
 
Attachments:  Amendment No. 2 
   Amendment No. 1 
   Contract No. C074-21 

     
 

Page 86 of 318



IMANAGE\366922\0001\10648029.v1-3/31/23 

 
 

Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C074-21 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
WITH CODEPROS LLC 

 

THIS AMENDMENT to Contract No. C074-21 (“Amendment”) is made effective as of the 
date of mutual execution hereof, by and between the City of Port Orchard (“City), a municipal 
corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Washington, and CodePros LLC, a limited 
liability company organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing business 
at PO Box 185, Allyn, WA 98524 (“Consultant”).  

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2022, the City executed a Professional Service Agreement with 
Consultant, for the provision of Plan Review and Building Inspection Services (“Underlying 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2022, the City executed Amendment No. 1 to the Underlying 
Agreement to increase the total compensation limit for the term of the Underlying Agreement due 
to an influx of additional work; and  

WHEREAS, due to an increased need for the services provided by the Consultant the City 
desires to extend the term of the Underlying Agreement to ensure that these services may continue 
and are not disrupted; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant and the City have conferred and have agreed to extend the term 
of the Underlying Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to memorialize their agreement to so amend the Underlying 
Agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 In consideration of the mutual benefits accruing, it is agreed by and between the parties 
thereto as follows:  

1. Section 3 of the Underlying Agreement (C055-22) between the parties is amended to extend 
the term of the Agreement until April 17, 2024.  
 

2. In all other respects, the Underlying Agreement between the parties shall remain in full force 
and effect, amended as set forth herein, but only as set forth herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the day and year 

set forth above. 
 

Page 87 of 318



IMANAGE\366922\0001\10648029.v1-3/31/23 

 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, 
WASHINGTON 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 
 

Page 88 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 87930FB3-B4BE-4145-87E9-C2864EA9535C

Page 89 of 318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 87930FB3-B4BE-4145-87E9-C2864EA9535C

Page 90 of 318



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS Agreement is made effective as of the 13`' day of July 2021, by and between the City of Port
Orchard, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Washington, whose address is: 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON ( hereinafter the " CITY") 

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, Washington 98366

Contact: Mayor Robert Putaansuu Phone: 360. 876. 4407 Fax: 360. 895. 9029

and CodePros, a limited liability company, organized under the laws of the State of Washington, 
doing business at: 

P. O. Box 185

Allyn, WA 98524 ( hereinafter the " CONSULTANT") 

Contact: Michael Barth, M.P. C. Phone: 360- 801- 0543 E- mail: mbarth@codeproswa. com

for professional, supplemental building department services. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant. 

A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit " A." The services performed by the Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work
without prior written authorization from the City. In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all
times comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and regulations applicable to the performance of such
services. The Consultant shall perform the services diligently and completely in accordance with
professional standards of conduct and performance for Consultant' s profession. 

B. The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of Work. 
Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall be agreed to by the
parties and incorporated in written amendments to the Agreement. 

2. Schedule of Work. 

A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in accordance
with the tasks identified within Exhibit " A" and the terms of this Agreement. If delays beyond the

Consultant' s reasonable control occur, the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether an
extension is appropriate. 

B. As set out on Exhibit A, the City authorizes the Consultant to perform plan reviews and
inspections of buildings and structures within the incorporated boundaries of the City based upon the
Washington State Building Codes; and any other adopted codes and state and local amendments, or

City Qf Port Orchard and CodePros. LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21

UAConrracts\ 2021\ C074- 21 CodePros\ C074- 21 CodePros. docx, 

Iofl1

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 91 of 318



applicable State and Federal requirements, and other City adopted regulations, standards, and requirements
related to building construction ( collectively, the " City' s Codes"). 

3. Terms. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one year, beginning January 1, 2021
Initial Term"). The Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional one year term
Renewal Term"), unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. Prior

to the expiration of the Renewal Term, the City and the Consultant may negotiate an additional
extension of the Agreement, which may be executed as an amendment to this Agreement with City
Council approval. 

4. Compensation. 

X OTHER. 

In consideration of the Consultant providing such services, the City shall pay the Consultant for the
services performed in accordance with the fee schedule included herein as " Exhibit B — Fee

Schedule for Building Department Services Provided by CodePros". Fees will be billed and

submitted by the Consultant to the City on a monthly basis, as described in Section 5 below. The
total compensation for services under this contract shall not exceed $ 140, 000. 

Consistent with Exhibit B, plan review and permit fees shall be based on project valuation as
determined by the City and shall be defined as the total value of all construction work for which
the permit is issued and shall include but not be limited to: all finish work., painting, roofing, 
electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, elevators, fire extinguishing systems, permanent
equipment, architectural/ engineering services and contractors profit. The valuation shall be, at a
minimum, as determined by utilizing the most recently published " Square Foot Construction Costs" 
table published by the International Code Council in its " Building Safety Journal" 
magazine. Building permit fees are based on the fee schedule adopted by the City of Port Orchard
in Resolution 034- 20. Plan Review fees shall be established as 65% of the permit fee. 

The compensation set forth in Exhibit B is inclusive of all costs of any nature associated with the
Company' s efforts, including but not limited to salaries, benefits, expenses, overhead, 

administration, profits, expenses, and outside consultant or subcontractor fees. As the Company is
an independent contractor, the Municipality shalt have no liability or responsibility for any direct
payment of any salaries, wages, payroll taxes, or any and all other forms or types of compensation
or benefits to any personnel performing inspection services for the Municipality under this
Agreement. 

5. Payment. 

A. The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly after services have been performed, along with monthly invoices in a format acceptable to the City
for work performed to the date of the invoice. 

B. All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of a proper
invoice. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the Consultant of the same
within fifteen ( 15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and
the parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion. 

City ofPort Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 2! 
UAContrwts\ 2021\ C074- 21 CodePros\ 074- 21 CoddIrmdoex

2ofll

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 92 of 318



C. The Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement available
for inspection by City representatives for three ( 3) years after final payment unless a longer period is
required by a third -party agreement. Copies shall be made available on request. 

D. On the effective date of this Agreement ( or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall comply
with all federal and state laws applicable to independent contractors, including, but not limited to, the
maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all items of income and expenses of the

Consultant' s business, pursuant to Revised Code of Washington ( RCW) 51. 08. 195, as required by law, to
show that the services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer - 
employee relationship between the parties, which is subject to Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance. 

E. If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement, the Consultant will

correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may withhold payment for such work
until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement. 

6. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

A. The Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed, color, 
national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by federal, state, or
local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification. 

B. Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control and

direct the performance and details of the work authorized under this Agreement, the work must meet the
approval of the City and shall be subject to the City' s general right of inspection to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof. The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state and municipal laws, rules and
regulations that are now effective or become applicable within the term( s) of this Agreement to the

Consultant' s business, equipment and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or
accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

C. The Consultant shall obtain a City of Port Orchard business license prior to commencing
work pursuant to a written Notice to Proceed. 

D. Violation of this Paragraph 6 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for
cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in whole or in part, and may result
in ineligibility for further work for the City. 

7. Relationship of Parties. The parties intend that an independent contractor -client relationship will
be created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an independently established
trade which encompasses the specific service provided to the City hereunder, no agent, employee, 
representative or sub -consultant of the Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, 

representative or sub -consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details of the work, the
City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement. None of the benefits provided by
the City to its employees, including but not limited to compensation, insurance, and unemployment
insurance, are available from the City to the employees, agents, representatives or sub -consultants of the
Consultant. The Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 

City ofPort Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21
ITACoatraca\ 2021\ C074- 21 CodePros\ 074- 21 CodePros. do" 

3of11

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 93 of 318



employees, representatives and sub -consultants during the performance of this Agreement. The City may, 
during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to perform the same or similar
work that the Consultant performs hereunder. 

8. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

A. Termination without cause. This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time for
public convenience, for the Consultant' s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the Consultant' s assignment for the
benefit of creditors. 

B. Termination with cause. This Agreement may be terminated upon the default of the
Consultant and the failure of the Consultant to cure such default within a reasonable time after receiving
written notice of the default. 

C. Rights Upon Termination. 

1. With or Without Cause. Upon termination for any reason, all finished or unfinished
documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall
be submitted to the City, and the Consultant shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for
any satisfactory work completed prior to the date of termination, not to exceed the total
compensation set forth herein. The Consultant shall not be entitled to any reallocation of cost, 
profit or overhead. The Consultant shall not in any event be entitled to anticipated profit on work
not performed because of such termination. The Consultant shall use its best efforts to minimize
the compensation payable under this Agreement in the event of such termination. Upon

termination, the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise. 

D. Suspension or Termination. Either party to this Agreement may suspend or terminate this
Agreement upon thirty ( 30) days written notice to the other party. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to a suspension shall be limited to the Consultant' s reasonable expenses and shall be subject

to verification. The Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement without delay
when a suspension period ends. 

E. Notice of Termination or Suspension. If delivered to the Consultant in person, termination
shall be effective immediately upon the Consultant' s receipt of the City' s written notice or such date as
stated in the City' s notice of termination, whichever is later. Notice of suspension shall be given to the
Consultant in writing upon one week' s advance notice to the Consultant. Such notice shall indicate the

anticipated period of suspension. Notice of suspension or termination shall be delivered to the Consultant, 
or to the City at the addresses set forth in Section 15 herein. 

9. Standard of Care. The Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately accredited and
licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by the Consultant under
this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in similar circumstances. 

10. Ownership of Work Product. 

A. All data, materials, reports, memoranda, and other documents developed under this

Agreement whether finished or not shall become the property of the City, shall be forwarded to the City at

City ofPor! Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21
U:\ Cmtracts\ 2021\ C074- 21 Codefts\ 074- 21 CodePros. docx

4 of 11

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 94 of 318



its request and may be used by the City as it sees fit. Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to
paragraph 8 above, all finished or unfinished documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City. Any reuse or modification of such documents, 
reports or other material or work of the Consultant for purposes other than those intended by the Consultant
in its scope of services under this Agreement shall be at the City' s risk. 

B. All written information submitted by the City to the Consultant in connection with the
services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at
least the same extent as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in the Consultant' s possession or known to it, or is rightfully
obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no responsibility for its disclosure, 
inadvertent or otherwise. The Consultant is permitted to disclose any such information only to the extent
required by law, subpoena or other court order. 

11. Work Performed at the Consultant' s Risk. The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary
and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents and sub -consultants in the performance of
the work hereunder, and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be done at
the Consultant' s own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, 
tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use in connection with the work. 

12. Indemnification. The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, 
including al I legal costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of
the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries or damages caused by the sole
negligence of the City. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4. 24. 115, then, 
in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused
by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers, the Consultant' s liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the
Consultant' s negligence. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement. 

If any cause, claim, or administrative proceeding is commenced in which the enforceability and/ or validity
of any City ordinance, rule or regulation is at issue, the City shall defend the claims at its sole expense and
ifjudgment is entered or damages are awarded for those claims against the Consultant, the City shall satisfy
the same, including all chargeable costs and attorney fees attributed to those claims, except for injuries or
damages caused by the sole negligence of the Consultant. 

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE

INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT' S WAIVER OF

IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES

OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE

MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. 

0. Insurance. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or
employees. 

City of Porl Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21
U' Tonvwm\ 202RC074- 21 CodePros\ C074- 21 CodePros. docx

5of11

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 95 of 318



A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non -owned, hired and ] eased
vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office ( ISO) form CA 00 01

or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy
shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG

00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall cover
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and personal injury
and advertising injury. The City shall be named by endorsement as an additional
insured under the Consultant' s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with
respect to the work performed for the City. 

3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the
State of Washington. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant' s profession. 

B. Minimum Amounts of Insurance

Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damage of $1, 000, 000 per accident. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than

1, 000, 000 each occurrence, $ 2, 000, 000 general aggregate. 

3. Workers' Compensation Employer' s Liability each accident $ 1, 000, 000, Employer' s
Liability Disease each employee $ 1, 000, 000, and Employer' s Liability Disease — 
Policy Limit $ 1, 000, 000. 

4. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $ 1, 000, 000

per claim and $ 1, 000, 000 policy aggregate limit. 

C. Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for
Automobile Liability, Professional Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance: 

1. The Consultant' s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the City. 
Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall
be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and shal I not contribute with it. 

2. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any policy cancellation, 
within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

City of Port Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract Alo. 074- 21
UTontracrs\ 2021\C074- 21 CodePros\ C074-21 CodePros. doo 6

of 11 Rev

7/I8/ 2019

Page 96 of 318



3. The City will not waive its right to subrogation against the Consultant. The
Consultant' s insurance shall be endorsed acknowledging that the City will not waive
their right to subrogation. The Consultant' s insurance shall be endorsed to waive the

right of subrogation against the City, or any self- insurance, or insurance pool coverage
maintained by the City. 

4. If any coverage is written on a " claims made" basis, then a minimum of a three ( 3) year
extended reporting period shall be included with the claims made policy, and proof of
this extended reporting period provided to the City. 

D. Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 

E. Verification of Coverage

The Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, 
evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

14. Assigning or Subcontracting. The Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract or encumber
any rights, duties, or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of
the City, which consent may be withheld in the sole discretion of the City. 

15. Notice. Any notices required to be given by the City to the Consultant or by the Consultant to the City
shall be in writing and delivered to the parties at the following addresses: 

Robert Putaansuu

Mayor

216 Prospect Street

Port Orchard, WA 98366

Phone: 360. 876. 4407

Fax: 360. 895. 9029

CONSULTANT

CodePros, LLC, Attn: Michael Barth

Building Official/ Managing Member
P. O. Box 185

Allyn, WA 98524

Phone: 360- 801- 0543

E- mait: mbarth@bcodeproswa. com

16. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law. 

A. Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Mayor, who shall determine the term

or provision' s true intent or meaning. The Mayor shall also decide all questions which may arise between
the parties relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance hereunder. 

B. If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor' s determination in a reasonable time, or if the
Consultant does not agree with the Mayor' s decision on a disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting
litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington. 

C. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Washington. In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the

City of Port Orchard and CodePros. LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 
UAStaff Reports GS50- 05A- 13\ 2021\ 20210713i7D 02 2020 MASTER Prof Svcs template CA Approved. docx

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

7ofII

Page 97 of 318



substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and reasonable attorneys' 
fees from the other party. 

17. General Provisions. 

A. Non -waiver of Breach. The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any
of the covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein contained in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, agreements, or options, 

and the same shall be in full force and effect. 

B. Modification. No waiver, alteration, modification of any of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant. 

C. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any
provision of this Agreement is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of
any other provision. 

D. Entire Agreement. The written provisions of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits
attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative of the City, 
and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or altering
in any manner whatsoever, the Agreement or the Agreement documents. The entire agreement between
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and the Exhibits
attached hereto, which may or may not have been dated prior to the execution of this Agreement. All of
the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and form the Agreement document as fully
as if the same were set forth herein. Should any language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement conflict
with any language contained in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail. 

18. Title VI

The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 
42 U.S. C. 2000d to 2000d- 4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation

subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively insure that its contracts
comply with these regulations. 

Therefore, during the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and
successors in interest agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Consultant will comply with the Acts and the Regulations
relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally - assisted programs of the U- S. Department of
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration ( FHWA), as they may be amended from time to
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

2. Nondiscrimination: The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during this
Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 
disability, income - level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant will not participate directly or

City of Porl Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21
UACwcrscts12021% C074- 21 CodePros\ C074- 21 CodePros. docx

8 of 1 1

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 98 of 318



indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as set forth in Exhibit
C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, including employment practices
when this Agreement covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49
C. F. R. part 21. 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each
potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant' s
obligations under this Agreement and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non- discrimination

on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, income -level, or LEP. 

Information and Reports: The Consultant will provide all information and reports required by
the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its
books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the City or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and
instructions. Where any information required of the Consultant is in the exclusive possession of
another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Consultant will so certify to the City
or the FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: in the event of the Consultant' s noncompliance with the Non- 

discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the City will impose such contract sanctions as it or
the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

l . withholding payments to the Consultant under the Agreement until the contractor
complies; and/ or

2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Agreement, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Consultant will include the provisions of paragraphs one

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, 
unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant
will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the City or the FHWA may
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, 
that if the Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or
supplier because of such direction, the Consultant may request the City to enter into any litigation
to protect the interests of the City. In addition, the Consultant may request the United States to
enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year set forth
above. 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, CONSULTANT

WASHINGTON

By: By: 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor

Name: Michael Barth

ATTEST/ AUTHEN—TJQATE: 

City of Pori Orchard
Professional Service, * _ 

WContract5\ 2021TON- 21 (' p ePl6a(` R.W1 Codepqkdw

SEAL 3

91 r:;MBE;s1` 
110011 111 iiSµ` 

Title: Managing Member

9of11

Rev 7/ 18i2019

Page 99 of 318



Brandy Rinearson, MMC
City Clerk

APPROV - 1jS TO FORM: 

By: 
J/ 

Otte A. Archer, City Attorney

City of Port Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No, 074- 21
UACwtraas= IkC074- 21 Co& Pms%C074- 21 CodeProxdocx Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

10of11

Page 100 of 318



Exhibit C

During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and successors in
interest agrees to comply with the following non- discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not
limited to: 

Pertinent Non - Discrimination Authorities: 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 ( 42 U S. C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), ( prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin), and 49 C. F. R. Part 2L

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, ( 42
U. S. C. § 4601), ( prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been
acquired because of Federal or Federal - aid programs and projects); 
Federal - Aid Highway Act of 1973, ( 23 U. S. C. § 324 et seq.), ( prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex); 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, ( 29 U. S. C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, ( prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C. F. R. Part 27; 
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, ( 42 U S. C. § 6101 et seq.), ( prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age); 

Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, ( 49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as amended, 
prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of I987, ( PL 100- 209), ( Broadened the scope, coverage and

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms " programs
or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal -aid recipients, sub - 
recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 
Titles I1 and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis
of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems; places
of public accommodation, and certain testing entities ( 42 U. S. C. §§ 121.3I- 12189) as

implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C. P. R. parts 37 and 38; 
The Federal Aviation Administration' s Non- discrimination statute ( 49 U. S. C. § 47123) ( prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race. color, national origin, and sex); 

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low -Income Populations. which ensures discrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low- income populations; 
Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination
because of limited English proficiency ( LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take
reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs ( 70 Fed. 
Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities ( 20 U. S. C. 1681 et seq). 

City of Port Orchard and CodePros, LLC
Professional Service Agreement Contract No. 074- 21
UACmtram\ 2021kC074- 21 Codefts% 074- 21 CodePros. doc. 

II of I[ 

Rev 7/ 18/ 2019

Page 101 of 318



EXHIBIT A

Scope of Work/ List of Services Provided by CodePros, LLC for the City of Port Orchard, WA
CodePros Professional Services Agreement dated 5u,, e C3 , 2021. 

Note: This list of services can be updated and amended as necessary to ensure the City' s needs are
met and the services provided satisfy the City, property owners, and the building community. 

Plan Review services provided as part of the agreement
Perform plan review on select building projects in the City on a non- exclusive, as -needed basis as
requested by the City' s building official or administrator. These may include any type of construction
project, such as, without limitation: single- family residential construction; multi - family residential
construction; new commercial, industrial, and institutional construction; as well as tenant

improvements and/ or remodeling projects in any existing buildings. 

Building plan review will, as directed by City staff, include review of foundation systems, structural
systems, plumbing and mechanical systems and energy code provisions to determine compliance
with the Washington State Building Code, along with the Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel -Gas and Energy
Codes, and any local amendments adopted by the City of Port Orchard. Follow- up plan review of
corrections of identified items is included. 

Plan Review turn -around time -frame_ 

Project Size based on Valuation: 

IRC Residential Projects

IBC Small Commercial Project

Valuation less than $ 11VI) 

IBC Large Commercial Project

Valuation $ 1M to $ 10M) 

IBC Exceptionally Large Project

Valuation greater than $ 10M) 

ets are as follows

Plan Review Turnaround time to

first comments: 

Goal

10 working days 95% 

15 working days 95% 

20 working days 99% 

i
i

25 working days
I
i

99% 

Other Services provided as part of the agreement: 

o Provide code interpretations and professional opinions as requested by the City
o On -call building inspections as requested by the City ( minimum 48 hours notice) 
o Communicate and coordinate efforts with professional partner employees, service providers, 

and other jurisdiction staff, elected officials and other agencies
o Provide regular status and activity reports
o Maintain proper legal records, provide document storage, and respond to public disclosure

records requests

By acceptance of the Professional Service Agreement and Exhibits A & B, the City hereby authorizes
the Consultant to perform supplemental building plan review services and/ or building and structure
inspections services within the incorporated boundaries of the City on an as -needed, non- exclusive
basis as directed by City staff based upon the Washington State Building Codes and any other
adopted codes and state and local amendments, or applicable State and Federal requirements, and

other City adopted regulations, standards, and requirements related to building construction
collectively, the " City' s Codes"). 

CodePros. LLC, City of Port Orchard - Service Agreement Exhibit A

Page 102 of 318



EXHIBIT B

Fee Schedule for Building Department Services by CodePros, LLC. 
for the City of Port Orchard. 

CodePros Services Agreement dated ALL,, 1, , 2021. 

CodePros' Plan Review Service Fees: 

o Building Plan Review Service Fee ( Commercial > $ 1 M) 55% of City' s review fee
o Building Plan Review Service Fee ( Commercial = < $ 1 M) 60% of City' s review fee
o Building Plan Review Service Fee ( New 1- 2 Family Residential) 65% of City' s review fee
o Building Plan Review Service Fee ( Other Residential) 75% of City' s review fee
o Attendance of Pre- Ap conference for projects > $ 1 M valuation no charge

o Attendance of Pre- Ap conference for projects =<$ 1 M valuation $ 50. 00 per hour
o Fire Code Plan Review $ 80. 00 per hour

Plan review and permit fees that are the basis of this agreement shall be based on the fee schedule as adopted by the City of Port
Orchard, utilizing the fee table as shown in the city' s adopted fee resolution ( 034- 20), as of the date of this agreement. Plan Review
fees are established as 65% of the permit fee. Project valuations shall be defined as the total value of all construction work for which
the permit is issued, and shall include but not be limited to: roofing, electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, elevators, fire
extinguishing systems, and permanent equipment. The valuation shall be, at a minimum, as determined by utilizing the most recently
published " Square Foot Construction Costs" table published by the International Code Council in its " Building Safety Journal" magazine.) 

Other Fees: 

o Supplemental On -Call building inspections
o Project Support ( upon specific request of jurisdiction) 
o Inspections outside of business hours

o Investigative Services and/ or testimony
o Code Enforcement Activities ( as requested by City) 
o Code consultation and/ or code interpretation, 

not associated with plan review services above
o Analysis of alternate methods and/ or materials

o Structural engineering review by P. E. ( projects<$ 4M) 

o Structural engineering review by P. E. ( projects>$ 4M) 

Terms: 

70. 00 per hour
65% of City' s review & permit fee

120. 00 per hour, ( 2 hour minimum) 
150. 00 per hour
95. 00 per hour

80. 00 per hour
80. 00 per hour
actual costs) 

no additional charge

CodePros bills for the previous month, by the third business day of the month, payable within 30
days. Plan review: 60% of fee due upon first comments, the remaining 40% upon completion of

the final review. If billing discrepancies are identified by the City, such discrepancy shall be
brought to the attention of the Company prior to the payment due date. 

CodePros. LLC, City of Port Orchard - Service Agreement Exhibit B

Page 103 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4G Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Certain Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Personal Property as Surplus and   City Clerk 
 Authorizing its Disposition Thereof     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Assets of the City that are no longer useable, are no longer of value to the City, or are surplus to 
City needs, may be removed from City ownership, sold, or in any other way disposed with a declaration of 
surplus by the City Council.  
 
Staff is asking the Council to surplus various personal property of various computers and equipment, cell 
phones, a paver, motorcycles, cameras, radar, and a typewriter belonging to the General Fund. In addition, a 
2007 Dodge Ram 3500, Sweeper, and a camera belonging to the Sewer and/or Stormwater Funds. All of the 
items have reached the end of their useful life.  The Finance department has estimated the current value of 
all the property to be $1,520. While some of the items were acquired for public utility purposes, the value of 
the property is less than $50,000, therefore a public hearing is not required, pursuant to RCW 35.94.040(2). 
 
Although the City’s internal asset value of the items have been determined to be of no value, any monies 
from the sale of surplus property will be deposited into the Fund(s) which owned the item. When disposal is 
to the general public through direct sale, sealed bid or auction, final determination of value shall be the 
highest responsible bid or offer.  The City may transfer a surplus asset to another public agency upon written 
request and a determination that it is in the public interest. Staff will dispose the items in a manner that 
reflects the best interest of the City. 

 
Recommendation: Staff is recommending adoption of a resolution declaring personal property described in 
Exhibit A and B, as surplus and allowing for its disposition. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to adopt a resolution declaring personal property, owned by the General, 
Sewer, and/or Stormwater Funds assigned to the items listed in Exhibit A and B, as surplus and authorizing 
its disposition. 
 
Fiscal Impact: Money received from the disposition of surplus items will be deposited into the Fund of 
ownership.  
 
Alternatives: Do not adopt. 
 
Attachments: Resolution and list of personal property, Exhibit A and B. 

Page 104 of 318



RESOLUTION NO.  ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DECLARING 
CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITS 
DISPOSITION THEREOF 

 
 WHEREAS, certain personal property owned by the General, Sewer, and/or Stormwater 
Funds of the City of Port Orchard have become surplus to the needs of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the current asset value of the items 
to be $1,520; and 
 
 WHEREAS, some of the items were acquired for public utility purposes, the value of the 
property is less than $50,000, therefore a public hearing it not required, pursuant to RCW 
35.94.040(2); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has, pursuant to the requirements of POMC 1.30.020, 
considered the possible future requirements of the City, the present value of the personal 
property, the likelihood of locating a buyer, possible intergovernmental cooperation, and the 
general welfare of the citizens of Port Orchard in determining whether it is in the best interest 
of the City to dispose of such personal property; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to dispose various personal property as listed in Exhibit A 
and B, in the best interest of the City; now, therefore, 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: Personal property listed in Exhibit A and B are declared as surplus to the 
needs of the City. Staff is instructed to dispose of the items in a manner that reflects 
the best interest of the City. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 11th day of April 2023. 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 105 of 318



Attachment A - Governmental
Asset # Department Year Description serial number Est. Value reason to 

surplus
3001 Police 1986 Kawasaki motorcycle Vin#JKAKZCP26GB503953 500 obsolete
3119 Police 2002 BMW motorcycle Vin# RT1100P 1000 obsolete

na Finance 1982 IBM typewriter - 20 obsolete

5976 IT cell phone 358838237768560 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5249 IT MIFI 4G LTE GLOBAL USB U620L 990000000000000 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5260 IT Cell phone 4750c15ed1b3bada 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5280 IT Modem 990000000000000 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5281 IT Modem 990000000000000 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5140 IT Cell phone DX3G40RVPLJN 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5154 IT Cell phone DX3XNJZPHG6W 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5157 IT Cell phone DX3XNL2THG6W 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5207 IT Cell phone 11fbb7b36d9acf55 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5250 IT Cell phone 357000000000000 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5629 IT Iphone 12 355658230626158 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5816 IT Ipad DMPXF5EZKF88 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5833 IT MIFI 4g LTE GLOBAL USB U620L 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5958 General remote desktop unit 10235712
0 obsolete/ 

returned

5962 IT Cellular modem 9900013100336070 0
obsolete/ 
returned

5979 IT cell phone 358838237741732 0
obsolete/ 
returned

5625 IT Ipad 9th generation 64gb MW6QMJP973 0
obsolete/ 
returned

5077 IT Cell phone FFPZQASWJC6C 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5037 IT Computer R9-OMD4PV 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5959 General remote desktop unit 22 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5961 IT Cellular modem 9900013100336070 0 obsolete/ 
returned

Page 106 of 318



Attachment A - Governmental
Asset # Department Year Description serial number Est. Value reason to 

surplus

5092 IT Computer 75020401357 0 obsolete/ 
returned

5077 IT Cell phone FFPZQASWJC6C 0 obsolete/ 
returned

3018 Parks Blower 15

0

stolen Police 
report case 
#D23-000452 
Port Orchard 
Police Dept

3042 street Chainsaw 21 0 inoperable
3055 General Pole pruners 5133148177 0 inoperable
5055 IT Cell phone 8ead334d46a85268 0 obsolete
5202 IT Computer 15044783353 0 obsolete
5215 IT Computer 19305383253 0 obsolete
5216 IT Cell phone eeafef90I0f37b89 0 obsolete
5286 IT Computer CNV650032H 0 obsolete
5450 General RADIO B6300157 0 obsolete
5897 DCD Camera KCTPB12911415 0 obsolete
5630 Storm Camera 31379365 0 inoperable
5897 DCD Camera KCTPB12911415 0 inoperable
5836 IT Computer 9KK7K02 0 obsolete
5838 IT Computer 786dhb2 0 obsolete
5389 Police Radar AS006495 0 obsolete 
5365 Police Camera Lens 2100345827 0 obsolete
5111 IT Computer CG8Q392 0 obsolete
5037 IT Computer R9-OMD4PV 0 inoperable
5089 IT Network switch 76 0 obsolete

5316 IT
IT Server (Dell)Power Edge R520 
5B743W1 55 0 obsolete

5156 IT Cell phone DX3XNKRMHG6W 0 obsolete
5091 IT Network switch 78 0 obsolete
5325 IT Power vault 1HYLQD2 0 obsolete
5333 IT Computer 3PTKB03 0 obsolete
5334 IT Computer 3NJJB03 0 obsolete
5339 IT Computer 3P4SB03 0 obsolete
5831 IT Computer 3NSKB03 0 obsolete
5832 IT Computer F6TQ4Z2 0 obsolete

Police 2001 Go-4 ER&R #1004 Vin # 
2W9MPK6351PO44043

0 inoperable

Street Layton Paver Model #500, Serial #8974-B-0 0 inoperable

Page 107 of 318



Attachment A - Governmental

asset # serial number description reason to surplus current value
5002 R9-OMD4RE Lenovo T560 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5023 snR90P0X3K Lenovo Think pad P51 S Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5024 Lenovo ThinkPad Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5027 F6TQ4Z2 OptiPlex 5071 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5068 SR90NKJBT Lenovo P51 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5119 8SMNHL2 OptiPlex 5050 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5234 5FTSA04321 Should be Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5239 R90LWD1E Lenovo ThinkPad Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5242 R9OMD4RR Lenovo T560 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5290 3KDM5S1 Dell Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5291 4YOYP12 Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5292 HUDQF72 Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5293 HQDQF72 Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5299 9KK5K02 OptiPlex 7010 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5323 Barracuda Email Archiver Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5341 3NSKB03 Dell Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5342 3165859253 Surface pro 6 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5343 3368629305 Surface pro 7 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5344 35278393053 Surface pro 8 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5349 8SNGHL2 OptiPlex 5050 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5352 4483540357 Surface Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5354 Flagship Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5836 9KK7K02 Dell Computer Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5837 4G65GK2 Dell Computer Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
5839 9KK9K02 Dell Computer Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 58062733H Toshiba Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 1E031275S Toshiba Laptop Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 1S8UC1431AYH MITELBOX Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA CJ2CHB0414 Tape drive server Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA MXQ22708CT HP Server Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA MXQ04800QP HP Server Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 5FTSA04288 Panasonic Toughbook Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA HJDQF72 Dell Precision M2800 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA H37HDZ1  Dell OptiPlex 7010 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 9KJ5K02  Dell OptiPlex 7010 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA F3GKK02  Dell OptiPlex 7010 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 8SNLHL2  Dell OptiPlex 5050 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA 8SVHHL2  Dell OptiPlex 5050 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00
NA BZXYM11 Dell Optiplex GX240 Obsolete/ inoperalbe $0.00

5064 SDMPPC1VSF4YD iPad Returned for credit $0.00
5188 SDMPRD1NCF4YH iPad Returned for credit $0.00
5232 DMPQK5BKF4YH iPad Returned for credit $0.00
5233 SDMPRD1ZDF4YH iPad Returned for credit $0.00

5240 DMPTG1S3HLJK/MP252LLa iPad 5th generation Returned for credit $0.00
5163 DMPD97JPLM93 iPad mini Returned for credit $0.00

IT items to surplus

Page 108 of 318



Attachment A - Governmental
IT items to surplus

5274 352000000000000 AIR 16GB SILVER Returned for credit $0.00
5279 3.52E+14 AIR 16GB SPACE GRAY Returned for credit $0.00
5283 3.52E+14 IPAD AIR 16GB SILVER Returned for credit $0.00
5835 DMPP38BCFK11 IPAD AIR 16GB SPACE GRAY Returned for credit $0.00

$0.00

Page 109 of 318



Attachment B - Enterprise

asset # Year Description Serial # Est. Value reason to surplus

5630 storm Camera serial # 31379365 $0.00 inoperable

Sewer 2007 Dodge Ram 3500 truck ER&R #1050  Vin#3D6WH46D57G807876 0.00 inoperable

Storm 2000

Boom Bear - Sweeper ER&R# 
1065 Vin# 
1FVABTAK51HG76857  obsolete/ end of life 

Page 110 of 318



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Public Hearing 6A Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 

Subject: Public Hearing on Vacating City Right-of- Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 
 Way, an Alley Commonly Known as   City Clerk 
 Mystery Lane and the Westerly Portion    Atty Routing No: 366922-0005 
 of Harrison Avenue Atty Review Date: 04/06/2023 

 
Summary:  Petitioners William C. and Virginia Anderson, owners of 812 Mystery Lane Street, Kitsap 
County Tax Parcel No. 4060-008-022-0105 and Macailla Barden, owner of 1145 Sidney Avenue, Kitsap 
County Tax Parcel No. 352401-1-004-2000, submitted a petition to vacate City rights-of-way (ROW). The 
ROW’s are unopened portions of an alley commonly known as Mystery Lane, of approximately 8,585 
square feet and unopened Westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, of approximately 3,787 square feet; for 
a total square feet requested to be vacated of 12,372. Included in the petition were adjoining neighbors 
whom together with the Petitioners own more than two thirds of the abutting property, as required by 
RCW 35.79.010 and POMC 12.08.010. 
 
On March 14, 2023, the Council adopted Resolution No. 025-23, setting a public hearing on this petition 
to vacate the City’s ROW. 
 
On March 21, 2023, the City posted the required public notice in two conspicuous places in the 
alley/street sought to be vacated and on the same day, placed a copy of the adopted Resolution in three 
of the most public places in the City: (1) City Hall Bulletin Board, (2) Kitsap County Administrative 
Building Bulletin Board, and (3) Port Orchard Library Bulletin Board.  As required, on March 22, 2023, the 
City mailed letters notifying the abutting property owners of the petition and the public hearing. These 
actions meet the posting and noticing requirements outlined in RCW 35.79.020 and POMC 12.08.020. 
 
As of today, staff has received a few inquiries, but no written objections to this proposed vacation.  
Pursuant to RCW 35.79.020 and POMC 12.08.030(1), the Council is prohibited from proceeding with the 
Public Hearing if fifty percent (50%) of the abutting property owners file written objection to the 
proposed vacation with the Clerk, prior to the time of the hearing; therefore, with no written objections, 
the Council shall proceed with the Public Hearing. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Mayor open the public hearing to take public testimony on 
the petition to vacate a portion of City ROW, an alley commonly known as Mystery Lane and the 
westerly portion of Harrison Avenue.   
 
Attachments: Petitions, proposed vacated area, and legal description, Resolution No. 025-23, 

Kitsap Law Group Letter, and RESOLVE Appraisal 

Page 111 of 318



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 025-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, FIXING THE 
DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PETITION TO VACATE A PORTION OF AN ALLEY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS MYSTERY LANE AND THE WESTERLY PORTION OF 
HARRISON AVENUE, UNOPENED CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY. 
 
WHEREAS, the petitioners, William C. and Virginia Anderson, owners of 812 Mystery 

Lane Street, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4060-008-022-0105 and Macailla Barden, owner of 
1145 Sidney Avenue, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 352401-1-004-2000, submitted a petition to 
vacate City rights-of-way (ROW); and  

  
WHEREAS, the petition is to vacate unopened portions of an alley commonly known as Mystery 

Lane, of approximately 8,585 square feet and unopened Westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, of 
approximately 3,787 square feet; and  

 
WHEREAS, the petitioners have submitted an application, copy attached hereto as 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, which meets the requirements set out in 
Port Orchard Municipal Code (POMC) 12.08.010, and have paid the applicable fees required by 
the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the petitioners constitute the owners of more than two-thirds (2/3) of the 

property abutting the area proposed for vacation pursuant to RCW 35.79.010; and  
 
WHEREAS, the petitioners have requested that proceedings be had hereon for the 

vacation of said portion of the city right-of-way in the manner prescribed by RCW 35.79; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total proposed area for vacation is approximately 12,372 square feet, 

legally described as follows and depicted in the survey contained in Exhibit B hereto:  
 

  PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED 

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO SIDNEY, 
ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18, RECORDS OF 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON. 
 
SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH, PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND LOTS 42-23. 
 
NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS VACATION OF 
ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY NOTED IN CITY 
ORDINANCE 010-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN ERROR. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 112 of 318



Resolution No. 025-23 
Page 2 of 2 

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED 

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS ADJOINING 
BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO 
PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON. 

WHEREAS, the street vacation is requested to reflect existing structures in the 
unopened right of way as private property; now, therefore,  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

THAT:  A Public Hearing upon said proposed street vacation shall be held in person and 
via the online platform Zoom on Tuesday, April 11, 2023, at 6:30 p.m., at which hearing 
all persons interested in said street vacation are invited to appear in person or via the 
Zoom platform. Access information for Zoom shall be included in the notices required 
herein. 

THAT: The City Clerk is directed to post notice of the petition in three of the most public 
places in the city and a like notice in a conspicuous place on the street sought to be 
vacated, pursuant to RCW 35.79.020. The Clerk shall also post the notice on the City’s 
website. 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 14th day of March 2023.   

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 113 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 89s-90 o cityhall @cityofportorchard. us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

PETITION TO VA CITY RIGHT.OF.WAY
APPTI

(PoMc 12.08 / Re

TION
lution No. 030-17)

This document is considered o public record and is to public disclosure lsws in Chopter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner's Name(s) William C. Anderson inia Anderson & Macailla Barden

2164 NE Eton Lane B rton WA 9831 1Mailing

Contact

Street

lnformation 698-2618

City

rbilloal com

State zip

Phone Email

Address of Requested 812 M Lane
Street or nearest cross

Parcel Number of Requested 4060-008-02 105

1. The undersigned, owner of real property a ing upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port hard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet conta ing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-way by a licensed surveyor:

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County Kitsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of th owners of more than two-thirds of the real
property abutting the requested vacation a ; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

2. State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way' occupancy/boundary line adjustment

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 114 of 318



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and attached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

>r*A- /fzJ^- J,/,e,/AZz
Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Applicant Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed dnd documents sre submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property
abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along
with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting
such area);

o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applica ble;
o Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tZO; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon
Councilapproval),

FOR CITY CLERK'S OFFICE USE ONLY

$L20Vacation Fee Received Yes _ No Receipt N

5500 Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.:-

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Property Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date:

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the Cifi Council Yes _No

Page 2 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 115 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure ldws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) er/ ).L ta^ 4t'UaC)aS CrJ
First and Last Name

3Ut> 6 ft 2 Ct E ..^^ €/.. can/ 743 p,22s.42.. c.oeContact lnformation
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation

Email

8l I ,-^ lr z-cx,r' z /IJ rd

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

A)/ a c /a ,u 4 :t/Oc:7?J ail

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)
Managing Member No. L

.>r/.^Z/* a
(Signature and/or Title)

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing Address:
Street City State Zip

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Contact lnformation:
Phone Email

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 116 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
215 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356

t360].876-4407 r FAX (350) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document ls cansldered a publlc record ond ls subtect to publlc dlsclosure ldws ln Chopter 42.56 nAAl.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {p"ud"".,), M Ac A-{ {. L 4 8a/ d Ar) btLu t.}'n
First and Last Name

t0 NI mdA{Contact
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested

Parcel Number of Requested

Email '(n{hr
Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sisn this document, This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfJVe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o llAre are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
. l/We understand that lArVe may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

8u / Lvn
First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporatian lif applicable)
Managing Member No. 1

{ tx",.
and/orTitle)

First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (f opplrcoblel
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature andlor Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing 8 3t(
Street

nt"+ v1/\? R\l .t tnN)
Zio

(^
City State

,b5b13L
€ll'otOl,i L {-o(n'

Contact lnformation

Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 117 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 . cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAV
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)
First and Name

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation: d^;(rrnr INJA V lltta (ttrI,^tt*,/#s '1JUI
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) andlor spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

NJ/A
First an N (Printed) Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of 'Corporation (if applicobte)

Managing Me er No. 1

(si and/or Title)

First anJ Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title) 4obo -oob -o3 3 -OOo3'

UK
Property Add Qvztotr Tax Parcel Number

Mailing
q .T

Street 7ipCity

E

Contact lnformation
Phone

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 118 of 318



€n*\l 5**is , L',fa Q-fNt **
City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street port Orchard, WA 99366
(360) 876-4407 c FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhail@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document is considered a public record and is subiect to public disclosure Isws in chapter 42,s6 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation ( )o*",) n. {?
First and Last Name

Contact 36o - 6+b* t*\S e-6,na;L , (o-^-
Phone Email

signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area {Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owne(s) and/or spouses, or torpor"t" officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfffe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of washington that:r l/we are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated,r UWe understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

' l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

)o**.) M. Ayenl /pt:lesTe<

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Va Ourr'l v//13 s )"
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation to - \ob - 0a'{ * oao g

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing No.

and Last Name (Printed) of property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. Z

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

First

Mailing

Street State

lnformation:_
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

ZipCity

Contact

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 119 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

{360) 876-4407 r FAX {350) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {Petitione Phrtti vraf
First and Last Name

Contact (:s: 170-1 It9 s utcr
^@

vlrd { { , co r",..,

Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested ?L l'4 ftc la'ne ?o.t OrcLa,nA VA q\36 6

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation +ob> - 00? - 027 *000 I

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on myfour tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated rlght-of-way,

hiil i \ utcL.
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No. 1

(Signature Title)

First and fast Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No, 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Y)[ MV!.r1 La ue 40leD - 00!- 0?7- 0001
Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailins Add ?(, M Lare r[ 0rc6
q\

zipStateStreet City

Contact
Phone

0- il
Email

x S qrcr t4,.At .co

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 120 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
2L6 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

(360)876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard, us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)

First and Last Name

Contact lnformation
Phone

t

^4R

M

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Reqr.restecl Vacaticn:$- R>IFE sa ..i ttAREtsa,o AvE,

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

First and Last Name (Pri Officer Name of on (if applicable)

Man

and/or

pn
First and Last

Managing Me

(Sign d/or Title)

Property Address

rate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicoble)

Tax Parcel Number

o.2
nted)

Mailing
Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone

City

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 121 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorcha rd. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chdpter 42,56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (

First and Last Name

,aContact I

Phone Email 5rneei I COn-.
Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation S, t1€

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation: 4DvO - l)Ok' lJll- DIOT

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

N ico \<- Y,sd-'ol-
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer
Managing Member No. 1

ch<-r
Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

t ..rp.-H-(S

P",n#.

(Signature and/or Title)

l.fAca 6, F6 e-k-e-v +-- t
First and Lastilame (Printed) of Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if qpplicoble)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

L+Dt/o- DD*-Dt1-Dtoz
Property Address

bn D.r>v )^ 2 GCc sa
Tax Parcel Number

r^''1- I I ^Mailing Address
Street

3vo
zip

\rv"rar'.--r 
t, C oa-r-r

City State

Contact lnformati
Phone

cL.11
Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 122 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityof portorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUfiING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure lows in Chapter 42,56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) , William C. Anderson & Virginia Anderson

First and Last Name

MRBtLLOA1943@MSN.COMContact lnformation . (206) 615-3104
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation ,812 Mystery Lane

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation 4060-008-022-0105

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

Troy Se'l'land Edge Elite consulting ulc member

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of corporation (if qpplicable)

Managing Member No. 1

Membe r
(Signature and/or

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporalion (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

1133 Sidney Avenue, Port Orchard 4060-008-01 5-0005

Property Address

8035 1sth Avenue

Tax Parcel Number

Seattle WA 98115-4337
Mailing Address

. Troy Selland

City

tragotroy@gmail.com

Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 123 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhal I @cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorchard.us

PETITION TO VACATE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY
APPTICATION

(POMC 12.08 /Resolution No. 030-17)
This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Propefi Owner's

Mailing 5
Street State 7ipCity

Contact I
Phone Email

Address of Reouested Vacation:
Street or nearest cross street

Parcel Number of Requested

1. The undersigned, owner of real property abutting upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port Orchard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet containing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-woy prepared by a licensed surveyor:

See Exhibit A

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County cf l(itsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of the owners of more than two-thirds of the real

property abutting the requested vacation area; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way: The two vacated areas will accue to neighborins
ownerships for purposes of clearing certain title issues and set-back encroachments. The Washington
Supreme Court recentlv acknowledged and approved a "resurvey to rediscover the boundaries according to the
plat..." Ernelro1d v. ,Renne. 429 P.3d 154. 159 (Wa. 2021) (quotine Sfaaf v. Bilder. 68 Wn.2d 800. 803. 415 P.2d
650 (1966). The petitioners commissioned a resurvev of Block 8 to "retrace the boundarv lines laid down in
the plat." Id.

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 124 of 318



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and'aittached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correet owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

Signature of

,{htcrt Z1 Za zz
Date

Signature Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed and documents are submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property

abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along

with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting

such area);
o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applicable;
e Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tzo; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon

Councilapproval).

FOR CITY CLERKOS O}'FICE USE ONLY

$L20 Vacation Fee Received Yes 

- 

No Receipt No.:_

S5OO Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Propefi Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the City Council Yes 

-No
Page? of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 125 of 318



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8EFEC404-5E7A-4D20-B3E4-314883234822

Page 126 of 318



KrSAP
LAw Gnoup

3212 NW Byron Street #101 . Silverdale, WA 98383
Telephone (360)692-6415 . Fax (360) 692-1257

www.kitsaplawgroup.com

January 23,2023

City Clerk
City of Port Orchard
216 Prospect Street
Porl Orchard, WA 98366

Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way Application
Block 8, Sweany's Second Addition

Greetings:

On behalf of William C. Anderson, Virginia Anderson and Macailla Barden, we are submitting
the enclosed Petition to Vacate City Right of Way, together with the following documents:

o Map of the area to be vacated, with dimensions and new legal descriptions;
o Summary Appraisal Report by Anthony Gibbons;
. Support for Vacation of Right-of-Way Petition by Abutting Property Owners;
. Application processing fee of $120;
o The appraisal fee of $500 is requested to be waived in light the Gibbons' Appraisal

To give full consideration of the merits of this application, as well as the Petitioner's request that
the City of Port Orchard not require payment of compensation in connection with this Petition,
some background is in order.

The neighborhood subject to this Petition has long been known by local surveyors, the City of Port

Orchard and the Kitsap County Assessor's office to have boundary line problems. A simple review
of the Kitsap County Assessor's website depicts property lines running through many of these

property owners' residences. Most recently, these problems manifested themselves in the lawsuit
brought by Ms. Ann Wiggins under Kitsap County Superior Court Case No. 19-2-00985-18 to
quiet title to the'ouse and occupancy lines" of her home, which deviated from the legal description
of her property in her deed.

In this lawsuit, three neighbors to Ms. Wiggins and the City of Port Orchard were brought in as

defendants. In addition to these neighbors and the City, three different title insurance companies,

and several local surveyors, including Lyle "Reed" Mueller, Fred Kegel, Steve Ottmar and Dan

Johnson have become involved to find a solution to this problem. In the Wiggins lawsuit, the
parties worked together to resolve her boundary line problems by order entered in February 2020.
But in doing so, all involved quickly became aware there was a larger problem that needed to be

dealt with. Should this problem continue to be ignored, we would expect the City and these

William H. Broughton
David P. Horton
David A. Weibel

fohn R. Brennan
jay T. Dutcher
Ronald C. T empleton - r etir ed

Re

JAN .$ 0 2023

D
REc

crry OF PORT

s

Page 127 of 318



January 25,2023
2lP age

neighbors to repeatedly be brought into further litigation in the years to come. Rather than waiting
for the next lawsuit to be filed, First American Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title
Insurance Company and the affected neighbors have chosen to proactively work together to resolve
this problem by virtue of a boundary line agreement provided for under RCW 58.04.007. It is our
sincere hope that the City both appreciates and will cooperate with this effort as well.

As part of this process, surveyors Reed Mueller, Fred Kegel and Steve Ottmar researched the
underlying problem and then proceeded to mark out the "use and occupancy lines" for each

affected property owner. Understanding the underlying boundary line problem necessarily begins
in 1890, shortly after the establishment of Sidney (now the City of Port Orchard) when there were
several subdivision plats established within Section 35, Township 24 North, Range I East, W.M.,
including the plat of Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney (the "Plat") that was recorded in 1 89 I .

From the early 1900s to the 1950s, surveys of this area were generally consistent. However, more
recent surveys, i.e., 1980-2000s, have not honored the historic layout of the area. Rather, they
have relied upon a section subdivision breakdown, dividing the section using measured dimensions
to accepted existing perimeter section control monuments, resulting in the property line "chaos"
that is readily apparent in the Kitsap County Assessor's aerial photographs of these properties.

In February 2021, surveyor Fred Kegel with N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc. completed the
necessary field and drafting work to complete a preliminary suvey drawing of the affected
properties. The "use and occupancy lines" were then staked so each owner could see where their
proposed property lines would be located. However, this survey work also disclosed that there is
an unopened alley and a portion of a street (Harrison Street) dedicated under the original 1891

Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney Plat that are being used and occupied by these residences

and garages of these properties. Consequently, to fully resolve this problem a petition to vacate

is required.

In support of this Petition, we engaged the services of appraiser Anthony Gibbons, with RE-
SOLVE, to complete an appraisal of the area to be vacated who determined its value to be

$16,900.

Port Orchard Municipal Code 12.08.050(1)(a) generally requires compensation be paid to the

City for avacated right of way in the amount of one-half of this value:

(1) Ordinances vacating any street, alley, public place or portion thereof shall not
be adopted by the city council until the owners of the property abutting such area

shall compensate the city in the amount required by this section.
(a) If the street, alley, public place or portion thereof has not been part of adedicated
public right-of-way for 25 years or more, or if the subject property to be vacated

was not acquired at public expense, the owners of property abutting the street shall
compensate the city in an amount that does not exceed one-half of the appraised

value of the street.

Page 128 of 318



January 25,2023
3lPage

However, the compensation may be waived in the case of In-Lieu Transfers under POMC
12.08.050(2):

(2) In-Lieu Transfers of Property. Conveyances of other property acceptable to the

city may be made in lieu of the payment required by this section, whether required
to mitigate adverse impacts of the vacation or otherwise. When such a transfer is

proposed for street purposes, the value of the property (as determined in subsections
(lXa) through (c) of this section) shall be credited to the required payment. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel is less than the payment required by subsection (l)(a)
through (c) of this section, the petitioners shall pay the difference to the city. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel exceeds the payment required by subsections (1)(a)

through (c) of this section, the city shall pay the difference to the petitioner. In
addition, the petitioner shall be responsible for all costs associated with this
transfer, in the same manner as a property purchase, including but not limited to,

title insurance, attorney review of the title,hazardous materials/waste testing, etc.

If the Petition is approved, we will then take the final step in this process of completing a
boundary line agreement and/or an agreed order to quiet title to these property line changes and

to remove any cloud on title to these properties, which necessarily would include the City's
ULID parcel no. 4060-008-037-0009. In the case of this parcel, Kitsap County Assessor's aerial

photographs reflect that the property owner's home to the south is located within the City's
parcel. Petitioners respectfully submit that this proposed neighborhood BLA essentially amounts

to an in lieu transfer of property and so no compensation should be charged for the vacation. No

compensation fee should be assessed also because, as a result of the considerable time, effort and

resources already committed to this venture by Petitioners, the City stands to avoid repeated,

expensive and time-consuming litigation over this issue for years to come.

We are available, as needed, to answer questions or provide any additional information needed to

process this petition.

Very truly yours,

KITSAP LAW GROUP FIDELITY NATIONAL LAW GROUP

/s/David A. Weibel /s/Janis G. White

David A. Weibel
Attorney for William & Virginia
Anderson
3212 NW Byron St., Suite 101,

Silverdale, WA 98393
Office: 360-692-6415
Email: dweibel@kitsaplawgroup.com

Janis G. White
Attorney for Macailla Barden
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House
Litigation
701 5th Avenue, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Office: (206)224-6004
Email: Janis.White@fnt.com

Cc: Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney

Page 129 of 318



a

EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK B AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE.

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE,

VACATE PLAT A
OF 17 FEET SROU FI ST.

SCALE: 1" 1 OO'

N
V
O()

J
00

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131 L!

Ld
Z-
O
a

LOT AREA OT VACATED PORTIONS:
LLEY - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.t

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = J787 S.F.t
A

TA\ N.L. Olson & Associates,Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

L(

A

B

C
J

K

m

v
Or\
Ja

D

L

r
I

\,

M

LJ

?a
O

-)Of;a6
Mo
M6
<3r

52

JOB NO.: 11367
2451 Bcthel Avcnuc, P.O. tsox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

Page 130 of 318



EXHIBIT E

PORTION OF TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 2OO8O4O4O131 , WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(

FREDERICK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTRATION NO. 14065

q ,1 ,^

Page 131 of 318



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MAT]AS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

lsls !-q, rNcLUsrlE, BLooK I oF S$EANyS 2N0 ADo|T|ON TO StoNEy, AS
Pqr PLAT RECORDED tN VOLUME 2 0F pLATS, PAGE 18. RECoRoS 0F
{!TS4P cguNry, wAsHtNGroN, As suR\EyED AND STAKED , AND AS SHOW},I
ON SUR\EY RECORDEO IN IOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SUR\IEYS, AFN
TOGEIHER WlH 1HAT PORIION OF AI,I.EY TIIIHIN SAIO

BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTIONNO.---

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008-004-0008

lqls 4-6, rNcLUSt\€, BLOCK 8 OF SVGANTS 2N0 ADDII|ON T0 SlDNEy. As
PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PL{TS, PACE 18, RECORDS OF
K SAP COUNTY. WASHINGTON. AS SURIEY€O AND STAKED , ANO AS SHOI4II
ON SUR\EY R€CORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES 

- 

Of SUR!EIs, AfN
TOGEIHER III1H IHAT PORIION OF ATIEY ITIIHIN SAID

BLOCK E THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUNON
NO.-.-.-...,.--.----

DAVIO NESSETH 4060-008-007-0005

LOTS 7 AND 6, AND IHE NORIH 10 FEET Of' LOT 9, ELOCK 6 OF SI4EANYS
?ryq A9DrnqN To srDNEy, As pER pLAr RECoRDE0 tN VOLUME 2 OF pLArS,
PACE !8, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINCTON, AS SUR\€YED AND
STAKEO . AND AS SHOWT.I ON SUR\EY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PACES

- 

OF SURVE\6, AFN TOGEfiER I1IIH IHAT
PORNON OF ALITY IIIIHIN SAID BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACATED PER CITY OF
PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009-0003

LOT 9, EXeEPT rHE NORIH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, ANo LOTS 10-1,+, tNCLuStlE,
BLOCK 8 OF SVEANYS zND ADDINOiI IO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO
IN VOLUME 2 OF PLAIS. PAGE 18, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNW.
WASHINGTON, AS SUR\EYED AND STAKEO , ANO AS SHOT1TI ON SIJRIEY
RECORDEO IN VOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

Of SUR\EYS. AFN
TOGETHER V?ITH IHAT POR'IION OF AUTY WIHIN SAID

BLOCK 8 fiAT WAS VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.---_

E ELITE EDGE CONSULTING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

15 16, BLOCK 8 OF S'{EANYS 2NO ADDITION 10 SDNEY, AS PER
PAGE 18. RECOROS OF KITSAP2oF
STAKEO . ANO AS SHO|JiI.I ON

OF AFN

8 THAT VACATEO PER CIIY

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERTIES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

2

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 21 AND IHE SOU1H ONE-HAI.f OF LOT 19, SLOCK 8 OF
S]'VEANYS 2ND AODI]ION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO IN VOLUME 2
OF PLATS, PAGE 16, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY. WASHINOTON, AS
srJR\ElEo AND STAKED , ANO AS 51t0WN ON SUR!€Y RECORDED tN
voLUME+ PAGES _ OF SUR!E\s, AFN +
TOGFII{ER HlH IHAT POR'TION OF AUTY $ITHIN SAID BLOCK 8 1HAT WAS
VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCfIARD RESOI.UIION NO.-_

H MACAILLA BAROEN 352401 -1 -004-2000 usE BLAIOC0 FOR gARoENy'l/lcctNs rED

CIry OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

LlE 37-+21|NCLUS1!E' BLOCK I 0F SWEANYS 2ND AoDlTloN TO StDNEy,
AS PER PLAT RECOROED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE T6, RECORDS OF'
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AS SUR\E\GD AND STAKED , AND AS SHOI.TII
Ot.I SURVEY RECORDEO IN VOLUME- PACES 

- 

OF SUR!E\s. AFN
TOOEIHER ITIfi "IHAT PORIION OF HARRISON A\E.

ADJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT WAS VACAIED PER CIfi OF PORT
ORCHARO RESOLUTION NO._---_ ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH fiAT PORTION
oF ALLEY VilIHlN SAID SLOCK 8 IHAT WAS vAcArED PER CITY 0F PORT
ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-008-0J3-0003

LOTS 33-T6, INCLUSIIE, BLOCK 8 OF SI'IEANYS 2NO ADDITION TO SIDNEY,
AS PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18, RECOROS OF
KITSAP COUNry WASHINGTON, EXCEPT IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT J5,
AS SUR\€\€O AND STAKED . AND AS SHOIIN ON SURIEY RECOROEO IN
voLUME_ PAGES _ 0F SIJR\EYS, AFN --.---TOCEIHER W]H I}IAT PORIION OF HARRISON AI/E, AOJACENT TO SAID
BLOCI( 8. THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.- ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH IHAT PORIION OF AUEY TIIIHIN SAIO
BLOCK 8 HAT ViAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32, INCLUS!€, TOGE1HER YIIIH THE SOUIH 20.90 FEST OF LOT
33, ELOCK 8 OF SV€ANVS 2ND AOOIIION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT
RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS. PAGE 18, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY.
WASHINGION, EXCEPT IHE SOU]H 17.20 FEET OF LOT 30. AS SUR\EYED
1'Nq 9rAK€0 , AND As SHoriN oN SUR\EY REC0RoED lN V0t-uME-
PACES 

- 

OF SURIEYS, AFN 

- 

BEING A REFERENCE
TO PARCEL 3 ON SUR!€YS IN VOLUME 88. PAGE 224, TOGEIHER UrH
IHAT PORTION OF HARRISON A!8, AOJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT I/VAS
VACATED PER CIW OF PORT ORCI{ARO RESOLI,JIION NO.- ALSO
TOCEIHER IVIIH IHAT PORTION OF AUTY W]HIN SAID BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS
VACA'IED PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTON NO.---_

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

LOTS 27-29, INCLU$VE. AND lHE SOUIII 17.20 FEET OF LOT 50, BLOCK 6
oF swEANyS 2ND ADorIloN TO StDNEy, AS pgR PLAT RECORDEO tN
vqLuMq ? 0f pLATs, pAcE 16, RECORoS oF KtrsAp couNTy, wAsHtNoToN.
AS SUR\EYED ANO STAKEO , ANO AS SHOVN ON SUR\EY RECOROED INyqlu!4E- eAcEs _ oF s1,R\€15, AFN _ BE|No A
REFERENCE TO PARCIL 2 ON SUR!€Y IN VOLUME 8€, PAGE 224,'TOGEfiER
IIIIH ]HAT POR'TION OF HARRISON A!8. AO,'AC€NT TO SAIO BLOEK 8, THAT
WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO.__-
ALSO TOGEIHER III'IH IHAT PORTION OF ALEY TTIIHIN SAID BLOCK E ]HAT
WAS VACA.IEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTIONNO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060- 008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN 8LA/OCD TBD

N ANN WGGINS 352401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, pAcE 141 IBD

Page 132 of 318



RE.SOLVE

Anthony Gibbons, MAI
Direct Dial 206 909-1046
Email: agibbons@realestatesolve.com

Janis G. White
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House Litigation
Fidelity National Law Group
701 5th Avenne, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Email: Janis. White@fnf.corn

GIBBONS & RIELY PLLC
Real Estate Appraisal, Counseling & Mediation

261 Madison Avenue South, Suite 102
Bainbridge, Washington 9 81 1 0 -257 9

September 23,2021

David A. Weibel
Attorney-at-law
Templeton Horton Weibel & Broughton,PLLC
3212 NW Byron St Ste 101

Silverdale, WA 98383-9 1 54
Email : dweibel@kitsaplaweroup.com

Harrison & Alley Vacation
South of Sroufe Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane
Port Orchard, WA

Dear Ms. White and Mr. Weibel

At your request, we have prepared an appraisal of certain unused rightof-way, consisting of an unimproved

17' alley, and the west 7.5' of an unimproved section of Harrison Avenue, in Porl Orchard, WA. The

property is intended for vacation, and will accrue to neighboring ownerships, for purposes of clearing

certain title issues and set-back encroachrnents. The property intended for vacation comprises 1 1,304sf.

This appraisal has been prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice (USPAP). It is presented as a summary Appraisal Report and complies with the reporting
requirements of USPAP for such reports. The scope of our work is limited to the Sales Comparison

Approach to value. Use of this report is limited to the client.

The property is appraised according to the value accrued to each property as a consequence ofthe vacation,

with the use of a traditional Before & After methodology. Our conclusion reflects the market value of the
property in question.

As a result of our investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following market value for the

subject property, as of the date of value, September 15tfi,2027, the date of inspection:

Market Value (11,304sf @ $1.50/sf) $16o9oo

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony Gibbons, MAI

RE

Rel:21094

RE.SOLVE

Page 133 of 318



APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENT
Presented in a

SUMMARY APPRAISAL REPORT

Identity of Property

The subject ofthis report is certain right-of-way located adjacent to
l2-properties (A through G, I through M), located south of Sroufe

Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane, Port Orchard, WA 98366.

Client and Intended Users

The client and intended Llsers are Janis White and David Weibel, as

clients, as well as authorized associates, representatives or agents.
There are no other intended users.

Intended Use

This appraisal is to be used for the purpose of arriving at a market

value for purposes ofstreet vacation. Please note that the concluded

value is developed prior to any discounts as may be required by

ordinance in the vacation of right-of-way.

Property Rights Appraised

Fee simple interest. The property is appraised based on the value that will accrue to it, when adjoined to

each ofthe 12 neighboring parcels.

Type of Value

The purpose of this appraisal is to establish the market value of the subject property. The term "market

valne" is defined in The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal6th Edition (2015) as follows:

"The most probable price that a property should bring in a competitive and open market

under all conditions requisite to afair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and

knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this

definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specffied date and the passing of title from
seller to the buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and seller are typically motivated;
Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider

their best interests;
A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market,'

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial
arrangements comparable thereto; and
The price represents the normal considerationfor the property sold unaffected by

special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated

with the sale."

a.

b.

d.

e.

L

I

Jfl
t

*fl

I

tg

c

D

E

F

G

a
(J
o
!
co il

L

M

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORllONSr
\ALL€Y - 505' r t7' = 8585 s,F.r

HARRISON Avg. .- 505' x 7.5' a 3787 S.F.*

L.l

l-uz
af
6

FEE'
AYE.

A\

l.(J
o
J
@

lob No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 134 of 318



Conditions of Appraisal

There are three Extraordinary Assurnptions and one Hypothetical Condition, all required for reasonable

analysis.

1. EA 1 : Our appraisal assumes that the subject ROW would be approved for vacation.
2. EA2: ln our Before and After evaluation of the 12-parcels, we have not appraised improvements

situated on the subject properties, considering only land in our valuation.
3. HC 1: A Before and After analysis, for a simple transition, is developed on the same day - that is

the After condition assumes that the ROW is part of the individual properties. This condition is
required for purposes ofreasonable analysis.

Please note, that in our analysis of each property, our evaluation is limited to a determination of the

reasonable value that would accrue through the incremental addition of acreage. The development of the

Before and After values is only for the pllrposes of opining on the value of the property to be vacated.

The date of value is the date of inspection, September 75tt',2020

Sales and Listing History

The subject property has been under city ownership for decades.

Scope of Work

The scope of work performed in this appraisal is in compliance with the specific guidelines of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).

The subject land area is based on survey, and excludes a small portion of the alley that was previously

vacated.

The property appraised is not capable ofindividual development on account ofshape and property condition
(raw condition, lack of utilities, and slope). The highest and best use of the property is then determined to
be assemblage, and the property is appraised on this basis, as though assembled by neighboring ownerships.

2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 135 of 318



Proposed
Alley

vacallon Proposed
Harlion
Vacatlon

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

Assessor Plat Map

Vertical west at

, next to Mystery Lane cul-de-sac Harrison

J

Drone view from south - note

View from the north

from Lane

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 136 of 318



MARKET ANALYSIS

The subject property is located in Port Orchard, in an attractive residential neighborhood. Average home

pricing in the Port Orchard neighborhood is around S405,000, which is a little below the South Kitsap

Average and that for the county as a whole. As with many other areas of Kitsap Courtty, price increases

have been relatively significant, particularly since the onset of the pandemic, representing a shift in activity
away from urban living to more suburban and rural markets.

Within the specific neighborhood of the subject, average horne pricing is close to the city average, with
properties on the market for typically around a week. The housing stock is largely post-war, with the

average for the latest set of sales coming in at a vintage of around 1960, with a home size of approxirnately
1,500sf. Most homes are on lots of under a quarter of an acre. Lot prices are typically around $40,000 to

$50,000, but can get up to $70,000-$90,000 for larger lots with good utility, and few if any site constraints.

,S Are 2017 20t8 2019 2O2O Aus.'21

seaBsk Holly ;il:e
145 oZ chanqe

$319,024

185

$331,s00

174

$425,000

159

$385,000 $s16,500

178

t6v"4Vo l0V.
103

22V"

Chico
146

$379,000 $421,000 $415,000 $526,750 $657,500Price

Units
oZ change tv"

5675
25v.

68

l10A 27Vn

Price

Bremerton Units
148 oZ chmse

$228.37s
473

$253,725

455

$282,800

449

$335,000

496

$408,000

386

11.t, ltyo 18.1,

$278,075

303
Retsil - Price

Nllnchestcr Units
144 oZ chanse

$300,000 s332;oo $378,500 $44l,ooo
265
80 l4v.

t68

ll%o 17Vo

s260,000

359

Price

I'ort Orchrrd tinrts
ll3 9i, chanqe

s370,000

392

slo5,ooo
301

9'%, 9"1,

316

l1'1, | 1"1,

sl97,o0o s325,ooo

S Kitsap Price

WHrvy 16 Units
l4l 7o change

$318,465 $353,986 $400,000 $433"333 $535,000

520 442 311

130/o 230/0

415

8"h
532

11Vo

$340,000

371

S Kitsap Price

E/Hwy 16 Units
142 7o chmqe

$379,000 $4,ro,ooo $569,900

263 3t9 201
$360,000

336
I 60/" 300/o6V. 5Vo

South Kitsflp Price

Average Units
7o chmge

$303,277 $331,030 $359,871 $4t5,512 $504,700

9V. 9Vo 15"/. 2lv"
County Price

Units
$rop00 s345,000

110/"

$377,352

9Vo

$418J17 $485,000

Rcsidential Median IIome Prices

$700,000

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0
2017 2018 2019

-Retsil 
- Nlanchester 

-Bremeton -Chico
-KitsapCounty -SKitsapWHwy 

l6*-SeaBeckHolly

2020

-Port 
Orchard

' S Kitsap E/Hsy 16

Atrg. '21

165

16t

il

t60

1& 149

145
18

147

SubFcl

4

JobNo 21094 RE.SOLVE Fideli[l - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 137 of 318



SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRITPION

Present Use

The subject right-of-way is raw, heavily treed, and sloped in most areas. It is largely undeveloped, although

it runs into the back yard of some residences in a few instances.

Access and Location

The subject is accessed from Sroufe and Mystery Lane, and adjacent private property

Land Area and Shape

The survey below provides the total area of the right-of-way, either vacated already, or intended for

vacation. Below, that portion of the site that has already been vacated is subtracted, to provide for the

current land that is the subject ofthe proposed vacation.

AI

B

c
J

K

m

v(]
o
J

D

a

I

E
L

F

tr

M

hJ

?p
z)
OHn6
0au
0.5<zr

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:\lttry - sob' x 17' * 85Bs s,F.t
HARRISON AVE, - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.n

FES

]<()
o
Je

Lri

IJ
z.
Cf
a

VACATE PIAT

VACAIE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

17 FEET

5

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 138 of 318



ROW to be vacated:

Width Length Total

Harrison 7.5-lf 505-lf 3,787sf

This property may also be allocated according to the property to which it will be joined. Please see the

calculation of allocation below.

Property Alley
leneth 8.50'

Harrison
leneth 7.50'

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

77.73'

71.73',

57.82',

t33.45',

47.82',

6lOsf
61Osf

49lsf
l, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
l, 1 58sf

659sf
659sf
774sf
508sf

59.78'

136.20',

77.s0'
77.50',

91.00'
59.78',

0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf

1,019sf
58lsf
581sf
683sf
923sf

135.90'

77.50',

77.50',

91.00'
123.00'

7,5l7sf 504.9 3,787sf

Thus the following Before and After Land Areas are established

11

6

Propertv After
Land Area

Before Added

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

17,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,731sf
10,019sf
10,019sf
ll,76lsf
l2,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf
491sf

1,134sf
406sf

0sf
508sf

2,177sf
7,240sf
7,240sf
1,456sf
l,43lsf

I 0, I 93sf

I 0, I 93sI

7,896sf.
18,994sf

6,940sf
8,712sf.

4,864sf"
20,908sf
ll,259sf.
11,259sf.

73,217sf.

73,628s1

Job No. 2 1094 REASOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 139 of 318



Topography and Vegetation

The property is sloping with some critical areas Please see the County's critical area map presented below,

which essentially duplicates that of the local jurisdiction, the city of Port Orchard.

Views

This is not view property

Easements & Restrictions

The subject is Right-of-way, but is appraised in fee simple estate, which is the estate that will be conveyed

with no retained city or public rights.

Utilities

Power, water and sewer are available through public utility.

Improvements

The subject is unimproved.

7

| 994.1J9

ttlfit.hti
111.?

1115 |

,tiiit rJ4 1

---, , i

i
l
I

:. ttzd
ttLs.{io

39
I

4e

19.Otl u+r

llatlrd Ar€t
lloderate Hazatd Aria

FnriGb outllo€s
Parcelr (frfis & Addrcss)

Pan€l Labelr LiEhr

Frrx Parcel Libols Dsrk

High Hiztrd Ataa

4ress

Hrard rrp.i

Doundary

Souf,drry

boundrry

Elgh l{r5t5

ilsnrgc Liyr.t

Ioatery
Bsundtry

Soundary

Boundsrt 1998

sr
I

l.

'&(x*
!t
vl

:i
'i

i

j
\.

!
i

I
1

I

I
I
i

'

I

I
I

I

!

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 140 of 318



Zoning

The righlof-way is not zoned, but typically vacated property would take on the zoning of the adjacent
parcels. The surrounding private ownerships are zoned Residential 2 (R2). According to the city code:

"The R2 district is primarily intended to accommodate detached house, duplex, qnd town
house development with a minimum lot size that varies based on building type. The R2
district is intended to implement the residential medium density comprehensive plan
designation. Additional building types that are allowed include baclryard cottage
(detached accessoty dwelling unit), cottage court, duplex and attached house. Uses

that would substantially interfere with the residential nature of the district are not
allou,ed."

The minimum lot size is 5,000sf if accessed from aprimary street, and 3,000sf if accessed from an alley.
Lot widths are 50', with street access, and 30' with alley access; duplex lots require an extra l0' in each

case.

Assessed Value & RE Taxes

The subject is not assessed, as publicly owned, and a property to which typically there is no attached value.

For information purposes only, I have included the prevailing assessment of the surrounding propefiies,
given the fact that, once vacated, the assessor would include the square footage with these holdings, and

perhaps re-assess accordingly.

The current taxation rate is about $10.55 mills - i.e. about 1.05% of assessed value.

Property
Account #

Assessed Values
Land Improvement Total

A
B
C

D
E

F

G

I
J

K
L
M

4060-008-00 1 -000 I
4060-008-004-0008

4060-008-007-0005

4060-008-009-0003

4060-008-0 I 5-0005

4060-008-0 I 7 -0102

4060-008-0 1 9-000 I
4060-008-037-0009
4060-008-033-0003

4060-008-030-0006
4060-008-027-000 1

4060-008-022-010s

$56,420 $241,870 $298,290
s56,420 5179,210 s235,630

$53,650 $208,030 $261,680

$65,880 $333,410 $399,290
$52,550 $73,110 5125,660
$55,320 $33 1,820 $387,140

$44,540 5229,150 5273,690
Port Orchard ULID No assmt

$50,970 $330,430 $381,400

$50,970 s297,040 $348,010

$52,840 $300,700 $353,540
$53,270 $380,950 $434,220

8

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelily - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 141 of 318



OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

Highest and Best Use

The subject property is essentially unusable as right-of-way, and its highest and best use, assuming the

necessary approvals are obtained, is for assemblage with adjacent parcels. This conclusion comes with the

reasonable expectation ofthe vacation being approved by city Council. This is ofcourse an Extraordinary
Assumptiontof this appraisal. In the After case, the surrounding properties are appraised as though now
owning the land adjacent, which would reflect a Hypothetical Condition2, required for purposes of analysis.

Comparable Data

Valuation of the subject propefty is based on a series of lot sales in the neighborhood, this considered a

reasonable measure of the value right-of-way intended for assemblage with such a lot. The data has been

used to develop a relationship between lot value and size, such that the incremental value of additional
square footage within a lot can be measured.

The data is presented below, together with our conclusion of $16,900 total, about $1.50/sf. An explanation
of the result follows on the following page.

1 Something not known to be true, but likely to be true.
2 Something not presently true but a prospective future condition, and required for analysis purposes, in order to be able to value

the subject parcels in the condition that they would be in, were the vacation approved.

9

Sales Analysis

# Address
Site

Utilitv Lot size

Price
Date

Sohlyr up to
Sen-15-21 Land Value

I 1398 Canyon Lane
4056-01 1-015-00-05

2 E WilliamsLane#x2
4536-004-012, -010

3 Arnold Ave East Ave E
4536-004-012, -010

4 1667 SE Crawford Rd

012301-3-038-20-07

5 601 Radey St

4047 -001 -012-04-07

6 Lot 10 SE Serenade Wy
4794-000-0 l 0-04-06

7 1783 Sidney Ave
352401-3-073-20-02

8 Decatur Ave
4027-009-004-00-08

9 Arnold Ave E
4027 -017 -002-00-03

Good location, br.rt

restricted w/slope

Resticted due to slope

but with building pad

Water view, slope

restriction

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Nice quiet cul-de-sac,

level, peekaboo view

Gentle slope, good

access, good utility

Steep slopes, limited
access

Srnall bLrilding pad at

base ofsteep slope

23,958sf

29,621sf

6,098sf

4,792sf

9,583sf

9,l48sf

13,068sf

30,056sf

6,098sf

$32,500
Feb-21

$35,000
Jul-21

$37,000
Itn-27

$50,000
Apr-21

$66,900
Jun-21

$67,000
Apr-21

$92,000
Sep-20

$15,000
Itn-27

$17,000
Aug-21

$33,500
1.03

$35,400
l.0l

$37,400
1,01

$51,100
1.02

$67,600
1.01

$68,300
1.02

$96,600
1.05

$15,200
l.0l

$17,100
1.00

$33,500 $1.40/sf

$35,400 $1.20lsf

$37,400 $6.13/sf

$51,100 $10.66lsl

$67,600 $7.05/sf

$68,300 $7.471sf

$96,600 $7.39lsf

$15,200 $0.51/sf

$17,100 $2.80/sf

Subject 11,304sf $16,900
Sep-21

$16,900
1.00

$160900 $1.50/sf

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 142 of 318



Property Valuation

The comparisons have been divided into restricted sites (by virtue of topography or access) and
unconstrained properties, with the value divide between these being quite significant: the former sell for
between $0.50/sf and $3.00/sf, while the latter fall in a range of $6 to $10/sf. The data also reveals a clear
issue of economies of scale, meaning that for a site of say 5,000sf, the incremental addition of 500sf is not
likely to come at a pro-rata value of the lot as a whole, as the additional land does not materially alter the
market for the property, itjust provides additional yard or buffer. It is an axiom ofreal estate, that, all other
things being equal, a larger site will sell for less on a square-footage basis than a smaller site.

The properties are graphed below, displaying this relationship, with the red dotted best fit line in the center
ofthe graph representing the average ofthe two different data sets. Based on the sales, different before and

after values for the surrounding lots A through M (but no G) are calculated, with the curve providing an

indication of the probable lift in value generated by tlie addition of an increment of land in adjacent (and in
this case) largely sloping topography.

Following the curve, the resulting values are calculated.

10

Site Size v. $/sf of Land
$12.00/sf

T

il, , ..,..,:..

$10.00/sf

c

$8.00/sf
.. I

$6.00/sf X
'..?&...q

$4.00/sf
'),'

X

$2.00/sf
x:
I$0.00/sf

Osf 5,000sf 10p00sf 15p00sf 20,000sf 25,000sf 30,000sf 35,000sf

@ Subject Before
o Subject After
I Good Utility Sites
X Poor Utility Sites

""""' Log.(Comps)
'" Log. (Good Utility Sites)

""""' Log.(Poor Utilify Sitcs)

a

ProDertv
Land Area

Before Added Af,ter

Difference

$ 1,500

$1,500
$2,000

$400

$r,900
$0

$2,400
$200

$1,500
$1,500
$2,000
$2,000

Before

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

I 8,73 I sf
10,019sf
l0,0l9sf
I l,761sf
l2,l97sf

$59,000

$59,000
$s2,000
$67,000
$49,000

$56,000
$40,000
$67,500
s60,000

$60,000
$62,500
$63,000

$6. l6lsf
$6. l6lsf
$7.021sf

$3.75lsf
$7.50/sf
$6.43lsf
$9.18/sf
$3.60/sf

$5.99lsf

$5.99lsf
$5.3 l/sf
$5.17lsf

Aftcr

$60,500

$60,500
$54,000
$67,400
$50"900

$56,000

$42,400
$67,700

$61,500
$6 1,s00

$64,500
$65,000

l0,l93sf
I 0, l93sf
7,896sf

1 8,994sf
6,940sf
8,7l2sf
4,864sf

20,908sf
I l,259sf
I l,259sf
13,217 sf
I 3,628sf

$5.94lsf
$5.94lsf
$6.84/sf
$3.55/sf
$7.33/sf
$6.43lsf
$8.72lsf
$3.24lsf
$5.46lsf
$5.46lsf
$4.88/sf
$4.771sf

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,73 l sf
10,019sf
10,019sf

ll,76lsf
12,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf

491 sf
1, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
2,l77sf
l,240sf
l,240sf
I,456sf
1,43 I sf

I 0,193sI
I 0,193sf
7,896s1

I 8,994sf
6,940s1

8,7l2sf
4,864s1

20,908sf

I l,259sf
11,259s|

13,217 sI
I 3,628sf

$16,900

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 143 of 318



The conclusion of value for the right of way at around $1.50/sf is reasonable as the value of incremental

acreage, and in fact appropriately aligns with typical site values for sites of restricted utility, this of course
quite representative of the nature of the right-of-way in this case - narrow, sloping, and access constrained.

Value Conclusion

As a result of this investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following value for the property
to be vacated:

MarketValue -ll,304sf @ $1.50/sf $16,900

Effective Date of Value

September 15,2021, date of inspection.

Exposure Time

This concept does not really apply to a right-of-way vacation. However, in application to lots adjacent, it
is noted that the market is quite strong, and an exposure of less than a month would be anticipated.

1l

Job No. 21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 144 of 318



APPRAISER'S CERTIF'ICATION

I ceftify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
.8. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct;
n The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting

conditions and are my personal, imparlial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions;
l' I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal

interest with respect to the parties involved.

'i' I have no bias with respect to the properly that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this
assignment.

* My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.
* My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of a

predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount ofthe value opinion,
the attainment ofa stipulated result, or the occurence ofa subsequent event directly related to the intended
use ofthis appraisal.

* The appraisal was made, and the appraisal report prepared, in conformity with the Appraisal Foundation's
Uniform Standards for Professional Appraisal Practice.

* I have made a personal inspection of the properfy that is the subject of this repoft.
* Persons providing significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report are identified herein.
, The use of this report is subj ect to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly

authorized representatives.
{' This appraisal has been made in conformity with the appropriate State and Federal laws and requirements;
A I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the properly that is the

subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment;
* As of the date of this report, Anthony Gibbons has completed the Standards and Ethics Education

Requirement of the Appraisal Institute for Designated Members.

RESTRICTION UPON DISCLOSI'RE & USE:
Disclosure of the contents of this appraisal report is governed by the By-Laws & Regulations ofthe Appraisal Institute.
Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the
appraiser or the firm with which (s)he is connected, or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or to the MAI
designation) shall be disseminated to the public through advertising media, public relations media, news media, sales
media or any other public means of communication without the prior written consent and approval of the undersigned.
No part of this report or any of the conclusions may be included in any offering statement, memorandum, prospectus
or registration without the prior written consent of the appraiser.

The property has been appraised for its fair market value as though owned in fee simple. The opinion of value
expressed below is the result of, and is subject to, the data and conditions described in detail in this report.

Anthony Gibbons made a personal inspection of the subject property on September 75th,2021.

The Date of Value for the subject of this appraisal is February 28th,2020, per client instruction.

Per the MARKET VALLIE definition herein, the concluded market value diminution for the properly that is the subject
ofthis appraisal is on a cash basis and is:

Nurn", @
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser. Lic No 1100854

Signature:

Date Signed: Seotember 23. 2021

t2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 145 of 318



General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

This appraisal report has been made with the following general assumptions:

1. No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided or for matters pertaining to legal or title
considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.

2. The property is appraised free and clear ofany or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated.

3. Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed.

4. The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable, but no warranty is given for its accuracy

5. All engineering studies are assumed to be corect. The plot plans and illustrative material in this report are
included only to help the reader visualize the property.

6. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions ofthe property, subsoil, or structures that
render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for obtaining the
engineering studies that may be required to discover them.

7. It is assumed that the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local
environmental regulations and laws unless the lack of compliance is stated, described, and considered in the
appraisal report.

8. It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions unless
a non-conformity has been identified, described, and considered in this appraisal report.

9. It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates ofoccupancy, consents, and other legislative or
administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the opinion of value contained in this report is

based.

10. It is assumed that the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or property lines
ofthe property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report.

I 1 . Unless otherwise stated in this reporl, the existence of hazardous materials, which may or may not be
present on the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of the
existence ofsuch materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such
substances. The presence ofsubstances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, and other
potentially hazardous materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimated is predicated on
the assumption that there is no such material on or in the propefty that would cause a loss in value. No
responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to
discover them, The intended user is urged to retain an expeft in this field, if desired.

This appraisal repofi has been made with thefollowing general limiting conditions:

If the subject is improved: Any allocation of the total value estimated in this report between the land and
the improvements applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separate values allocated to the
land and buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

2. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication.

3. The appraiser, by reason ofthis appraisal, is not required to give further consultation or testimony or to be

in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously
made,

l3

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 146 of 318



4. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this reporl (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of
the appraiser, or the firm with which the appraiser is connected) shall be disseminated to the public through
advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the prior written consent of the appraiser

Thefollowing assumptions and limiting conditions mey apply to this assignment:

Any opinions ofvalued provided in the repoft apply to the entire property, and any proration or division of
the total into fractional interests will invalidate the opinion ofvalue, unless such proration or division of
interests has been set forth in the report.

2. In the case of proposed developments: If only preliminary plans and specifications were available for use
in the preparation ofthis appraisal; the analysis, therefore, is subject to a review ofthe final plans and
specifications when available.

3. In the case of proposed developments, and the assignment of values to a propefty at the completion of
construction, all proposed improvements are assumed to have been completed unless otherwise stipulated,
so any construction is assumed to conform with the building plans referenced in the reports.

4. In the case ofirnproved properfy: The appraiser assumes that the reader or user ofthis report has been
provided with copies of available building plans and all leases and amendments, if any, that encumber the
property.

5. Ifno legal description or survey was furnished, the appraiser used the county tax plat to ascertain the
physical dimensions and acreage of the property. Should a survey prove this information to be inaccurate,
it may be necessary for this appraisal to be adjusted. If a legal description has been provided, the appraiser
is not responsible for the accuracy of the description. The property appraised is assumed to be as

delineated on county maps, as noted in this appraisal.

6. The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates contained herein are based on current market conditions,
anticipated short-term supply and demand factors, and a continued stable economy. These forecasts are,

therefore, subject to changes with future conditions.

7, If the subject is improved: The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26,1992.
The appraiser has not made a specific compliance survey or analysis of any improvements on the property
to determine whether or not it is in conformity with the various detailed requirements of ADA. It is
possible that a compliance survey of the property and a detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA
would reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of the act. If so,

this fact could have a negative impact upon the value of the property. Since the appraiser has not direct
evidence relating to this issue, possible noncompliance with the requirements of ADA was not considered
in estimating the value of the properfy.

14

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 147 of 318



EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK 8 AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

VACATE PLAT
OF 17 FEET SRO UF T.

SCALE: 1" : 100'

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131

N
v
Oo
J
00

Lr-i

Lrl
Z.rl
a

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:
Y - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.*

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.*

L{ ^t\ 
N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

2453 Bclhcl Avcnuc, P.O. lJox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

A

J

K

0o

\<
Oo
J
a0

B

C

D

I

U E
L

F

G

z

M

L!)^
<F

C)--7>
LE
oha6
Eo
M.E<zr

52

JOB NO.: 11367

Page 148 of 318



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

Page 149 of 318



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MATIAS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

LOTS t-J,
PLAT

8 0F SllEANyS SIDNEY, AS
2

IN
sHow!

OF
TOEEIHER

BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS VACAIEONO,--.__
OF ALT.EY
ORCHARO

HTHIN
PER RESOLUNON

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008- 004-0008

!9Js^1-_9,,t!lglt!E, BLoCK 8 0F swEANys 2ND ADDtTtoN To slDNEy. As
eE.! eLAT REooRDEo tN voLUME 2 0F pLATs, plcr ts, iiicdRo5 di '
Ms4?_99u{Ty, wAsHtNGToN, As siJR!€t€o elo srlr'eo , Ali-o-es snowtl
ON SURIEY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES OF'SUR\iEid A'i}I_ ToGETHER wTH IHAT poRTtoN oF luev tttlltN'sAto
BLocK I THAT wAs vAcAlEo pER ctry oF poRT oRcHARD nrsor_unotiNO,_-_.-..--.---

a
DAVID NESSETH 4060-o08-007-0005

lg.Is .Z AltS 6, AND IHE NoRIH 10 FEET of LoT 9, BIOC( s oF suEANys
?ryq_Ag_Drto-!! To stoNEy, As pER eLAT REconoeo iH vol0uL i oi FLiis,pAcE ts, RECoRDS OF KtTSAp couNTy, wAsHtNcToH, es sui-tnwti AHo
STAKED , AND AS sHovir.l oN sURlEy REcoRoEo tN VoLuUe_- pAcl!'
: -qF .quBl/E\S. AFN rocelrrR vnrx-rxei--
lg!!ot'1 gF ALLEv tlnHtN sAtD BLocK a IHIT wAs vAciiio piC crw or
PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009- 0003

LOT 9, EXCEPT IHE NORTH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, AND LONi 1O-1,+, INCLUSIVE,
Plgcl! 8 oF SIIEANYS 2ND AoDtnoN To slDNEy, As pER PLAT RECoRDED
ll!.y_o.-Ly_!{E ? q q4Ts, eAGE rs, REcoRDs or krrslp Coulrv,"---'-
Ir4qlryqloN, As suR\EyED AND srAKEo , AND As sHo\ol oru brnrnv
RECOROED IN VOLUME_ PAGES OF SUR!E\S. AFN

ToGEIHER wlH 'IHAT poRIoN oF AarEy $ttTHtN sAto
sLocK 8 r{AT vtAS vAcArEo pER ctry oF eoni on+nno'nliiiilunoilNO._

E ELITE EDGE CONSULIING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

!gT-s_ 8,4{q !6, SLoqK 8 oF sn€ANrS 2ND ADOtnoN TO stDNEy, As pER
pLATfiEcoRDED tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, proe ra, neconoi bil(iTSAp
QoV.tlly,,{4sHtNcT0N, As suR\€r€o ANb srAKEo , mio ASs+rorii.i-oir
slJR\Ey REcofiDEo tN voLUME_ pAGEs _ oF suRlEls_ AFfu-_ TOcErltER wrH 1HAT ponnoN oF ALLEY tfliilN SA|O
BLOCK 8 IHAT I,YAS VACATEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD NiSOLUTIOII
NO,.__-.----------------...

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERNES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

LO']'S 17. 1E AND IHE NORIH ONE-HAI.F OF LOr 19, BLOCK 8 OF
9!E4N!! 2ND ADDtTtoN TO stDNEy, As pER PLAT nECOnOsO tN VoLUME 2
oF pLATs, pAGE 16, REcoRos oF itTSAp Couxrv. Gsiiruaioii. li--
suRrEy€D ANo STAKEo , AND As sHovr.r oN suR!€y ngconDeD ir.tygquq- PAGES _ OF srJR\Eys, AFN - " ---. -

I_ggqtrER_lLTH IHAT poRnoN or eury'firHru suo aEEk-TTtnr wns
VACATED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO. "''" "

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 2I AND fiE SOU1H ONE-HALF Or LOT 19. ELOCK 8 OF
SIIiEANYS 2ND AODIIION TO SIDNEYI AS PER PLAT NECONOEO IN VOLUME 2oF pLATS, pAGE 18, REcoRos or *rrsrp counrv. w{sliificioili. is --
slJR\EyEo AND STAKED , AND As slttottl,t ot sun-wy niconoEo tu
Y9!UME: l]\cEs _ oF slJR!E\'tS. AFN
T_ocErHER-wTH IHAT poRnoN or au.ev wrHrN sero aLoEkT-iiar wes
VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT OROIARD RESOI.UIION NO. ' '''' -'

MACAILLA BARDEN J52401 -1 -004-2000 USE BLAIQCD FOR lE0

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

OF SWEANYS 2ND

STAKED
OF

sHow{
AFN

TOGETHER HARRISON

ORCHARD
8, IHAT CITY OF PORTN0.-_

BLOCK 8 IHAT
ALSO 1HAT PORNON

OF ALLEY OF PORT
ORCHARD

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-00E- 033-0003

|o_Tl_13:lg. ryglqgt!€, BLocK I 0F s$,EANt'S 2ND ADD|nON TO StDNEy,

^9_ 

qqR eLAT REcoRDEo tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, preE ia, nEcdnod or'
[[s4r_.cllu]!ry lvAsHtNGToN, ExcEpT THE sourir zo.so r'en bF'[or-ss,
al..qgB\E\€q 4!D STAKED , ANo As sHovru oN suRlEy nlionoro irVOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SIJRVEYS. AFN
rocErHER wlrH IHAT poRnoN oF xmnrsor,r Aw-lTdildEfriE-srro
BLocK 8. IHAT wAs vAcArED pER ctw oF ponr oncxAno agsoltlnor.rNo._-...-------- ALso TooEIHER lvrH IHAT poRloN oF lugv wttxil slro
BLocK 8 rHAr wAs vAcArEo pER ctry oF ponr oncxrnrintsotlrib't
NO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32,
33, SLOCK 8
RECORDED IN

INCLUS!8, $lH IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT

AND AS

ON
OF SURIEYS,

SURVEYS IN
IHAT 8, 1HAT WAS

TOCEIHER
VACAIED

ALSO
6 l9AS

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

0F LoT 30, ELOCK 6

NO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060-008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN BLA/OCD IBO

N ANN WGGINS J52401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, PACE t4t IBD

Page 150 of 318



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8A Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Approving     Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 
 the Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way,  City Clerk 
 an Alley Commonly Known as Mystery     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0005 
 Lane, and the Westerly Portion of Atty Review Date: 04/06/2023 
 Harrison Avenue   

 
 
Summary:  Earlier this evening, a Public Hearing was held to take testimony on whether the City Council 
should vacate City Right-of-Way (ROW), an alley commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly 
portion of Harrison Avenue, depicted as follows:  
The City received the petition for these 
vacations from the owners of two of the parcels 
that would benefit from these vacations: (1) 
William and Virginia Anderson, owners of Parcel 
No. 4060-008-022-0105; and (2) Marcailla 
Barden, owner of Parcel No. 352401-1-004-
2000. The Petitioners submitted sworn 
statements of support from abutting property 
owners who would also benefit from the 
vacation of these areas.  
Consistent with the requirements of POMC 
Chapter 12.08, Staff has determined the 
following with regards to the proposed street 
vacation:   
 
The area sought to be vacated was added to the 
City by the Town Council, on April 6, 1891. To 
date the City has not opened the ROW.  
 
The City Engineer has reviewed the street 
vacation petition and has indicated the 
following: 

1. The area sought to be vacated is not 
needed for public travel now or in the foreseeable future.  

2. The functionality of the area sought to be vacated for public purposes is nonexistent.  

Page 151 of 318



Business Item 8A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

3. The vacation of the area would not adversely affect any City utilities, such as water, sewer, or 
storm.  

4. The City has not included any projects within the proposed vacation area as part of its six-year 
road plan, nor has the City any scheduled capital facilities projects on this property. 

 
The Community Development Director stated the following: 

1. Vacation of the proposed area does not create potential or actual land uses that are inconsistent 
with City growth plans and goals.  This area has not been identified in the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

The Petitioners, represented by legal counsel, have requested a waiver of the City’s requirement to pay 
an amount not to exceed the appraised value of the area to be vacated prior to the vacation. The bases 
for the request are stated in the letter of support submitted by Petitioners’ legal counsel. POMC 
12.08.050 makes the payment of compensation a mandatory requirement. If the City Council desired to 
waive the compensation requirement, staff would need to prepare an ordinance amending POMC 
12.08.050 to allow for a modification to that code section.   
 
Recommendation: Based on the report provided to the Council, staff recommends approving the street 
vacation petitions, as presented.  
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt an Ordinance, vacating the City’s right-of-way, an alley 
commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  To be determined. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the street vacation based on the need of the City. 

 
Attachments: Ordinance  

 Petition and Supporting Documents 
 Kitsap Law Group Letter of Support 
 RESOLVE Appraisal  
    

Page 152 of 318



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
VACATING A PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE, UNOPENED CITY RIGHT-
OF-WAY AN ALLEY COMMONLY KNOWN AS MYSTERY LANE AND THE 
WESTERLY PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE IN PORT ORCHARD, 
WASHINGTON; ESTABLISHING THE CONDITIONS OF SUCH VACATION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, associated petitions to vacate City right-of-way (ROW), an alley 
commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, was 
submitted to the City by William C. and Virginia Anderson, owners of 812 Mystery Lane 
Street, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4060-008-022-0105 and Macailla Barden, owner of 
1145 Sidney Avenue, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 352401-1-004-2000 (“Petitioners”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Petitioners sought signatures to join the petition by adjoining 
property owners, which collectively represent the owners of more than two thirds of 
the abutting property, and all have signed and are in support of the petition; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 14, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 025-23, 
fixing April 11, 2023, as the date for a public hearing on the street vacation petition, 
which is not more than 60 days or less than 20 days after passage of the Resolution 
(POMC Section 12.08.010(3) and RCW 35.79); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk provided public notice of the pending street vacation 
petition and public hearing thereon as required by law (POMC Section 12.08.020(1) and 
RCW 35.79); and  
 

WHEREAS, staff reviewed the petition and, in light of the provisions of POMC 
chapter 12.08.060, determined this proposed street vacation is not subject to the 1889-
1890 Laws of Washington, Chapter 19, Section 32 (the nonuser statue) as it was part of 
the original creation of the City boundaries in 1890; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on April 11, 2023, on the 
proposed street vacation; now, therefore, 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.    Non-user Statute.  Under POMC Section 12.08.060(5), staff has 
determined the area proposed for vacation has not been vacated by lapse of time under 
the non-user statute. 
 

Page 153 of 318



Ordinance No. _____ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 Section 2.   Public Notice.  The City Council finds that the City Clerk provided 
at least 20 days’ and not more than 60 days’ notice of the pendency of the street 
vacation petition and the public hearing thereon, as required by POMC Section 
12.08.020 and RCW 35.79, including notice being posted on the street or alley sought to 
be vacated. 
 
 Section 3.    Staff Report.  Staff has prepared a report and recommendation on 
the proposed vacation, which is dated April 11, 2023.  A copy of this report was available 
to the public prior to the public hearing. 
 
 Section 4. Public Hearing. The public hearing was held on the petition for 
street vacation on April 11. 2023.   
 
 Section 5.   Testimony at Public Hearing.  The Public Hearing was held and no 
one from the public commented on this street vacation. 
 
 Section 6. City Council Findings.  After hearing the testimony of the public, if 
any, and considering the staff report and all other relevant facts, the City Council finds 
as follows:   
 

a. The area sought to be vacated was added to the City by the Town Council, on 
April 6, 1891. To date the City has not opened the ROW.  

b. The area sought to be vacated is not needed for public travel now or in the 
foreseeable future.  

c. The functionality of the area sought to be vacated for public purposes is 
nonexistent.  

d. The vacation of the area would not adversely affect any City utilities, such as 
water, sewer, or storm.  

e. The City has not included any projects within the proposed vacation area as part 
of its six-year road plan, nor has the City any scheduled capital facilities projects 
on this property. 

f. Vacation of the proposed area does not create potential or actual land uses that 
are inconsistent with City growth plans and goals.  This area has not been 
identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 Section 7. City Council Conclusions.  The City Council has determined that 
the area proposed for vacation may be vacated and hereby approves the street vacation 
petition. 
 
 Section 8. Compensation and Recording.  A certified copy of this Ordinance 
vacating the proposed area shall be recorded by the City Clerk with the Kitsap County 
Auditor’s office, as required by RCW 35.79.030, upon receipt by the City of 
compensation from property owners adjacent to the area to be vacated in an amount 
which does not exceed the full appraised value of the area so vacated. 

Page 154 of 318



Ordinance No. _____ 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 Section 9.   Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   
 
 Section 10.   Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved 
summary consisting of the title.  
 
 Section 11.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
and effect five days after publication, as provided by law. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor 
and attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 11th day of April 
2023. 
 
            
             

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR:    
    
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Charlotte Archer, City Attorney   Scott Diener, Councilmember 
 
 
 
PUBLISHED:     
EFFECTIVE DATE:    
 

Page 155 of 318



KrSAP
LAw Gnoup

3212 NW Byron Street #101 . Silverdale, WA 98383
Telephone (360)692-6415 . Fax (360) 692-1257

www.kitsaplawgroup.com

January 23,2023

City Clerk
City of Port Orchard
216 Prospect Street
Porl Orchard, WA 98366

Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way Application
Block 8, Sweany's Second Addition

Greetings:

On behalf of William C. Anderson, Virginia Anderson and Macailla Barden, we are submitting
the enclosed Petition to Vacate City Right of Way, together with the following documents:

o Map of the area to be vacated, with dimensions and new legal descriptions;
o Summary Appraisal Report by Anthony Gibbons;
. Support for Vacation of Right-of-Way Petition by Abutting Property Owners;
. Application processing fee of $120;
o The appraisal fee of $500 is requested to be waived in light the Gibbons' Appraisal

To give full consideration of the merits of this application, as well as the Petitioner's request that
the City of Port Orchard not require payment of compensation in connection with this Petition,
some background is in order.

The neighborhood subject to this Petition has long been known by local surveyors, the City of Port

Orchard and the Kitsap County Assessor's office to have boundary line problems. A simple review
of the Kitsap County Assessor's website depicts property lines running through many of these

property owners' residences. Most recently, these problems manifested themselves in the lawsuit
brought by Ms. Ann Wiggins under Kitsap County Superior Court Case No. 19-2-00985-18 to
quiet title to the'ouse and occupancy lines" of her home, which deviated from the legal description
of her property in her deed.

In this lawsuit, three neighbors to Ms. Wiggins and the City of Port Orchard were brought in as

defendants. In addition to these neighbors and the City, three different title insurance companies,

and several local surveyors, including Lyle "Reed" Mueller, Fred Kegel, Steve Ottmar and Dan

Johnson have become involved to find a solution to this problem. In the Wiggins lawsuit, the
parties worked together to resolve her boundary line problems by order entered in February 2020.
But in doing so, all involved quickly became aware there was a larger problem that needed to be

dealt with. Should this problem continue to be ignored, we would expect the City and these

William H. Broughton
David P. Horton
David A. Weibel

fohn R. Brennan
jay T. Dutcher
Ronald C. T empleton - r etir ed

Re

JAN .$ 0 2023

D
REc

crry OF PORT

s

Page 156 of 318



January 25,2023
2lP age

neighbors to repeatedly be brought into further litigation in the years to come. Rather than waiting
for the next lawsuit to be filed, First American Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title
Insurance Company and the affected neighbors have chosen to proactively work together to resolve
this problem by virtue of a boundary line agreement provided for under RCW 58.04.007. It is our
sincere hope that the City both appreciates and will cooperate with this effort as well.

As part of this process, surveyors Reed Mueller, Fred Kegel and Steve Ottmar researched the
underlying problem and then proceeded to mark out the "use and occupancy lines" for each

affected property owner. Understanding the underlying boundary line problem necessarily begins
in 1890, shortly after the establishment of Sidney (now the City of Port Orchard) when there were
several subdivision plats established within Section 35, Township 24 North, Range I East, W.M.,
including the plat of Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney (the "Plat") that was recorded in 1 89 I .

From the early 1900s to the 1950s, surveys of this area were generally consistent. However, more
recent surveys, i.e., 1980-2000s, have not honored the historic layout of the area. Rather, they
have relied upon a section subdivision breakdown, dividing the section using measured dimensions
to accepted existing perimeter section control monuments, resulting in the property line "chaos"
that is readily apparent in the Kitsap County Assessor's aerial photographs of these properties.

In February 2021, surveyor Fred Kegel with N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc. completed the
necessary field and drafting work to complete a preliminary suvey drawing of the affected
properties. The "use and occupancy lines" were then staked so each owner could see where their
proposed property lines would be located. However, this survey work also disclosed that there is
an unopened alley and a portion of a street (Harrison Street) dedicated under the original 1891

Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney Plat that are being used and occupied by these residences

and garages of these properties. Consequently, to fully resolve this problem a petition to vacate

is required.

In support of this Petition, we engaged the services of appraiser Anthony Gibbons, with RE-
SOLVE, to complete an appraisal of the area to be vacated who determined its value to be

$16,900.

Port Orchard Municipal Code 12.08.050(1)(a) generally requires compensation be paid to the

City for avacated right of way in the amount of one-half of this value:

(1) Ordinances vacating any street, alley, public place or portion thereof shall not
be adopted by the city council until the owners of the property abutting such area

shall compensate the city in the amount required by this section.
(a) If the street, alley, public place or portion thereof has not been part of adedicated
public right-of-way for 25 years or more, or if the subject property to be vacated

was not acquired at public expense, the owners of property abutting the street shall
compensate the city in an amount that does not exceed one-half of the appraised

value of the street.

Page 157 of 318



January 25,2023
3lPage

However, the compensation may be waived in the case of In-Lieu Transfers under POMC
12.08.050(2):

(2) In-Lieu Transfers of Property. Conveyances of other property acceptable to the

city may be made in lieu of the payment required by this section, whether required
to mitigate adverse impacts of the vacation or otherwise. When such a transfer is

proposed for street purposes, the value of the property (as determined in subsections
(lXa) through (c) of this section) shall be credited to the required payment. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel is less than the payment required by subsection (l)(a)
through (c) of this section, the petitioners shall pay the difference to the city. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel exceeds the payment required by subsections (1)(a)

through (c) of this section, the city shall pay the difference to the petitioner. In
addition, the petitioner shall be responsible for all costs associated with this
transfer, in the same manner as a property purchase, including but not limited to,

title insurance, attorney review of the title,hazardous materials/waste testing, etc.

If the Petition is approved, we will then take the final step in this process of completing a
boundary line agreement and/or an agreed order to quiet title to these property line changes and

to remove any cloud on title to these properties, which necessarily would include the City's
ULID parcel no. 4060-008-037-0009. In the case of this parcel, Kitsap County Assessor's aerial

photographs reflect that the property owner's home to the south is located within the City's
parcel. Petitioners respectfully submit that this proposed neighborhood BLA essentially amounts

to an in lieu transfer of property and so no compensation should be charged for the vacation. No

compensation fee should be assessed also because, as a result of the considerable time, effort and

resources already committed to this venture by Petitioners, the City stands to avoid repeated,

expensive and time-consuming litigation over this issue for years to come.

We are available, as needed, to answer questions or provide any additional information needed to

process this petition.

Very truly yours,

KITSAP LAW GROUP FIDELITY NATIONAL LAW GROUP

/s/David A. Weibel /s/Janis G. White

David A. Weibel
Attorney for William & Virginia
Anderson
3212 NW Byron St., Suite 101,

Silverdale, WA 98393
Office: 360-692-6415
Email: dweibel@kitsaplawgroup.com

Janis G. White
Attorney for Macailla Barden
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House
Litigation
701 5th Avenue, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Office: (206)224-6004
Email: Janis.White@fnt.com

Cc: Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney

Page 158 of 318



a

EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK B AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE.

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE,

VACATE PLAT A
OF 17 FEET SROU FI ST.

SCALE: 1" 1 OO'

N
V
O()

J
00

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131 L!

Ld
Z-
O
a

LOT AREA OT VACATED PORTIONS:
LLEY - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.t

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = J787 S.F.t
A

TA\ N.L. Olson & Associates,Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

L(

A

B

C
J

K

m

v
Or\
Ja

D

L

r
I

\,

M

LJ

?a
O

-)Of;a6
Mo
M6
<3r

52

JOB NO.: 11367
2451 Bcthel Avcnuc, P.O. tsox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

Page 159 of 318



EXHIBIT E

PORTION OF TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 2OO8O4O4O131 , WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(

FREDERICK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTRATION NO. 14065

q ,1 ,^

Page 160 of 318



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MAT]AS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

lsls !-q, rNcLUsrlE, BLooK I oF S$EANyS 2N0 ADo|T|ON TO StoNEy, AS
Pqr PLAT RECORDED tN VOLUME 2 0F pLATS, PAGE 18. RECoRoS 0F
{!TS4P cguNry, wAsHtNGroN, As suR\EyED AND STAKED , AND AS SHOW},I
ON SUR\EY RECORDEO IN IOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SUR\IEYS, AFN
TOGEIHER WlH 1HAT PORIION OF AI,I.EY TIIIHIN SAIO

BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTIONNO.---

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008-004-0008

lqls 4-6, rNcLUSt\€, BLOCK 8 OF SVGANTS 2N0 ADDII|ON T0 SlDNEy. As
PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PL{TS, PACE 18, RECORDS OF
K SAP COUNTY. WASHINGTON. AS SURIEY€O AND STAKED , ANO AS SHOI4II
ON SUR\EY R€CORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES 

- 

Of SUR!EIs, AfN
TOGEIHER III1H IHAT PORIION OF ATIEY ITIIHIN SAID

BLOCK E THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUNON
NO.-.-.-...,.--.----

DAVIO NESSETH 4060-008-007-0005

LOTS 7 AND 6, AND IHE NORIH 10 FEET Of' LOT 9, ELOCK 6 OF SI4EANYS
?ryq A9DrnqN To srDNEy, As pER pLAr RECoRDE0 tN VOLUME 2 OF pLArS,
PACE !8, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINCTON, AS SUR\€YED AND
STAKEO . AND AS SHOWT.I ON SUR\EY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PACES

- 

OF SURVE\6, AFN TOGEfiER I1IIH IHAT
PORNON OF ALITY IIIIHIN SAID BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACATED PER CITY OF
PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009-0003

LOT 9, EXeEPT rHE NORIH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, ANo LOTS 10-1,+, tNCLuStlE,
BLOCK 8 OF SVEANYS zND ADDINOiI IO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO
IN VOLUME 2 OF PLAIS. PAGE 18, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNW.
WASHINGTON, AS SUR\EYED AND STAKEO , ANO AS SHOT1TI ON SIJRIEY
RECORDEO IN VOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

Of SUR\EYS. AFN
TOGETHER V?ITH IHAT POR'IION OF AUTY WIHIN SAID

BLOCK 8 fiAT WAS VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.---_

E ELITE EDGE CONSULTING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

15 16, BLOCK 8 OF S'{EANYS 2NO ADDITION 10 SDNEY, AS PER
PAGE 18. RECOROS OF KITSAP2oF
STAKEO . ANO AS SHO|JiI.I ON

OF AFN

8 THAT VACATEO PER CIIY

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERTIES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

2

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 21 AND IHE SOU1H ONE-HAI.f OF LOT 19, SLOCK 8 OF
S]'VEANYS 2ND AODI]ION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO IN VOLUME 2
OF PLATS, PAGE 16, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY. WASHINOTON, AS
srJR\ElEo AND STAKED , ANO AS 51t0WN ON SUR!€Y RECORDED tN
voLUME+ PAGES _ OF SUR!E\s, AFN +
TOGFII{ER HlH IHAT POR'TION OF AUTY $ITHIN SAID BLOCK 8 1HAT WAS
VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCfIARD RESOI.UIION NO.-_

H MACAILLA BAROEN 352401 -1 -004-2000 usE BLAIOC0 FOR gARoENy'l/lcctNs rED

CIry OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

LlE 37-+21|NCLUS1!E' BLOCK I 0F SWEANYS 2ND AoDlTloN TO StDNEy,
AS PER PLAT RECOROED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE T6, RECORDS OF'
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AS SUR\E\GD AND STAKED , AND AS SHOI.TII
Ot.I SURVEY RECORDEO IN VOLUME- PACES 

- 

OF SUR!E\s. AFN
TOOEIHER ITIfi "IHAT PORIION OF HARRISON A\E.

ADJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT WAS VACAIED PER CIfi OF PORT
ORCHARO RESOLUTION NO._---_ ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH fiAT PORTION
oF ALLEY VilIHlN SAID SLOCK 8 IHAT WAS vAcArED PER CITY 0F PORT
ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-008-0J3-0003

LOTS 33-T6, INCLUSIIE, BLOCK 8 OF SI'IEANYS 2NO ADDITION TO SIDNEY,
AS PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18, RECOROS OF
KITSAP COUNry WASHINGTON, EXCEPT IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT J5,
AS SUR\€\€O AND STAKED . AND AS SHOIIN ON SURIEY RECOROEO IN
voLUME_ PAGES _ 0F SIJR\EYS, AFN --.---TOCEIHER W]H I}IAT PORIION OF HARRISON AI/E, AOJACENT TO SAID
BLOCI( 8. THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.- ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH IHAT PORIION OF AUEY TIIIHIN SAIO
BLOCK 8 HAT ViAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32, INCLUS!€, TOGE1HER YIIIH THE SOUIH 20.90 FEST OF LOT
33, ELOCK 8 OF SV€ANVS 2ND AOOIIION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT
RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS. PAGE 18, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY.
WASHINGION, EXCEPT IHE SOU]H 17.20 FEET OF LOT 30. AS SUR\EYED
1'Nq 9rAK€0 , AND As SHoriN oN SUR\EY REC0RoED lN V0t-uME-
PACES 

- 

OF SURIEYS, AFN 

- 

BEING A REFERENCE
TO PARCEL 3 ON SUR!€YS IN VOLUME 88. PAGE 224, TOGEIHER UrH
IHAT PORTION OF HARRISON A!8, AOJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT I/VAS
VACATED PER CIW OF PORT ORCI{ARO RESOLI,JIION NO.- ALSO
TOCEIHER IVIIH IHAT PORTION OF AUTY W]HIN SAID BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS
VACA'IED PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTON NO.---_

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

LOTS 27-29, INCLU$VE. AND lHE SOUIII 17.20 FEET OF LOT 50, BLOCK 6
oF swEANyS 2ND ADorIloN TO StDNEy, AS pgR PLAT RECORDEO tN
vqLuMq ? 0f pLATs, pAcE 16, RECORoS oF KtrsAp couNTy, wAsHtNoToN.
AS SUR\EYED ANO STAKEO , ANO AS SHOVN ON SUR\EY RECOROED INyqlu!4E- eAcEs _ oF s1,R\€15, AFN _ BE|No A
REFERENCE TO PARCIL 2 ON SUR!€Y IN VOLUME 8€, PAGE 224,'TOGEfiER
IIIIH ]HAT POR'TION OF HARRISON A!8. AO,'AC€NT TO SAIO BLOEK 8, THAT
WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO.__-
ALSO TOGEIHER III'IH IHAT PORTION OF ALEY TTIIHIN SAID BLOCK E ]HAT
WAS VACA.IEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTIONNO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060- 008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN 8LA/OCD TBD

N ANN WGGINS 352401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, pAcE 141 IBD

Page 161 of 318



RE.SOLVE

Anthony Gibbons, MAI
Direct Dial 206 909-1046
Email: agibbons@realestatesolve.com

Janis G. White
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House Litigation
Fidelity National Law Group
701 5th Avenne, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Email: Janis. White@fnf.corn

GIBBONS & RIELY PLLC
Real Estate Appraisal, Counseling & Mediation

261 Madison Avenue South, Suite 102
Bainbridge, Washington 9 81 1 0 -257 9

September 23,2021

David A. Weibel
Attorney-at-law
Templeton Horton Weibel & Broughton,PLLC
3212 NW Byron St Ste 101

Silverdale, WA 98383-9 1 54
Email : dweibel@kitsaplaweroup.com

Harrison & Alley Vacation
South of Sroufe Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane
Port Orchard, WA

Dear Ms. White and Mr. Weibel

At your request, we have prepared an appraisal of certain unused rightof-way, consisting of an unimproved

17' alley, and the west 7.5' of an unimproved section of Harrison Avenue, in Porl Orchard, WA. The

property is intended for vacation, and will accrue to neighboring ownerships, for purposes of clearing

certain title issues and set-back encroachrnents. The property intended for vacation comprises 1 1,304sf.

This appraisal has been prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice (USPAP). It is presented as a summary Appraisal Report and complies with the reporting
requirements of USPAP for such reports. The scope of our work is limited to the Sales Comparison

Approach to value. Use of this report is limited to the client.

The property is appraised according to the value accrued to each property as a consequence ofthe vacation,

with the use of a traditional Before & After methodology. Our conclusion reflects the market value of the
property in question.

As a result of our investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following market value for the

subject property, as of the date of value, September 15tfi,2027, the date of inspection:

Market Value (11,304sf @ $1.50/sf) $16o9oo

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony Gibbons, MAI

RE

Rel:21094

RE.SOLVE

Page 162 of 318



APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENT
Presented in a

SUMMARY APPRAISAL REPORT

Identity of Property

The subject ofthis report is certain right-of-way located adjacent to
l2-properties (A through G, I through M), located south of Sroufe

Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane, Port Orchard, WA 98366.

Client and Intended Users

The client and intended Llsers are Janis White and David Weibel, as

clients, as well as authorized associates, representatives or agents.
There are no other intended users.

Intended Use

This appraisal is to be used for the purpose of arriving at a market

value for purposes ofstreet vacation. Please note that the concluded

value is developed prior to any discounts as may be required by

ordinance in the vacation of right-of-way.

Property Rights Appraised

Fee simple interest. The property is appraised based on the value that will accrue to it, when adjoined to

each ofthe 12 neighboring parcels.

Type of Value

The purpose of this appraisal is to establish the market value of the subject property. The term "market

valne" is defined in The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal6th Edition (2015) as follows:

"The most probable price that a property should bring in a competitive and open market

under all conditions requisite to afair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and

knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this

definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specffied date and the passing of title from
seller to the buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and seller are typically motivated;
Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider

their best interests;
A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market,'

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial
arrangements comparable thereto; and
The price represents the normal considerationfor the property sold unaffected by

special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated

with the sale."

a.

b.

d.

e.

L

I

Jfl
t

*fl

I

tg

c

D

E

F

G

a
(J
o
!
co il

L

M

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORllONSr
\ALL€Y - 505' r t7' = 8585 s,F.r

HARRISON Avg. .- 505' x 7.5' a 3787 S.F.*

L.l

l-uz
af
6

FEE'
AYE.

A\

l.(J
o
J
@

lob No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 163 of 318



Conditions of Appraisal

There are three Extraordinary Assurnptions and one Hypothetical Condition, all required for reasonable

analysis.

1. EA 1 : Our appraisal assumes that the subject ROW would be approved for vacation.
2. EA2: ln our Before and After evaluation of the 12-parcels, we have not appraised improvements

situated on the subject properties, considering only land in our valuation.
3. HC 1: A Before and After analysis, for a simple transition, is developed on the same day - that is

the After condition assumes that the ROW is part of the individual properties. This condition is
required for purposes ofreasonable analysis.

Please note, that in our analysis of each property, our evaluation is limited to a determination of the

reasonable value that would accrue through the incremental addition of acreage. The development of the

Before and After values is only for the pllrposes of opining on the value of the property to be vacated.

The date of value is the date of inspection, September 75tt',2020

Sales and Listing History

The subject property has been under city ownership for decades.

Scope of Work

The scope of work performed in this appraisal is in compliance with the specific guidelines of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).

The subject land area is based on survey, and excludes a small portion of the alley that was previously

vacated.

The property appraised is not capable ofindividual development on account ofshape and property condition
(raw condition, lack of utilities, and slope). The highest and best use of the property is then determined to
be assemblage, and the property is appraised on this basis, as though assembled by neighboring ownerships.

2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 164 of 318



Proposed
Alley

vacallon Proposed
Harlion
Vacatlon

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

Assessor Plat Map

Vertical west at

, next to Mystery Lane cul-de-sac Harrison

J

Drone view from south - note

View from the north

from Lane

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 165 of 318



MARKET ANALYSIS

The subject property is located in Port Orchard, in an attractive residential neighborhood. Average home

pricing in the Port Orchard neighborhood is around S405,000, which is a little below the South Kitsap

Average and that for the county as a whole. As with many other areas of Kitsap Courtty, price increases

have been relatively significant, particularly since the onset of the pandemic, representing a shift in activity
away from urban living to more suburban and rural markets.

Within the specific neighborhood of the subject, average horne pricing is close to the city average, with
properties on the market for typically around a week. The housing stock is largely post-war, with the

average for the latest set of sales coming in at a vintage of around 1960, with a home size of approxirnately
1,500sf. Most homes are on lots of under a quarter of an acre. Lot prices are typically around $40,000 to

$50,000, but can get up to $70,000-$90,000 for larger lots with good utility, and few if any site constraints.

,S Are 2017 20t8 2019 2O2O Aus.'21

seaBsk Holly ;il:e
145 oZ chanqe

$319,024

185

$331,s00

174

$425,000

159

$385,000 $s16,500

178

t6v"4Vo l0V.
103

22V"

Chico
146

$379,000 $421,000 $415,000 $526,750 $657,500Price

Units
oZ change tv"

5675
25v.

68

l10A 27Vn

Price

Bremerton Units
148 oZ chmse

$228.37s
473

$253,725

455

$282,800

449

$335,000

496

$408,000

386

11.t, ltyo 18.1,

$278,075

303
Retsil - Price

Nllnchestcr Units
144 oZ chanse

$300,000 s332;oo $378,500 $44l,ooo
265
80 l4v.

t68

ll%o 17Vo

s260,000

359

Price

I'ort Orchrrd tinrts
ll3 9i, chanqe

s370,000

392

slo5,ooo
301

9'%, 9"1,

316

l1'1, | 1"1,

sl97,o0o s325,ooo

S Kitsap Price

WHrvy 16 Units
l4l 7o change

$318,465 $353,986 $400,000 $433"333 $535,000

520 442 311

130/o 230/0

415

8"h
532

11Vo

$340,000

371

S Kitsap Price

E/Hwy 16 Units
142 7o chmqe

$379,000 $4,ro,ooo $569,900

263 3t9 201
$360,000

336
I 60/" 300/o6V. 5Vo

South Kitsflp Price

Average Units
7o chmge

$303,277 $331,030 $359,871 $4t5,512 $504,700

9V. 9Vo 15"/. 2lv"
County Price

Units
$rop00 s345,000

110/"

$377,352

9Vo

$418J17 $485,000

Rcsidential Median IIome Prices

$700,000

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0
2017 2018 2019

-Retsil 
- Nlanchester 

-Bremeton -Chico
-KitsapCounty -SKitsapWHwy 

l6*-SeaBeckHolly

2020

-Port 
Orchard

' S Kitsap E/Hsy 16

Atrg. '21

165

16t

il

t60

1& 149

145
18

147

SubFcl

4

JobNo 21094 RE.SOLVE Fideli[l - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 166 of 318



SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRITPION

Present Use

The subject right-of-way is raw, heavily treed, and sloped in most areas. It is largely undeveloped, although

it runs into the back yard of some residences in a few instances.

Access and Location

The subject is accessed from Sroufe and Mystery Lane, and adjacent private property

Land Area and Shape

The survey below provides the total area of the right-of-way, either vacated already, or intended for

vacation. Below, that portion of the site that has already been vacated is subtracted, to provide for the

current land that is the subject ofthe proposed vacation.

AI

B

c
J

K

m

v(]
o
J

D

a

I

E
L

F

tr

M

hJ

?p
z)
OHn6
0au
0.5<zr

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:\lttry - sob' x 17' * 85Bs s,F.t
HARRISON AVE, - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.n

FES

]<()
o
Je

Lri

IJ
z.
Cf
a

VACATE PIAT

VACAIE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

17 FEET

5

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 167 of 318



ROW to be vacated:

Width Length Total

Harrison 7.5-lf 505-lf 3,787sf

This property may also be allocated according to the property to which it will be joined. Please see the

calculation of allocation below.

Property Alley
leneth 8.50'

Harrison
leneth 7.50'

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

77.73'

71.73',

57.82',

t33.45',

47.82',

6lOsf
61Osf

49lsf
l, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
l, 1 58sf

659sf
659sf
774sf
508sf

59.78'

136.20',

77.s0'
77.50',

91.00'
59.78',

0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf

1,019sf
58lsf
581sf
683sf
923sf

135.90'

77.50',

77.50',

91.00'
123.00'

7,5l7sf 504.9 3,787sf

Thus the following Before and After Land Areas are established

11

6

Propertv After
Land Area

Before Added

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

17,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,731sf
10,019sf
10,019sf
ll,76lsf
l2,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf
491sf

1,134sf
406sf

0sf
508sf

2,177sf
7,240sf
7,240sf
1,456sf
l,43lsf

I 0, I 93sf

I 0, I 93sI

7,896sf.
18,994sf

6,940sf
8,712sf.

4,864sf"
20,908sf
ll,259sf.
11,259sf.

73,217sf.

73,628s1

Job No. 2 1094 REASOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 168 of 318



Topography and Vegetation

The property is sloping with some critical areas Please see the County's critical area map presented below,

which essentially duplicates that of the local jurisdiction, the city of Port Orchard.

Views

This is not view property

Easements & Restrictions

The subject is Right-of-way, but is appraised in fee simple estate, which is the estate that will be conveyed

with no retained city or public rights.

Utilities

Power, water and sewer are available through public utility.

Improvements

The subject is unimproved.

7

| 994.1J9

ttlfit.hti
111.?

1115 |

,tiiit rJ4 1

---, , i

i
l
I

:. ttzd
ttLs.{io

39
I

4e

19.Otl u+r

llatlrd Ar€t
lloderate Hazatd Aria

FnriGb outllo€s
Parcelr (frfis & Addrcss)

Pan€l Labelr LiEhr

Frrx Parcel Libols Dsrk

High Hiztrd Ataa

4ress

Hrard rrp.i

Doundary

Souf,drry

boundrry

Elgh l{r5t5

ilsnrgc Liyr.t

Ioatery
Bsundtry

Soundary

Boundsrt 1998

sr
I

l.

'&(x*
!t
vl

:i
'i

i

j
\.

!
i

I
1

I

I
I
i

'

I

I
I

I

!

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 169 of 318



Zoning

The righlof-way is not zoned, but typically vacated property would take on the zoning of the adjacent
parcels. The surrounding private ownerships are zoned Residential 2 (R2). According to the city code:

"The R2 district is primarily intended to accommodate detached house, duplex, qnd town
house development with a minimum lot size that varies based on building type. The R2
district is intended to implement the residential medium density comprehensive plan
designation. Additional building types that are allowed include baclryard cottage
(detached accessoty dwelling unit), cottage court, duplex and attached house. Uses

that would substantially interfere with the residential nature of the district are not
allou,ed."

The minimum lot size is 5,000sf if accessed from aprimary street, and 3,000sf if accessed from an alley.
Lot widths are 50', with street access, and 30' with alley access; duplex lots require an extra l0' in each

case.

Assessed Value & RE Taxes

The subject is not assessed, as publicly owned, and a property to which typically there is no attached value.

For information purposes only, I have included the prevailing assessment of the surrounding propefiies,
given the fact that, once vacated, the assessor would include the square footage with these holdings, and

perhaps re-assess accordingly.

The current taxation rate is about $10.55 mills - i.e. about 1.05% of assessed value.

Property
Account #

Assessed Values
Land Improvement Total

A
B
C

D
E

F

G

I
J

K
L
M

4060-008-00 1 -000 I
4060-008-004-0008

4060-008-007-0005

4060-008-009-0003

4060-008-0 I 5-0005

4060-008-0 I 7 -0102

4060-008-0 1 9-000 I
4060-008-037-0009
4060-008-033-0003

4060-008-030-0006
4060-008-027-000 1

4060-008-022-010s

$56,420 $241,870 $298,290
s56,420 5179,210 s235,630

$53,650 $208,030 $261,680

$65,880 $333,410 $399,290
$52,550 $73,110 5125,660
$55,320 $33 1,820 $387,140

$44,540 5229,150 5273,690
Port Orchard ULID No assmt

$50,970 $330,430 $381,400

$50,970 s297,040 $348,010

$52,840 $300,700 $353,540
$53,270 $380,950 $434,220

8

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelily - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 170 of 318



OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

Highest and Best Use

The subject property is essentially unusable as right-of-way, and its highest and best use, assuming the

necessary approvals are obtained, is for assemblage with adjacent parcels. This conclusion comes with the

reasonable expectation ofthe vacation being approved by city Council. This is ofcourse an Extraordinary
Assumptiontof this appraisal. In the After case, the surrounding properties are appraised as though now
owning the land adjacent, which would reflect a Hypothetical Condition2, required for purposes of analysis.

Comparable Data

Valuation of the subject propefty is based on a series of lot sales in the neighborhood, this considered a

reasonable measure of the value right-of-way intended for assemblage with such a lot. The data has been

used to develop a relationship between lot value and size, such that the incremental value of additional
square footage within a lot can be measured.

The data is presented below, together with our conclusion of $16,900 total, about $1.50/sf. An explanation
of the result follows on the following page.

1 Something not known to be true, but likely to be true.
2 Something not presently true but a prospective future condition, and required for analysis purposes, in order to be able to value

the subject parcels in the condition that they would be in, were the vacation approved.

9

Sales Analysis

# Address
Site

Utilitv Lot size

Price
Date

Sohlyr up to
Sen-15-21 Land Value

I 1398 Canyon Lane
4056-01 1-015-00-05

2 E WilliamsLane#x2
4536-004-012, -010

3 Arnold Ave East Ave E
4536-004-012, -010

4 1667 SE Crawford Rd

012301-3-038-20-07

5 601 Radey St

4047 -001 -012-04-07

6 Lot 10 SE Serenade Wy
4794-000-0 l 0-04-06

7 1783 Sidney Ave
352401-3-073-20-02

8 Decatur Ave
4027-009-004-00-08

9 Arnold Ave E
4027 -017 -002-00-03

Good location, br.rt

restricted w/slope

Resticted due to slope

but with building pad

Water view, slope

restriction

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Nice quiet cul-de-sac,

level, peekaboo view

Gentle slope, good

access, good utility

Steep slopes, limited
access

Srnall bLrilding pad at

base ofsteep slope

23,958sf

29,621sf

6,098sf

4,792sf

9,583sf

9,l48sf

13,068sf

30,056sf

6,098sf

$32,500
Feb-21

$35,000
Jul-21

$37,000
Itn-27

$50,000
Apr-21

$66,900
Jun-21

$67,000
Apr-21

$92,000
Sep-20

$15,000
Itn-27

$17,000
Aug-21

$33,500
1.03

$35,400
l.0l

$37,400
1,01

$51,100
1.02

$67,600
1.01

$68,300
1.02

$96,600
1.05

$15,200
l.0l

$17,100
1.00

$33,500 $1.40/sf

$35,400 $1.20lsf

$37,400 $6.13/sf

$51,100 $10.66lsl

$67,600 $7.05/sf

$68,300 $7.471sf

$96,600 $7.39lsf

$15,200 $0.51/sf

$17,100 $2.80/sf

Subject 11,304sf $16,900
Sep-21

$16,900
1.00

$160900 $1.50/sf

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 171 of 318



Property Valuation

The comparisons have been divided into restricted sites (by virtue of topography or access) and
unconstrained properties, with the value divide between these being quite significant: the former sell for
between $0.50/sf and $3.00/sf, while the latter fall in a range of $6 to $10/sf. The data also reveals a clear
issue of economies of scale, meaning that for a site of say 5,000sf, the incremental addition of 500sf is not
likely to come at a pro-rata value of the lot as a whole, as the additional land does not materially alter the
market for the property, itjust provides additional yard or buffer. It is an axiom ofreal estate, that, all other
things being equal, a larger site will sell for less on a square-footage basis than a smaller site.

The properties are graphed below, displaying this relationship, with the red dotted best fit line in the center
ofthe graph representing the average ofthe two different data sets. Based on the sales, different before and

after values for the surrounding lots A through M (but no G) are calculated, with the curve providing an

indication of the probable lift in value generated by tlie addition of an increment of land in adjacent (and in
this case) largely sloping topography.

Following the curve, the resulting values are calculated.

10

Site Size v. $/sf of Land
$12.00/sf

T

il, , ..,..,:..

$10.00/sf

c

$8.00/sf
.. I

$6.00/sf X
'..?&...q

$4.00/sf
'),'

X

$2.00/sf
x:
I$0.00/sf

Osf 5,000sf 10p00sf 15p00sf 20,000sf 25,000sf 30,000sf 35,000sf

@ Subject Before
o Subject After
I Good Utility Sites
X Poor Utility Sites

""""' Log.(Comps)
'" Log. (Good Utility Sites)

""""' Log.(Poor Utilify Sitcs)

a

ProDertv
Land Area

Before Added Af,ter

Difference

$ 1,500

$1,500
$2,000

$400

$r,900
$0

$2,400
$200

$1,500
$1,500
$2,000
$2,000

Before

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

I 8,73 I sf
10,019sf
l0,0l9sf
I l,761sf
l2,l97sf

$59,000

$59,000
$s2,000
$67,000
$49,000

$56,000
$40,000
$67,500
s60,000

$60,000
$62,500
$63,000

$6. l6lsf
$6. l6lsf
$7.021sf

$3.75lsf
$7.50/sf
$6.43lsf
$9.18/sf
$3.60/sf

$5.99lsf

$5.99lsf
$5.3 l/sf
$5.17lsf

Aftcr

$60,500

$60,500
$54,000
$67,400
$50"900

$56,000

$42,400
$67,700

$61,500
$6 1,s00

$64,500
$65,000

l0,l93sf
I 0, l93sf
7,896sf

1 8,994sf
6,940sf
8,7l2sf
4,864sf

20,908sf
I l,259sf
I l,259sf
13,217 sf
I 3,628sf

$5.94lsf
$5.94lsf
$6.84/sf
$3.55/sf
$7.33/sf
$6.43lsf
$8.72lsf
$3.24lsf
$5.46lsf
$5.46lsf
$4.88/sf
$4.771sf

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,73 l sf
10,019sf
10,019sf

ll,76lsf
12,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf

491 sf
1, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
2,l77sf
l,240sf
l,240sf
I,456sf
1,43 I sf

I 0,193sI
I 0,193sf
7,896s1

I 8,994sf
6,940s1

8,7l2sf
4,864s1

20,908sf

I l,259sf
11,259s|

13,217 sI
I 3,628sf

$16,900

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 172 of 318



The conclusion of value for the right of way at around $1.50/sf is reasonable as the value of incremental

acreage, and in fact appropriately aligns with typical site values for sites of restricted utility, this of course
quite representative of the nature of the right-of-way in this case - narrow, sloping, and access constrained.

Value Conclusion

As a result of this investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following value for the property
to be vacated:

MarketValue -ll,304sf @ $1.50/sf $16,900

Effective Date of Value

September 15,2021, date of inspection.

Exposure Time

This concept does not really apply to a right-of-way vacation. However, in application to lots adjacent, it
is noted that the market is quite strong, and an exposure of less than a month would be anticipated.

1l

Job No. 21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 173 of 318



APPRAISER'S CERTIF'ICATION

I ceftify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
.8. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct;
n The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting

conditions and are my personal, imparlial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions;
l' I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal

interest with respect to the parties involved.

'i' I have no bias with respect to the properly that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this
assignment.

* My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.
* My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of a

predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount ofthe value opinion,
the attainment ofa stipulated result, or the occurence ofa subsequent event directly related to the intended
use ofthis appraisal.

* The appraisal was made, and the appraisal report prepared, in conformity with the Appraisal Foundation's
Uniform Standards for Professional Appraisal Practice.

* I have made a personal inspection of the properfy that is the subject of this repoft.
* Persons providing significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report are identified herein.
, The use of this report is subj ect to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly

authorized representatives.
{' This appraisal has been made in conformity with the appropriate State and Federal laws and requirements;
A I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the properly that is the

subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment;
* As of the date of this report, Anthony Gibbons has completed the Standards and Ethics Education

Requirement of the Appraisal Institute for Designated Members.

RESTRICTION UPON DISCLOSI'RE & USE:
Disclosure of the contents of this appraisal report is governed by the By-Laws & Regulations ofthe Appraisal Institute.
Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the
appraiser or the firm with which (s)he is connected, or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or to the MAI
designation) shall be disseminated to the public through advertising media, public relations media, news media, sales
media or any other public means of communication without the prior written consent and approval of the undersigned.
No part of this report or any of the conclusions may be included in any offering statement, memorandum, prospectus
or registration without the prior written consent of the appraiser.

The property has been appraised for its fair market value as though owned in fee simple. The opinion of value
expressed below is the result of, and is subject to, the data and conditions described in detail in this report.

Anthony Gibbons made a personal inspection of the subject property on September 75th,2021.

The Date of Value for the subject of this appraisal is February 28th,2020, per client instruction.

Per the MARKET VALLIE definition herein, the concluded market value diminution for the properly that is the subject
ofthis appraisal is on a cash basis and is:

Nurn", @
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser. Lic No 1100854

Signature:

Date Signed: Seotember 23. 2021

t2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 174 of 318



General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

This appraisal report has been made with the following general assumptions:

1. No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided or for matters pertaining to legal or title
considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.

2. The property is appraised free and clear ofany or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated.

3. Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed.

4. The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable, but no warranty is given for its accuracy

5. All engineering studies are assumed to be corect. The plot plans and illustrative material in this report are
included only to help the reader visualize the property.

6. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions ofthe property, subsoil, or structures that
render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for obtaining the
engineering studies that may be required to discover them.

7. It is assumed that the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local
environmental regulations and laws unless the lack of compliance is stated, described, and considered in the
appraisal report.

8. It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions unless
a non-conformity has been identified, described, and considered in this appraisal report.

9. It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates ofoccupancy, consents, and other legislative or
administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the opinion of value contained in this report is

based.

10. It is assumed that the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or property lines
ofthe property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report.

I 1 . Unless otherwise stated in this reporl, the existence of hazardous materials, which may or may not be
present on the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of the
existence ofsuch materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such
substances. The presence ofsubstances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, and other
potentially hazardous materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimated is predicated on
the assumption that there is no such material on or in the propefty that would cause a loss in value. No
responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to
discover them, The intended user is urged to retain an expeft in this field, if desired.

This appraisal repofi has been made with thefollowing general limiting conditions:

If the subject is improved: Any allocation of the total value estimated in this report between the land and
the improvements applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separate values allocated to the
land and buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

2. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication.

3. The appraiser, by reason ofthis appraisal, is not required to give further consultation or testimony or to be

in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously
made,

l3

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 175 of 318



4. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this reporl (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of
the appraiser, or the firm with which the appraiser is connected) shall be disseminated to the public through
advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the prior written consent of the appraiser

Thefollowing assumptions and limiting conditions mey apply to this assignment:

Any opinions ofvalued provided in the repoft apply to the entire property, and any proration or division of
the total into fractional interests will invalidate the opinion ofvalue, unless such proration or division of
interests has been set forth in the report.

2. In the case of proposed developments: If only preliminary plans and specifications were available for use
in the preparation ofthis appraisal; the analysis, therefore, is subject to a review ofthe final plans and
specifications when available.

3. In the case of proposed developments, and the assignment of values to a propefty at the completion of
construction, all proposed improvements are assumed to have been completed unless otherwise stipulated,
so any construction is assumed to conform with the building plans referenced in the reports.

4. In the case ofirnproved properfy: The appraiser assumes that the reader or user ofthis report has been
provided with copies of available building plans and all leases and amendments, if any, that encumber the
property.

5. Ifno legal description or survey was furnished, the appraiser used the county tax plat to ascertain the
physical dimensions and acreage of the property. Should a survey prove this information to be inaccurate,
it may be necessary for this appraisal to be adjusted. If a legal description has been provided, the appraiser
is not responsible for the accuracy of the description. The property appraised is assumed to be as

delineated on county maps, as noted in this appraisal.

6. The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates contained herein are based on current market conditions,
anticipated short-term supply and demand factors, and a continued stable economy. These forecasts are,

therefore, subject to changes with future conditions.

7, If the subject is improved: The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26,1992.
The appraiser has not made a specific compliance survey or analysis of any improvements on the property
to determine whether or not it is in conformity with the various detailed requirements of ADA. It is
possible that a compliance survey of the property and a detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA
would reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of the act. If so,

this fact could have a negative impact upon the value of the property. Since the appraiser has not direct
evidence relating to this issue, possible noncompliance with the requirements of ADA was not considered
in estimating the value of the properfy.

14

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 176 of 318



EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK 8 AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

VACATE PLAT
OF 17 FEET SRO UF T.

SCALE: 1" : 100'

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131

N
v
Oo
J
00

Lr-i

Lrl
Z.rl
a

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:
Y - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.*

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.*

L{ ^t\ 
N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

2453 Bclhcl Avcnuc, P.O. lJox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

A

J

K

0o

\<
Oo
J
a0

B

C

D

I

U E
L

F

G

z

M

L!)^
<F

C)--7>
LE
oha6
Eo
M.E<zr

52

JOB NO.: 11367

Page 177 of 318



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

Page 178 of 318



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MATIAS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

LOTS t-J,
PLAT

8 0F SllEANyS SIDNEY, AS
2

IN
sHow!

OF
TOEEIHER

BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS VACAIEONO,--.__
OF ALT.EY
ORCHARO

HTHIN
PER RESOLUNON

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008- 004-0008

!9Js^1-_9,,t!lglt!E, BLoCK 8 0F swEANys 2ND ADDtTtoN To slDNEy. As
eE.! eLAT REooRDEo tN voLUME 2 0F pLATs, plcr ts, iiicdRo5 di '
Ms4?_99u{Ty, wAsHtNGToN, As siJR!€t€o elo srlr'eo , Ali-o-es snowtl
ON SURIEY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES OF'SUR\iEid A'i}I_ ToGETHER wTH IHAT poRTtoN oF luev tttlltN'sAto
BLocK I THAT wAs vAcAlEo pER ctry oF poRT oRcHARD nrsor_unotiNO,_-_.-..--.---

a
DAVID NESSETH 4060-o08-007-0005

lg.Is .Z AltS 6, AND IHE NoRIH 10 FEET of LoT 9, BIOC( s oF suEANys
?ryq_Ag_Drto-!! To stoNEy, As pER eLAT REconoeo iH vol0uL i oi FLiis,pAcE ts, RECoRDS OF KtTSAp couNTy, wAsHtNcToH, es sui-tnwti AHo
STAKED , AND AS sHovir.l oN sURlEy REcoRoEo tN VoLuUe_- pAcl!'
: -qF .quBl/E\S. AFN rocelrrR vnrx-rxei--
lg!!ot'1 gF ALLEv tlnHtN sAtD BLocK a IHIT wAs vAciiio piC crw or
PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009- 0003

LOT 9, EXCEPT IHE NORTH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, AND LONi 1O-1,+, INCLUSIVE,
Plgcl! 8 oF SIIEANYS 2ND AoDtnoN To slDNEy, As pER PLAT RECoRDED
ll!.y_o.-Ly_!{E ? q q4Ts, eAGE rs, REcoRDs or krrslp Coulrv,"---'-
Ir4qlryqloN, As suR\EyED AND srAKEo , AND As sHo\ol oru brnrnv
RECOROED IN VOLUME_ PAGES OF SUR!E\S. AFN

ToGEIHER wlH 'IHAT poRIoN oF AarEy $ttTHtN sAto
sLocK 8 r{AT vtAS vAcArEo pER ctry oF eoni on+nno'nliiiilunoilNO._

E ELITE EDGE CONSULIING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

!gT-s_ 8,4{q !6, SLoqK 8 oF sn€ANrS 2ND ADOtnoN TO stDNEy, As pER
pLATfiEcoRDED tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, proe ra, neconoi bil(iTSAp
QoV.tlly,,{4sHtNcT0N, As suR\€r€o ANb srAKEo , mio ASs+rorii.i-oir
slJR\Ey REcofiDEo tN voLUME_ pAGEs _ oF suRlEls_ AFfu-_ TOcErltER wrH 1HAT ponnoN oF ALLEY tfliilN SA|O
BLOCK 8 IHAT I,YAS VACATEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD NiSOLUTIOII
NO,.__-.----------------...

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERNES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

LO']'S 17. 1E AND IHE NORIH ONE-HAI.F OF LOr 19, BLOCK 8 OF
9!E4N!! 2ND ADDtTtoN TO stDNEy, As pER PLAT nECOnOsO tN VoLUME 2
oF pLATs, pAGE 16, REcoRos oF itTSAp Couxrv. Gsiiruaioii. li--
suRrEy€D ANo STAKEo , AND As sHovr.r oN suR!€y ngconDeD ir.tygquq- PAGES _ OF srJR\Eys, AFN - " ---. -

I_ggqtrER_lLTH IHAT poRnoN or eury'firHru suo aEEk-TTtnr wns
VACATED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO. "''" "

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 2I AND fiE SOU1H ONE-HALF Or LOT 19. ELOCK 8 OF
SIIiEANYS 2ND AODIIION TO SIDNEYI AS PER PLAT NECONOEO IN VOLUME 2oF pLATS, pAGE 18, REcoRos or *rrsrp counrv. w{sliificioili. is --
slJR\EyEo AND STAKED , AND As slttottl,t ot sun-wy niconoEo tu
Y9!UME: l]\cEs _ oF slJR!E\'tS. AFN
T_ocErHER-wTH IHAT poRnoN or au.ev wrHrN sero aLoEkT-iiar wes
VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT OROIARD RESOI.UIION NO. ' '''' -'

MACAILLA BARDEN J52401 -1 -004-2000 USE BLAIQCD FOR lE0

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

OF SWEANYS 2ND

STAKED
OF

sHow{
AFN

TOGETHER HARRISON

ORCHARD
8, IHAT CITY OF PORTN0.-_

BLOCK 8 IHAT
ALSO 1HAT PORNON

OF ALLEY OF PORT
ORCHARD

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-00E- 033-0003

|o_Tl_13:lg. ryglqgt!€, BLocK I 0F s$,EANt'S 2ND ADD|nON TO StDNEy,

^9_ 

qqR eLAT REcoRDEo tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, preE ia, nEcdnod or'
[[s4r_.cllu]!ry lvAsHtNGToN, ExcEpT THE sourir zo.so r'en bF'[or-ss,
al..qgB\E\€q 4!D STAKED , ANo As sHovru oN suRlEy nlionoro irVOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SIJRVEYS. AFN
rocErHER wlrH IHAT poRnoN oF xmnrsor,r Aw-lTdildEfriE-srro
BLocK 8. IHAT wAs vAcArED pER ctw oF ponr oncxAno agsoltlnor.rNo._-...-------- ALso TooEIHER lvrH IHAT poRloN oF lugv wttxil slro
BLocK 8 rHAr wAs vAcArEo pER ctry oF ponr oncxrnrintsotlrib't
NO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32,
33, SLOCK 8
RECORDED IN

INCLUS!8, $lH IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT

AND AS

ON
OF SURIEYS,

SURVEYS IN
IHAT 8, 1HAT WAS

TOCEIHER
VACAIED

ALSO
6 l9AS

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

0F LoT 30, ELOCK 6

NO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060-008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN BLA/OCD IBO

N ANN WGGINS J52401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, PACE t4t IBD

Page 179 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 89s-90 o cityhall @cityofportorchard. us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

PETITION TO VA CITY RIGHT.OF.WAY
APPTI

(PoMc 12.08 / Re

TION
lution No. 030-17)

This document is considered o public record and is to public disclosure lsws in Chopter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner's Name(s) William C. Anderson inia Anderson & Macailla Barden

2164 NE Eton Lane B rton WA 9831 1Mailing

Contact

Street

lnformation 698-2618

City

rbilloal com

State zip

Phone Email

Address of Requested 812 M Lane
Street or nearest cross

Parcel Number of Requested 4060-008-02 105

1. The undersigned, owner of real property a ing upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port hard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet conta ing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-way by a licensed surveyor:

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County Kitsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of th owners of more than two-thirds of the real
property abutting the requested vacation a ; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

2. State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way' occupancy/boundary line adjustment

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 180 of 318



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and attached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

>r*A- /fzJ^- J,/,e,/AZz
Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Applicant Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed dnd documents sre submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property
abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along
with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting
such area);

o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applica ble;
o Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tZO; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon
Councilapproval),

FOR CITY CLERK'S OFFICE USE ONLY

$L20Vacation Fee Received Yes _ No Receipt N

5500 Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.:-

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Property Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date:

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the Cifi Council Yes _No

Page 2 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 181 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure ldws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) er/ ).L ta^ 4t'UaC)aS CrJ
First and Last Name

3Ut> 6 ft 2 Ct E ..^^ €/.. can/ 743 p,22s.42.. c.oeContact lnformation
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation

Email

8l I ,-^ lr z-cx,r' z /IJ rd

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

A)/ a c /a ,u 4 :t/Oc:7?J ail

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)
Managing Member No. L

.>r/.^Z/* a
(Signature and/or Title)

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing Address:
Street City State Zip

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Contact lnformation:
Phone Email

Page 182 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
215 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356

t360].876-4407 r FAX (350) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document ls cansldered a publlc record ond ls subtect to publlc dlsclosure ldws ln Chopter 42.56 nAAl.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {p"ud"".,), M Ac A-{ {. L 4 8a/ d Ar) btLu t.}'n
First and Last Name

t0 NI mdA{Contact
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested

Parcel Number of Requested

Email '(n{hr
Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sisn this document, This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfJVe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o llAre are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
. l/We understand that lArVe may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

8u / Lvn
First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporatian lif applicable)
Managing Member No. 1

{ tx",.
and/orTitle)

First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (f opplrcoblel
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature andlor Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing 8 3t(
Street

nt"+ v1/\? R\l .t tnN)
Zio

(^
City State

,b5b13L
€ll'otOl,i L {-o(n'

Contact lnformation

Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 183 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 . cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAV
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)
First and Name

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation: d^;(rrnr INJA V lltta (ttrI,^tt*,/#s '1JUI
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) andlor spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

NJ/A
First an N (Printed) Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of 'Corporation (if applicobte)

Managing Me er No. 1

(si and/or Title)

First anJ Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title) 4obo -oob -o3 3 -OOo3'

UK
Property Add Qvztotr Tax Parcel Number

Mailing
q .T

Street 7ipCity

E

Contact lnformation
Phone

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 184 of 318



€n*\l 5**is , L',fa Q-fNt **
City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street port Orchard, WA 99366
(360) 876-4407 c FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhail@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document is considered a public record and is subiect to public disclosure Isws in chapter 42,s6 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation ( )o*",) n. {?
First and Last Name

Contact 36o - 6+b* t*\S e-6,na;L , (o-^-
Phone Email

signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area {Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owne(s) and/or spouses, or torpor"t" officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfffe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of washington that:r l/we are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated,r UWe understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

' l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

)o**.) M. Ayenl /pt:lesTe<

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Va Ourr'l v//13 s )"
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation to - \ob - 0a'{ * oao g

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing No.

and Last Name (Printed) of property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. Z

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

First

Mailing

Street State

lnformation:_
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

ZipCity

Contact

Page 185 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

{360) 876-4407 r FAX {350) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {Petitione Phrtti vraf
First and Last Name

Contact (:s: 170-1 It9 s utcr
^@

vlrd { { , co r",..,

Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested ?L l'4 ftc la'ne ?o.t OrcLa,nA VA q\36 6

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation +ob> - 00? - 027 *000 I

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on myfour tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated rlght-of-way,

hiil i \ utcL.
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No. 1

(Signature Title)

First and fast Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No, 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Y)[ MV!.r1 La ue 40leD - 00!- 0?7- 0001
Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailins Add ?(, M Lare r[ 0rc6
q\

zipStateStreet City

Contact
Phone

0- il
Email

x S qrcr t4,.At .co

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 186 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
2L6 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

(360)876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard, us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)

First and Last Name

Contact lnformation
Phone

t

^4R

M

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Reqr.restecl Vacaticn:$- R>IFE sa ..i ttAREtsa,o AvE,

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

First and Last Name (Pri Officer Name of on (if applicable)

Man

and/or

pn
First and Last

Managing Me

(Sign d/or Title)

Property Address

rate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicoble)

Tax Parcel Number

o.2
nted)

Mailing
Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone

City

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 187 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorcha rd. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chdpter 42,56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (

First and Last Name

,aContact I

Phone Email 5rneei I COn-.
Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation S, t1€

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation: 4DvO - l)Ok' lJll- DIOT

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

N ico \<- Y,sd-'ol-
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer
Managing Member No. 1

ch<-r
Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

t ..rp.-H-(S

P",n#.

(Signature and/or Title)

l.fAca 6, F6 e-k-e-v +-- t
First and Lastilame (Printed) of Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if qpplicoble)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

L+Dt/o- DD*-Dt1-Dtoz
Property Address

bn D.r>v )^ 2 GCc sa
Tax Parcel Number

r^''1- I I ^Mailing Address
Street

3vo
zip

\rv"rar'.--r 
t, C oa-r-r

City State

Contact lnformati
Phone

cL.11
Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 188 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityof portorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUfiING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure lows in Chapter 42,56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) , William C. Anderson & Virginia Anderson

First and Last Name

MRBtLLOA1943@MSN.COMContact lnformation . (206) 615-3104
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation ,812 Mystery Lane

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation 4060-008-022-0105

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

Troy Se'l'land Edge Elite consulting ulc member

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of corporation (if qpplicable)

Managing Member No. 1

Membe r
(Signature and/or

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporalion (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

1133 Sidney Avenue, Port Orchard 4060-008-01 5-0005

Property Address

8035 1sth Avenue

Tax Parcel Number

Seattle WA 98115-4337
Mailing Address

. Troy Selland

City

tragotroy@gmail.com

Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 189 of 318



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhal I @cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorchard.us

PETITION TO VACATE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY
APPTICATION

(POMC 12.08 /Resolution No. 030-17)
This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Propefi Owner's

Mailing 5
Street State 7ipCity

Contact I
Phone Email

Address of Reouested Vacation:
Street or nearest cross street

Parcel Number of Requested

1. The undersigned, owner of real property abutting upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port Orchard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet containing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-woy prepared by a licensed surveyor:

See Exhibit A

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County cf l(itsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of the owners of more than two-thirds of the real

property abutting the requested vacation area; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way: The two vacated areas will accue to neighborins
ownerships for purposes of clearing certain title issues and set-back encroachments. The Washington
Supreme Court recentlv acknowledged and approved a "resurvey to rediscover the boundaries according to the
plat..." Ernelro1d v. ,Renne. 429 P.3d 154. 159 (Wa. 2021) (quotine Sfaaf v. Bilder. 68 Wn.2d 800. 803. 415 P.2d
650 (1966). The petitioners commissioned a resurvev of Block 8 to "retrace the boundarv lines laid down in
the plat." Id.

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

2

Page 190 of 318



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and'aittached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correet owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

Signature of

,{htcrt Z1 Za zz
Date

Signature Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed and documents are submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property

abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along

with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting

such area);
o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applicable;
e Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tzo; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon

Councilapproval).

FOR CITY CLERKOS O}'FICE USE ONLY

$L20 Vacation Fee Received Yes 

- 

No Receipt No.:_

S5OO Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Propefi Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the City Council Yes 

-No
Page? of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 191 of 318



EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK 8 AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

VACATE PLAT
OF 17 FEET SRO UF T.

SCALE: 1" : 100'

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131

N
v
Oo
J
00

Lr-i

Lrl
Z.rl
a

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:
Y - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.*

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.*

L{ ^t\ 
N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

2453 Bclhcl Avcnuc, P.O. lJox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

A

J

K

0o

\<
Oo
J
a0

B

C

D

I

U E
L

F

G

z

M

L!)^
<F

C)--7>
LE
oha6
Eo
M.E<zr

52

JOB NO.: 11367

Page 192 of 318



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

Page 193 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8B Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Approval of a Contract with 4Leaf Inc. for  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 

 Building/Fire Code Plan Review and  DCD Director 
 Building/Fire Code Inspection Services     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City relies on consultants to support the Building Department for plan review and inspection 
services under the City’s building codes.  On March 3, 2023, the City DCD used its consultant roster hosted by 
MRSC to select a consultant for personal services, under a main category of Building Department Services and 
a subcategory of Building Inspection Services.  After reviewing statements of qualification posted on the 
roster, the City selected 4 Leaf Inc, and requested a scope and fee structure for Building Department services.   
 
A contract was negotiated for an amount not to exceed $140,000 through 2024.  The scope provides for a 
variety of services and the fee structure varies depending on the service provided.  The fee schedule is 
attached to the contract as Exhibit B.  It is unlikely that the City will reach the contract amount prior to the 
end of 2024 but given permitting volumes and the City’s targets for time periods in which to respond to 
requests for building inspections, the contract provides flexibility to allow the City to maintain reasonable 
levels of service.  There is currently one on- call consultant that has available inspectors.  In addition, our 
existing on-call consultant is also under contract with surrounding jurisdictions which stretches the 
consultants resources and DCD requires a secondary on-call consultant to manage work volumes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of a contract with 4 Leaf, Inc. as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to approve a contract with 4 Leaf, Inc. not to exceed $140,000 as 
presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: The contract is not to exceed $140,000 during the biennium.  Building plan review and permit 
revenues for the past 2 years have been very strong and have exceeded budgeted revenue.  If the city uses 
the consultant, it will be because there are corresponding unbudgeted revenues to offset the cost.   
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the contract as presented. 
 
Attachments: Contract 

     
 

Page 194 of 318



Page 195 of 318



Page 196 of 318



Page 197 of 318



Page 198 of 318



Page 199 of 318



Page 200 of 318



Page 201 of 318



Page 202 of 318



Page 203 of 318



Page 204 of 318



Page 205 of 318



Page 206 of 318



Page 207 of 318



Page 208 of 318



Page 209 of 318



Page 210 of 318



 
 

Qualifications to Provide On-Call Plan Review & Inspection Services to the City of Port Orchard Page 18 
Section 6: Fee Schedule   February 21, 2023

S
FY2023-2024

t

 NOTES
Plan Review Percentage: 70% 

(Inclusive of all disciplines except Fire and Civil, which are 
billed on an hourly basis.) 

Hourly Plan Review: $95 Non-Structural Review 
                                     $120 Structural Review 

Fee includes:  
 Initial review and two (2) rechecks. 

Hourly charges apply after three (3) or 
more rechecks. 

 Shipping, courier, and electronic 
service. 

Interim Chief Building Official........................................................................................................... $116/hour 
Senior Combination Building Inspector (Building Inspector III) ....................................................... $95/hour 
Commercial Building Inspector (Building Inspector II)  .................................................................... $85/hour 
Residential Building Inspector (Building Inspector I) ........................................................................ $75/hour 
Civil Plan Review Engineer……………………………………………………………………………………………………………$140/hour 
Code Enforcement Officer ................................................................................................................ $85/hour 
Senior Code Enforcement Officer ..................................................................................................... $95/hour 
Administrative Support .................................................................................................................... $52/hour 
Permit Technician ............................................................................................................................. $60/hour 
Senior Permit Technician .................................................................................................................. $70/hour 
Structural Plan Review Engineer ...................................................................................................... $120/hour 
Non-Structural Plans Examiner ........................................................................................................ $95/hour 
Fire Review ....................................................................................................................................... $115/hour 
Fire Inspector I .................................................................................................................................. $85/hour 
Fire Inspector II ................................................................................................................................. $95/hour 
Fire Protection Engineer ................................................................................................................... $185/hour 
Principal Planner ............................................................................................................................... $155/hour 
Senior Planner .................................................................................................................................. $140/hour 
Associate Planner ............................................................................................................................. $120/hour 
Assistant Planner .............................................................................................................................. $100/hour 
Planning Technician .......................................................................................................................... $70/hour 
Public Works Inspector ..................................................................................................................... $101/hour 
ADA Inspection / Review .................................................................................................................. $125/hour 
Software Consultant………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..... $150/hour 
Project Inspector / Inspector of Record ........................................................................................... $110/hour 
OSHPD Review / Inspector ............................................................................................................... $120/hour 
Permit / Counter Manager ............................................................................................................... $90/hour 

Page 211 of 318



 
 

Qualifications to Provide On-Call Plan Review & Inspection Services to the City of Port Orchard Page 19 
Section 6: Fee Schedule   February 21, 2023

Off-Site Project Manager.................................................................................................................. $140/hour
Principal-in-Charge ........................................................................................................................... $180/hour 
Director ............................................................................................................................................. $185/hour 
Approved Subconsultant .................................................................................................................. Cost + 20% 
Hourly overtime charge per inspector ............................................................................................. 1.5 x hourly rate  
Mileage (for inspections performed within the City) ....................................................................... IRS Rate + 20% 
 
*Rates will be communicated with the City Management at time of request. Rates will vary based on the   
qualifications and experience of the personnel. The rates listed in this fee schedule are valid for one (1) year 
from the effective date of contract. 

Rates are inclusive of “tools of the trade” such as forms, telephones, and consumables. 
 All invoicing will be submitted monthly. 
 Staff Augmentation work (excluding plan review) is subject to 2-hour minimum charges unless stated 

otherwise. Services billed in 2-hour increments.  
 Most plan reviews will be done in 10 business days or less and 5 business days or less for re-checks. This 

is not inclusive of holidays or the day of the pick-up of plans. 
 Expedited reviews will be billed: 

- Scenario #1 (Applicant requested): at 1.5x the plan review fee listed in the Fee Schedule.  
- Scenario #2 (City requested): at no additional cost to the City. 

 Plan review of deferred submittals and revisions will be billed at the hourly rates listed above.  
 All plan review services will be subject to a $250.00 minimum fee if percentage-based fee or two 2-hour 

minimum charge if hourly rates apply. 
 All plan review services are billed on a percentage basis and includes the initial review and 2 rechecks. 

- Plan reviews will be billed on an hourly basis only after the initial review and 2 rechecks unless 
otherwise agreed upon on a case-by-case basis. 

- Fire and Civil Reviews are billed on an hourly basis and are not included in the percentage. 
4LEAF assumes that these rates reflect the FY2023-2024 contract period. 3% escalation for FY2025-2026
is negotiable per market conditions. 

 Overtime and Premium time will be charged as follows: 
- Regular time (work begun after 5AM or before 4PM)  1 x hourly rate  
- Nighttime (work begun after 4PM or before 5AM)  1.125 x hourly rate 
- Overtime (over 8-hour M-F or Saturdays)   1.5 x hourly rate 
- Overtime (over 8 hours Sat or 1st 8-hour Sun)   2 x hourly rate 
- Overtime (over 8 hours Sun or Holidays)    3 x hourly rate 

 Overtime will only be billed with prior authorization of the designated City personnel. 
 All work with less than 8 hours rest between shifts will be charged the appropriate overtime rate. 
 All billable expenses will be charged at cost plus 10%. 
 Payment due on receipt. All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1.5% interest charge. 
 Client shall pay attorneys’ fees, or other costs incurred in collecting delinquent amounts. 

Page 212 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
             

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8C Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the  Prepared by: Tony Lang, PW Director 

 Payment of Additional Relocation Benefits  Charlotte Archer, Atty  
 to Ocean and Arlene Williams (prior    Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 - PW 
 owners of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. Atty Review Date: N/A 
 4027-023-017-0004) for the Bay Street   
 Pedestrian Pathway Project   

 
Summary: In 2022, the City purchased Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4027-023-017-0004 (the “Property”) 
from Ocean and Arlene Williams as a necessary acquisition for the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Project.  
Prior to the purchase and in accordance with the City’s Relocation Assistance Program, the Uniform 
Relocation Act, 42 U.S.C. Ch. 61, Chapter 8.26 Revised Code of Washington (RCW), and Chapter 468-100 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC), the City authorized the payment of relocation benefits at the 
recommendation of the City’s Relocation Agent, Tierra Right of Way Services, Ltd., to the Williams in 
accordance with Resolution No. 033-22 (Right-of-Way Acquisition Procedures) and the City’s Relocation 
Assistance Program. By Resolution No. 033-22, the City Council authorized payment of moving benefits in 
the amount of $8,000 and 12-month temporary storage relocation benefits in the amount of $4,440, 
payable in 3-month increments of $1,110. By Resolution No. 014-23, the City Council authorized payment 
of additional moving benefits in the amount of $3,180 for moving expenses for the transport of late-
identified items.  
 
The City’s Relocation Agent received a request for additional storage costs associated with the Williams’ 
storage needs; in addition to a unit at a storage facility, the Williams utilized a POD to store personal 
property for the eligible twelve-month period. Tierra finds the request to reflect reasonable, necessary 
and actual expenses incurred and therefore recommends the Council authorize the payment of an 
additional $2,965.79 in reimbursable storage costs. Please note: all expenditures associated with the Bay 
Street Pedestrian Pathway Project have been identified within the Project Funding Estimate (PFE) and are 
Grant eligible. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8 - Transportation  
 
Recommendation: The City’s Relocation Agent and staff recommend the payment of an additional 
$2,965.79 in storage costs, for a total authorized payment of relocation benefits to Ocean and Arlene 
Williams of $18,585.79 for the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Project, broken down as follows: 
 

1. Previously-approved Initial Relocation Move Payment in the amount of $8,000.00 
2. Previously-approved Moving Storage Benefit in the amount of $4,440.00 
3. Previously-approved Relocation Move Payment of $3,180  

Page 213 of 318



Staff Report 8C 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

4. Additional Moving Storage benefit in the amount of $2,965.79 
 

 Motion for Consideration:  I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the payment of an additional 
 $2,965.79 in relocation benefits to Ocean and Arlene Williams for the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway 
 Project and authorizing the Mayor to execute all necessary documents.  
 

Fiscal Impact: Grant and Local Match funding for this acquisition expenditure is allocated within the 
Project Funding Estimate (PFE) for the Project and the 2021-2022 Biennial Budget. 

 
 Alternatives: None 
 
 Attachments: Resolution 

Exhibit A to Resolution – Tierra Memo re Actual Storage Cost, Increase, and Payment 
Request 
Courtesy copies of eligibility documentation:  
• Attachment 1 – Tierra Memo re Move Estimate-Approved by PW Director 4/4/22 
 

 

Page 214 of 318



RESOLUTION NO. __ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
ADDITIONAL RELOCATION BENEFITS FOR THE PREVIOUS OWNERS OF KITSAP 
COUNTY TAX PARCEL NO. 4027-023-017-0004 FOR THE BAY STREET 
PEDESTRIAN PATHWAY PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EFFECTUATE RELOCATION PAYMENTS. 
  
WHEREAS, the City recently acquired Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4027-023-017-0004 

(the “Property”) to support the construction of the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Project (the 
“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s Relocation Assistance Program, the Uniform 

Relocation Act, 42 U.S.C. Ch. 61, Chapter 8.26 Revised Code of Washington (RCW), and Chapter 
468-100 Washington Administrative Code (WAC), prior to the purchase the City issued an offer 
and Notice of Relocation Eligibility, Entitlements and 90-Day Assurance-Personal Property Only 
for Relocation Assistance to the then-owners of the Property; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the aforementioned authorities and notices issued to the 
owners of the Property, and in conjunction with the Washington State Department of 
Transportation, Local Programs, serving as Contract Administrator for the Project, by Resolution 
in early 2022, and at the recommendation of the City’s consulting Relocation Agent, Tierra Right 
of Way Services, Ltd., the City Council authorized payment of $8,000 for personal property only-
moving expenses and $4,440 in personal property storage costs as eligible relocation expenses 
for the owners of the Property, payable upon the owners’ completed move from the Property; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, in mid 2022, the City Council authorized the purchase of the Property, the 

sale was completed in December 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, recently, the City’s Relocation Agent was made aware of a request from the 

Property’s previous owners for additional storage—the use of a POD, in addition to a rented 
storage unit at a local facility—not previously authorized and increased the requested cost for 
storage; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Relocation Agent reviewed the request, finds it to be reasonable, 

necessary and reflect actual costs incurred, and recommends an additional storage entitlement 
payment of $2,965.79 for the additional storage expenses, for total eligible storage 
authorization of $7,405.79 (inclusive of monies previously authorized and paid); and  

  
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to 

authorize all relocation payments identified herein, consistent with the City’s Relocation 
Assistance Program and the aforementioned authorities; now, therefore,  
 

Page 215 of 318



Resolution No. ____ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 

THAT: The City Council authorizes a Relocation Payment to Ocean and Arlene Williams 
 in the amount of $2,965.79 for personal property-only storage expenses as identified on 
 Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to the Relocation 
 Assistance Program, and authorizes the Mayor to execute all necessary documents to 
 effectuate the payment; and  
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 11th day of April 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 216 of 318



  

T i e r ra  R i gh t  o f  W ay  S er v ic e s ,  L t d .   
L es l i e  F ind l a y ,  De s ign at ed  B r ok er  
8 6 8 5 Ma r t in  Wa y  Ea s t ,  S u i te  20 3   ●   Lac e y ,  W as h i ng t o n 9 85 1 6  ●   P ho n e :  2 0 6 . 3 63 . 1 55 6    
R igh t  of  Wa y  ●  Cu l tu r a l  Re s ou rc es  ●  Env i r onm e nta l  P l ann i ng  
T o l l  F re e :  800 . 887 .0847   ●   ww w. t i e r r a - r o w . c o m  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:     Nick M. Bond, AICP, Development Director 
       
From:    Leslie Findlay, ROW Operations Manager 
                           Mage Bailey, Project Manager 
    Paula Ferreira-Smith, Relocation Agent 
     
Date:    April 4, 2023 
  
Project Title:      City of Port Orchard Pedestrian Enhancement Project (Mosquito Fleet Trail) 
Parcel No.:         4027-023-017-0004 
Displacee:          Ocean & Arlene Williams, Personal Property Only Relocation 
Federal Aid No: STPE-STPUS-0166(008) 
Displacee No. 02 
Subject:              Actual Storage Cost, Increase, and Payment Request 
 
Background Information 
February 2022, the displacement site, Ocean, and Arlene Williams, requested storage benefits for 
their personal property located at the displacement site and in anticipation of selling the property 
for the project. The storage cost analysis was conducted based on online research for storage 
facilities located in the vicinity of the displacement site vacation home located at 1763 Bay Street, 
Port Orchard, WA 98366, and within the vicinity of the displacees permanent home located at 

. The selected storage facilities locations were within the 
eligible transportation cost for moving expenses, for a distance up to a maximum of 50 miles. 
 
The approved storage analysis was recommended for two storage unit one 10’X20’ heated unit at 
$190.00 per month and one 10’X20’ non heated unit at $180.00 per month for a total estimated 
storage cost of $370.00 per month or $4,440/year. This was approved by the city. 
 
Actual Storage Cost 
Public Storage: The displacee selected one 5’x10’ indoor heated storage unit within 50 miles of 
the displacement site for $197.00 for the first 6 months, April 14, 2022, through September 2022. 
The storage unit costs increased in October 2022 to $255.00 per month through April 14, 2023.  
 
PODS Storage Facility: The displacee also selected to rent an alternative storage type of unit 
renting a 10’x20’ PODs container located within 50 miles of the displacement site. They selected 
a storage POD for the convenience to load and unload it only once because the POD will be 
delivered to them. The first 10 months, April 14, 2022, through December 2022 was $385.20 per 
month. In January 2023 there was a .05 cent increase due to taxes, increasing the monthly rent to 
$385.25 through April 14, 2023.  
 

Page 217 of 318



 

2 

 
Increase Storage Payment Request 
On April 2, 2023, I received a letter from Arlene and Ocean explaining why they chose the units 
for storage that they did. They determined that they only needed a smaller heated unit for some 
of their personal items and that renting the POD would only then require one single move, 
lessening the burden on their family and making it more convenient when they are ready to 
unload. They have submitted all receipts for both units for the 12-month period and are 
requesting to be reimbursed for the full amount they have paid for both the storage unit and the 
POD.  
 
Per WSDOT manual 12-8.2.1(a)(4) and WAC 468-100-301(5)(7)(d) I recommend that the City 
of Port Orchard approve reimbursement of the additional amount $2,965.79 for the increase 
storage cost for the heated storage unit and for the POD. This is the difference between the 
previously approved amount of $4,440 and the actual cost of $7,405.79. The twelve-month 
storage benefits will end April 14, 2023. This request is considered, actual, reasonable, and 
necessary.  
 
Payment Request 
Based on the total the attached receipts, I calculated a total cost of $7,405.79. The displacee 
claimed and received payment in the amount of $1,100.00 from the city leaving a difference of 
$6,305.79 to claim. 
 
Please approve the payment in full based on supporting receipts in the amount of $6,305.79. 
 
Supporting Documents: 

• April 2, 2023, letter from Arlene and Ocean Williams 
• PODs Storage, proof of payments from April 2022 thru April 2023 
• Public Storage, proof of payments from April 2022 thru April 2023 
• Agent Storage Cost Estimate Recommendation Approved April 4, 2022 
• Actual storage cost analysis table 
• Relocation Payment Voucher number 2 in the amount of $6,305.79 

The undersigned has reviewed and approves the above Storage Increased Recommendation and 
Actual Storage Cost for Personal Property Only Relocation benefits determination.  

City of Port Orchard 

 

_____________________________    ________________________ 

Nick M. Bond, AICP      Date 
Development Director 
City of Port Orchard  
 
 

4/6/2023

Page 218 of 318



Dear Paula Ferreira-Smith, Tierra Right of Way, WDOT, Port Orchard City Council, Port Orchard
Department of Public Works,

We wanted to share why Ocean and I decided to use PODS instead of the individual storage
units suggested by Paula Ferreira-Smith.

We used one indoor heated storage unit at Public Storage to protect our items that we didn't
want to be exposed to the elements.

We chose PODS for the rest of our items due the convenience of one load up and one load out.
Our schedule is very busy, due to Ocean's work schedule as a physician and 2 active young
kids.

We have given Paula Ferreira-Smith all the reciepts for our storage expenses from April 2022
until present. We have paid all expenses and would like to reimbursed for the full amount. Thank
you.

Arlene and Ocean Williams
Regarding- 1763 Bay Street Port Orchard WA 98366

Page 219 of 318



Page 220 of 318



Page 221 of 318



Page 222 of 318



Page 223 of 318



Page 224 of 318



Page 225 of 318



Page 226 of 318



Page 227 of 318



Page 228 of 318



Page 229 of 318



Page 230 of 318



Page 231 of 318



Page 232 of 318



Page 233 of 318



Page 234 of 318



Page 235 of 318



Page 236 of 318



Relocation Assistance Voucher No. 2 
Agency Name:     
Nick M. Bond, AICP, Community Development Director          
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the items and amounts listed herein are proper 
charges against the Agency. That the same or any part thereof has not been paid, and that I am 
authorized to sign for the claimant. I further certify that I am a citizen of the United States of 
America or am an alien lawfully present in the United States of America. 

Displaced Person(s) or Claimant  
Ocean and Arlene Williams 
1763 Bay Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Signature (Blue ink) for each claimant  

x  

Date 

Ocean Williams x  

Arlene Williams  
Project Title:  City of Port Orchard Pedestrian Enhancement 
Project (Mosquito Fleet Trail) 

Parcel No.:  4027-023 017-0004 Displacee No.:  2  Displacee Name:  Ocean and Arlene Williams  Date Parcel Vacated:  4/14/2022  
Replacement Housing Payments  $ Amounts 

Price Differential – 90-day owner for amounts up to $31,000  $0.00 
MIDP - Increased Mortgage Interest Payment  $0.00 

Incidentals (JN75 / JN79)    $0.00 
Last Resort Housing – owner for amounts over $31,000  $0.00 
Rental Supplement – 90-day tenants and certain others amounts up to $7,200  $0.00 
Down Payment Assistance – 90-day tenants and certain others  $0.00 
Last Resort Housing – tenants amount over $7,200  $0.00 
Comments / other (describe):    $ 

Moving Expense Payments $ Amounts 

Self-Move / Schedule Payments – residential  $0.00 
Actual Expenses (Commercial Move/Actual Cost Self Move) – residential  $0.00 
Fixed Payment (in lieu of all other moving expenses) - Non-Residential  $0.00 
Actual Costs / Self Move / Commercial - Non-Residential  $0.00 
Reestablishment Costs - Non-Residential   $0.00 
Personal Property Only-Move  -Storage Actual Cost  $0.0 
Comments / Other (describe): Final Actual Cost $7,405.79 minus $1,100 previously paid =$6,305.79 $6,305.79 

Deductions:   - $0.00 
TOTAL   $6,305.79 

Invoice No.:   Date:   Amount: $ 6,305.79 
ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION  

PARCEL  
JOB NUMBER  

WORK OP  
ACCOUNT  CONTROL 

SECTION ORG. NO.  NON-PART  
TOTALS 

DOLLARS WORK ORDER  GRP OBJ  SUB 
$ 

TOTAL $6,305.79 
RELOCATION SPECIALIST: Paula Ferrreira-Smith  DATE: 4/62023  RELOCATION SUPERVISOR: Leslie Findlay or             

Marge R. Bailey/PM 
DATE:4/6/2023 

I, the undersigned, certify that the above information is correct, that the payment is necessary for the above relocation assistance, that it has been performed in accordance with prescribed 
procedures, and that this payment is not considered income or resources to a “DISPLACED PERSON” pursuant to Section 216 of Public Law 91-646 and RCW 8 26 115 :

___________________________________________________    ________________ 
Nick M. Bond, AICP, Community Development Director                  DATE 

Warrant Register No.:  Voucher No.:  

RES-537  
Rev  6/2019  

04/6/23

Page 237 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8D Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing an Prepared by: Charlotte Archer 

 Agreement with Vista Motel for   City Attorney 
 Emergency Shelter Services    Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: April 6, 2023 

 
Summary:  The City Council recently adopted the City’s policy pertaining to unauthorized encampments 
occurring on public property within the City. The City currently partners with the Kitsap County HEART 
Program and the Kitsap Community Resources for emergency housing and long-term housing placement, but 
both organizations have limited availability to serve the unhoused in Port Orchard at this time. As a 
component of the City’s policy, and consistent with the requirements of applicable law, the City Council 
authorized the financial assistance of low-income, unhoused individuals in the City in their transition to 
becoming housed through the procurement and provision of short-term emergency housing. This effort is 
necessary to respond to the needs of the community and address public health and safety issues that arise 
from unauthorized encampments on public property. The City has identified a partnership with a local motel, 
the Vista Motel, to provide the City’s homeless residents with emergency, temporary shelter at their facility 
at the request of the City. Further, this effort is responsive to current applicable law, under which the City 
should provide emergency, temporary housing within the City to any individual prior to enforcing the City’s 
regulations against trespassing/anti-camping on public property.  
 
By this agreement, the City would partner with the Vista Motel for confirmed rooms at the motel for the 
provision of emergency, temporary housing for up to three (3) nights. The City incurs no cost under the terms 
of the agreement unless there is a specific request from City staff to address the needs of a low-income, 
unhoused individual subject to City enforcement of the above-referenced regulations. Staff will be present 
for the check-in process, but once admitted the guest will be subject to the motel’s rules and regulations as a 
typical guest. The City has negotiated a cap on any claim arising from damage to the motel due to the guest’s 
conduct.  

 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Chapter 4: Parks 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends adoption of this Resolution and authorization to move forward with a 
partnership with Vista Motel for temporary, emergency shelter for low-income, unhoused residents of Port 
Orchard.  
 

Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Agreement 
with the Vista Motel for temporary, emergency shelter for low-income, unhoused residents of Port Orchard.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Available funding in the general fund and may require a budget amendment. 

Page 238 of 318



 
Staff Report 8D 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 Alternatives:  Do not approve and provide further direction to staff 
 
 Attachments:       Resolution and Agreement 

 
  

 
 

Page 239 of 318



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, PERTAINING 
TO EMERGENCY HOUSING, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE VISTA MOTEL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
  
WHEREAS, the City regulates the act of camping on public property to ensure that 

camping does not pose dangerous public health and safety conditions for the camper, the 
natural environment, and adjacent residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized through its police powers to regulate the use of public 

property and, as a steward of public property, the City must balance the public’s use of these 
spaces for their intended purposes and the fragility of the natural resources and 
environmentally sensitive areas 

 
WHEREAS, in the recent decisions by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in the matters of 

Martin v. City of Boise, and Johnson v. City of Grants Pass, the Court held that under certain 
conditions a city must provide temporary shelter as an alternative to enforcement action, in 
furtherance of public health and safety; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has partnered with the Kitsap County Homeless Encampment Action 
Response and Transitions Program to provide responsive services to unauthorized 
encampments on public property, including temporary shelter, but the program’s resources are 
limited at this time and struggle to meet demand, as COVID-19 and the resultant financial 
insecurity have interrupted the availability of shelter in the region while the region is faced with 
an increase demand for these services; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to partner with a local business for the provision of 

emergency, temporary shelter services, at a discounted rate, for the use by the City’s low- or 
no-income, unhoused residents to support the City’s efforts to remove and redress the public 
health and safety concerns posed by unauthorized encampments on public property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City finds that the primary purpose of this partnership is for the 

protection and promotion of public health by providing low- or no-income, unhoused residents 
temporary shelter and allowing the City to take enforcement action necessary to remove and 
abate unauthorized encampments on public property which present a public health and safety 
hazard, cause damage to public property and environmentally sensitive areas, and are 
incompatible with the public’s use and enjoyment of the city’s parks and public spaces; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council finds it is in the best interest of the City and its 

residents, and in furtherance of the City’s police powers, to partner with the Vista Motel for the 
public purposes stated herein, consistent with the Port Orchard Municipal Code and the City’s 
policies and procedures for responding to unauthorized trespassing and camping on public 
property, and the aforementioned authorities; now, therefore,  

Page 240 of 318



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 

THAT: The City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute an agreement with the Vista 
 Motel in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
 reference, for the valid public purpose of emergency, temporary shelter services for 
 low-income or no-income, unhoused individuals in the City.  
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 11th day of April 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 241 of 318



Motel Voucher Agreement
City of Port Orchard and Vista Motel of Port Orchard

This Agreernent is entered into by and between the City of Port Orchard, a Washington municipal
corporation, and the Vista Motel, a Washington sole proprietorship, who owns and operates a motel located

at 1090 Bethel Ave in the City of Port Orchard (the "Motel"), to provide a fixed rate for Motel rooms to be

used by the City as set out herein.

Services Provided by Vistal Motel

Vista Motel will provide the City of Poft Orchard with the City the exclusive right to two (2) motel

rooms at the Motel and associated vouchers at a fixed rate of $ I 00 (including tax) per night for up to three
(3) nights' stay. A nights' stay is measured the same as any motel stay. As an example, if voucher guest

checks in at 3:00 a.m., then 3:00 a.m. through l 1:00 a.rn. is considered the first night.

The vouchers will be utilized to house individuals, couples, and/or farnilies who are unhoused or
similarly vulnerable who are determined to be eligible for a voucher by the Cify. Other than the terms and

conditions of payment as provided in this Agreement, Vista Motel will treat voucher guests in the same

rnanner as all other standard lnotel guests.

City representatives will corrtact the Vista Motel when the'motel rooms are required for use by the

City. City representatives will screen potential voucher users to determine whether they meet the Eligibility
criteria. City representatives will accompany or meel eligible guests at the Vista Motel and remain present

during the check-in process, to ensure the voucher is not transferred without permission of the City. City
representatives will prirnarily be from the City's Police departments, or the Code Enforcement Officer, but
others may also represent the City.

If extraordinary cleaning (defined as cleaning that exceeds the typical cleaning done between guests

by the motel staff) is required due to the aciions of an voucher guest, the City agrees to pay $25 per hour

for the additional cleaning required, provided that any additional cleaning that will exceed $100 must be

pre-approved by the City.

Eligibility Criteria for Voucher Guests

To qualify for a voucher, individuals, couples, and/or families must meet the following criteria:

o Be unhoused, experiencing homelessness or housing instability, or be a vehicle resident (living in
their car);

o Predominately reside in or have a connectiotr to Port Orchard;

o Have some form of identification or have their identify confirmed by City of Port Orchard staff;

and

. Agree to follow the guest guidelines established by Vista Motel and stated on the voucher (see

Vista Motel Guidelines).

If Vista Motel feels the eligibility criteria and guest guidelines set forth in this agreement are not being
honored in good faith, they have the right to refuse service to voucher participants.

Vista Motel Guest Guidelines

Page 242 of 318



The following guidelines and guest expectations have been established by Vista Motel. These guidelines
will be included on the voucher document and the voucher user will confirm acceptance ofthese conditions.

A. Room guests are limited to those listed on the voucher; no additional guests may be invited into
the room.

B. No smoking in the room, in the common areas, or within 25 feetof the building.

C. The use of an open flame, cooking, or the use of a hotplate, slow cooker or similar device to cook
is prohibited.

D. Quiet hours in rooms, comlnoll areas, and parking lots are between l0 p.m. and 7 a.m.

E. No outgoing telephone calls are allowed to be made from the motel-provided phone in the room.

F. Purchases are not allowed on the TV.

G. The room spaces, property, motel staff, and other guests must be respected.

H. No damage to the room or property is allowed beyond normal wear and tear.

I. No pets are allowed on the property, including ernotional support animals, Service animals are
allowed and should be identified during check-in.

J. Vista Motel strictly prohibits the use, possession, and/or production of narcotics.

K. Guests have a right to privacy in their motel room as long as they are using the rnotel room in an
intended, responsible way. lf a guest is engaging in any illegal activity or unreasonably disturbing
other guests, motel management can enter the room without guest permission.

L. Guests must comply with check-out instructions at the end of the voucher-allotted stay.

M. Abuse or disregard of the guest guidelines may result in the termination of a guest's stay and the
prohibition from future stays.

If a voucher guest is perceived to be suffering an elnergeucy, colnmitting a crime, or to be a danger to
themselves or someone else, Vista Motel staffshould call 9l L

Payment

Vista Motel staff will provide a copy of the completed voucher with accompanying invoice to the
City of Port Orchard, c/o Finance Department, within t4 days of the guest's check oui. Upon submitting
the invoice, the City will make paymentto Vista Motel in the forrn of check within 30 days. If a guest,s
stay is terminated prior to the end of the three-night stay, either by the decision of the guest or VistaMotel,
the adjusted number of actual days will be reflected on the invoice to the city.

Damages

If extraordinary cleaning (defined as cleaning that exceeds the typical cleaning done between guests
by the motel staff) is required due to the actions of an voucher guest, the City agrees to pay $25 pei hour
for the additional cleaning required, provided that any additional cleaning that will exceed $100 must be
pre-approved by the City. In addition, with prior approval the City will reirnburse Vista Motel reasonable
expenses to repair or replace damaged items, not to exceed a total of $500.

Term of Agreement

The fixed rate and guaranteed roorns provided under this Agreement shall be for the period of
March 17,2023, through December 31,2023, but may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties.

Page 243 of 318



Either party may terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time with or without cause by giving ten (10)

days' lotice to the other party in writing. In the event the City terminates or suspends this Agreement

wiihout cause, the Motel shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory

services rendered prior to the effective date oftennination or suspension.

Hold Harmless/Indem nifi cation

Each party is individually responsible for its own employees' and agents' acts and omissions arising

out of or in connection with the performance of this Agreement. Further, each party agrees to indemnifo,

defend, and hold harmless the other party (including their officers, officials, employees, agents, and

volunteers) from any and all claims, costs (including reasonable attorney fees), losses, and judgments that

arise out of or result from the tortious acts, errors, or omissions of the indemnif ing pafiy's officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers in connection withthe performance of activities related to this

Agreement, to the extent caused by the indemrrifuing parfy's acts, errors, or omissions. The provisions of
this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Nondiscrimination.

No person shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefit of any services or

activities made possible by or resulting frorn this Agreement in violation of RCW 49.60.215 or other

applicable law prohibitirrg discrimination. Fufther, in employment made possible or resulting from this

Agreement, theie shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment
in violation of RCW 49.60.180 or other applicable law prohibitirrg discrimination, unless based upon a bona

fide occupational qualification as provided in RCW 49.60.180 or as otherwise permitted by other applicable

law.

Effective Date. This Agreement shall be deemed effective on the last date signed below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above written.

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD VISTA OTEL, a sole proprietorship

fr rzhre* r 03/?q /eozY

Mayor Rob Putaansuu

Date:

Name

Date:

do,o chum V;.w
,/'",t/ 7o > j

Page 244 of 318



Page 245 of 318



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8E Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: The Cruz by the Bay  City Clerk 
        Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a Special Event application for The Cruz by the Bay, as car show, scheduled for 
Sunday, August 13, 2023. The application state’s the following: 

 
EVENT:           The Cruz by the Bay 
TYPE:               Car Show 
DATE(S):           Sunday, August 13, 2023 
TIME:              Setup starts Sunday, August 13, 2023, 6:00 a.m., open to public at 10:00 a.m. until 4:00 

p.m. with teardown completed by 6:00 p.m. 
LOCATION: Downtown Port Orchard; Bay Street/SR166 from Kitsap Street to Orchard Street and 

waterfront and gazebo parking lots (City Lot Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 7) 
CLOSURE(S):  Road closures on Bay Street/SR166 from Kitsap Street to Harrison Street, Port Street, 

Frederick Avenue, Orchard Street, Harrison Street, Sidney Avenue, Robert Geiger Street, 
and parking lots between Sidney Parkway in front of Kitsap Bank, the Port of Bremerton 
Marina Office, and to the Gazebo Area parking lot (behind Peninsula Feed) 

 
The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring safety 
measures and traffic control are in place.  
 
The applicant is requesting closure of Bay Street/SR166 and several side streets. They are working with 
WSDOT for their approval. In the meantime, pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.050(4), staff 
shall bring forward the special event application to the City council for approval when the event requires 
a street or highway closure. 
 
Staff is in support of the highway and road closures as presented and is continuing to work on the final 
details of the event with the applicant, ensuring the highway and street closures are to the safety and 
traffic control standards outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 

Page 246 of 318



Business Item 8E 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for The Cruz on the Bay event, scheduled 
for Sunday, August 13, 2023, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments 

Page 247 of 318



Sprcrnl Everur Penurr AppllcRTtoN
(Ponr ORcnnRo Mururqpnl Coos 5.94 nruo 5.96)

sTANDARD PRocEsstNG rrr: $5o.oo

Event Overview

Admission Fees:

Event Details

r$
kName of event:

Location of event
(

Type of Event: n Festival I Walk/Run n Paiade I Vendor Fair o Atock birtV ' NOther \N

*btrn < 3q g Cdvqk6o-corn,
Event or Organization Website:

bhsk
{"^,""'. lg ot;ei]ed €q, Rhould*5

Description of event

onQ

Does your event require a paid fee for.earticipants and/or spectators? Etrto

Does your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators? trNo

Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s):

1e.Qs P*.Cq{.

Set Up Starts: Take Down Complete:
Day: Start te

5 )
Star(Time:

oLcr tr
End Day:

S,^*-
End Date:
q"llnt-i.

End Tirne:

L.ot Pm
Event Dates/Times: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees
$4S-\3 Goo Arn

Expected Daily Attgndance:
Participants Spectators volunter;/staff

Day: Date Start Time End Time:
cloo -fO O

lQ,() c g
l!.o0n 10

Day: Date: Start Time: tnd lrme:

Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for additional days or details)

,City 
of Port Orchard I Special EveriApplication

Revi:ed 7/3/2023
Page 3 of 10

Page 248 of 318



Name of Organization: $ 't c
Do you have an active City Business License? ENo What is your UBI number?

PointofContactName: ts I ll H."h{^o I I
Street Address:

? ) ttl S.E " R fc, kv'v " R, c.j\)

Mailing Address: (if different from street addra;s)

citvft;1 dc<\^.torl State:(NA zipg?\AL City: State: zig:

Phone:l6o-( )0" e q a4 - Alternate Phone Email:

Organization lnformation*

*Pleose note the orgonizdtion information provided may be shored for inquires made on event details

Alcohol

The sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board .WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees fcr alcohol

sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit. Visit the WSLCB website, https://lcb.waeov/ for
additional information and to apply for the appropriate license / Permit.

Will alcohol be sold or consumed at your event? nYes* \.
xlf yes, you must contoct the Washington State Liquor and Cannobis Boord for a special liquor license.

Food

You will need to reqch out to the Kitsap Public Health District os they moy require a temporory food estoblishment permit,
Visit their website ot https://kitsappublichealth,ora/FoodSsfetv/food vendors,php or call (360) 728-2235 for informfrion,

Will your event have any food service and/or sates?bes n ruo lf yes, how many:

Will your event have professional catering? nYes \" lf yes, how many:

Willyour event have food truck(s)? Nlyes lNo lf yes, how many:

Will your event have food booths or food u"nOorlR ",

T

a^3

fJNo lf yes, how many: rnh4 &"J tn"\{.lL

Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:

An operationol permit is required for mobile food preporotion vehicles equipped with applionces thot
produce smoke or grease-laden vopors or utilize LP-gas systems or CNG systems. Contoct Community
Development.

\

Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be available to the public for your event t4
Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amount of users recommended in the FEMA Spectl Events

Contingency Planning: Job Aids Monual.

No. of users (50% male and 50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets

Up to 240 3

250 to 499 4

City of Port Orchard I Special EventApplication
Revi:ed 1/3/2023

Page 4 of 10
Page 249 of 318



500 to 900 6

L,000 to L,999 t2
2,000 to 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Gorboge ond Recycling

Amplified Sound

Does your event have any amplified sound?EYes E No

Noise levels generoted shsll not be in excess of allowoble levels, consistent with POMC 9.24.050, For more informofion
please contdct the Port Orchdrd Police Depdrtment (360) 876-1700.

Tents

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? t] v"r\r,ro n ruot Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size: Does the tent have sides? fJ yes fJ ruo n ruot applicable

Mdy be required to obtain o permit per POMC 20.200.076 please contoct Community Development (360) 874-5533,

City of Port Orchard I Special EvertApplication
Revi;ed 1/3/2023

Page 5 of 10

Collection Stations: How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

,nrg" t9GaRecycle

Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or will it be managed by a vendor?

setf-Haut: Eyes \No Listvendor/company, if applicable: $ q r(.e hro.b,, qq<,
__

Ir,tt n t
Detail your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood

LnUi, \Ae-ptc^<lcl tn-u{Npn Ll\, ratul .t |re-vrter y F {\<ar
@ $arltson

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sound below:

Start Time:

lO ll rn 3 hAp
End Tim

Suvr
Day Date:

8^r\-]3
Day Date: Start Time End Time:

End Time:Day Date: Start Time

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.g., 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background musi:. etc.)

3 Pl\\ A^nc\\^n.€,rb.\,i\ {, hnt^Sr(.lo A n"
Describe what equipment will be used foi amplified sound, and at what locations (shoilv in maps):

csnTraZT-e-d Df
cribe sc

rnQ \
an

d
ents
L;

3o/ FO L Q-

qAred sound
L{^'. I /"qi'3 di ofd OWh n ma tta such docu m neededASifi pportingh (s PS,

dL).t,T(s<t taq/t4os sbv\
Des

A E(. a s5-( t
mp
A t

Page 250 of 318



Use of City Right-of-Woy ond Parking lmpacts

Use of State Highway:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (Bay Street/SR166)?

For State Highway Closures (Bay Street), the sponsoring organization must submit the opplication to the city at ledst 720

calenddr ddys before the event date, Upon city approvol of the event, the sponsoring orgonization shall seek permission

from the Washington State Deportment of Transportqtion (WSDOT) by completing an online opplicotion, Once permission is

granted from WSDOT, a copy of the Letter ol Acknowledgment or an Agreement will need to be provided to the city 45 days

prior to the event. WSDOT's online applicotion is locdted of; https://www.wsdot.wa.gov/contact/events/special-e\rrrts

Use of Public Property (Right-of-way): eort Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" rnrans any

road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public trave,l and shall

include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof which

are designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property? fl ves \ *o

lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply):

n city Parks:

O v.n Zee Park

O Paul Powers Park

n Parking Lots:

\, Lot L: between Orchard
and Frederick streets on

the north side of Bay
Street

\Olot 2: between
Frederick Street and
Sidney Avenue, north of
Bay St,

O McCormick Village Park

O Central Park

"tS lot 3: five rows of
parking west of
Harrison Ave and east
of and parallel to the
library

\r", n ruo

O rtta Turner Park

O Givens Park

O Lot s: all parking on City
Hall property in front of
the Police department

O lot o: abutting the
landscaped area at the
SW corner of the Bay St

and Dekalb St

intersection

O Rockwell Park

lSrlot 7: all parking gaced
located on the library
property which is l-rrited to
library staff only

O Lot A' employee gking lot
east of City Hall adjacent to
Prospect Alley which is

between Kitsap Str:et and

Prospect Street,

\ Lot 4: all parking east
of Lot 3 and Harrison
Ave and west of the
Marina Park

n sidewalks

{street(s I tf requesting street closure, fill out the closure informdtion below and provide d trdffic control pldn a! the

f,ri,^oorr"a.

Traffic Control Plan:
A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closures and must be submitted with this application. The
following is required to be on the plan(s):

I\o",ow route(s) "Nl Pedestrian and Bicycle routes \ votunteers: how many, where, how long, etc...

7o

City of Port Orchard I Special Evert Application
Revi;ed 7/3/2023

Page 6 of 10

Page 251 of 318



Use of Oty Right-of-Way and parking lmpacF

Use of State Highway;

Wll this event require closure of a State Higfrway Street {Bay StreeVSRl66}? \r*,

ForS'oteHighmyfuures(kySrerl,t}e5ponsorhg orgmffinmtdsrbrdtdte ap4furdoll.tothecitydtleastl:20
mlendsrdofsheto'ethe€lrlmdae.Upclngl' yWrovarq{p-errurt,tlcqurgp/rtngorgorfuigf'-sholl'trtrjkprmission
ltomtlawashlngtmrSffieoep'trlrmtolfrwrgomlilonlWsDOflbysnpkttqanmlireapth.otton.Onrr-permhsiont
gmntedtrcmrAlSDlT,a copy of theLelbrotAdcnowledgnentoron Mneementwlttneedro be grovldedtothe city.
ld/doOfs onlhe applicolbn b loutcd ae h$psrllwvtw.!.v_9dot.:&e.eqv/c.ollFgVFve$9/snecial-evetltg

t se of Public PropertU (Right-ofi-tf,ayl: Port orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states 'Right-of-way {RoW}- means any
road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or ptace ln the city open as a matter of right to pubtic travel and slall
include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian lrfitys; including streets or portions thereofwl-i:h
are designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property? fl Yec fl f,lo

lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be dosed and the location (select all that apply):

fl city partrs:

O Van Zee Park O nacCormick \lillage Park O Etta Tsmer Park O Rockwell Park

O Paul PowersPart O centralP"rk O Givens Park

[] tuo

\
Nr Parkilg Lots:

O [ot t, between orchard
and Frederkk streets on
the north side of Bay

Street

S[ot z, between
Frpderick Street and
SidneyAvenue, north of
Bay SL

Q bt3:frverowsof
par*ingwestof
HarfisonAlreand east
of and parallel tothe
library

$ rot+attprHngest
of Lot 3 and Harrison
Ave and west of the
Marina Park

O bt 5: a[ pa*ine on c-tty

flall propertyin front of
tlrc Polcedepartment

O roteabr*tr6the
landsca@ area atthe
SAI comer of the gay 5t
and Dekalb St

iotersection

Lot 7: all pa*ing spaced
located on the library
propertywhich is limited t
library staff only

O bt St employee parking lct
east of City Hall adjacent tf
ProspectAlley which is

betureen Kitsap Street and
Prospect Street.

D sioexratb:

E] Street{s} t requesting steet closure, ftll ottt lhe closure fifurmatlon betow snd provide a traltic control plan of the

area impaded.

Trafftc Control Plani

Provide the name of the traffic aontrol company you are using to direct traffic, manage road cbsures, and providing certified
flaggers:

City of Port Orf hgrd I Special Event Applicrtsr
Bevised 72/37kAZr

Page6ofl

Page 252 of 318



n Signs/earriers: How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, who is putting them up, who will be takig them

down, etc...

n Certified flaggers: how many will there be, where will they be stationed, what time will they be there, what time will

they be gone, etc..

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to manage the road closures, provide the following
information:

Street Closure Details:

Parking lmpacts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residentia/brrinurrfu Yes n ruo n Not Applicable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)? You may submit a mal to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below.

{
q$ r -4

and is
not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, inchJing any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent
support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials including, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh prrducts of
less than 20-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products without polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or drawn
with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs made of any other materials shall be considered permanent and are subj=t to the
permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (350) 8i4-5533 if
you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

City of Port Orchard I Special Eventlpplication
Revisec 1/3/202i

Fage 7 of 10

Event Signoge

Are you planning to put up temporary rignN"s nruo

"^S ).y- :,--qo,?",.f,,f"d,i"n,"t *,$." ,0""Wit,\-",G"lII"J,,f,gS* ":;S"ilt.,POMC 20.732.290 "Ten

Name of the Traffic Control company A
Point of Contact Name /
Phone Alternate Phone Email

Street Name: Between
lrrncc <trooil

And
lrrncc strootl

Start Date Start Time: End Date Erd Time:

hto.c. r sot\
",-lq 

- \ I 6 Av^ g "13 -\3 6' Pt'1

s; J v\, zt] t-13' \ R bffrn €*t3.\) 6-?m
z)
l-( e.dc.-'V 8 -rr. ). ?, 6Ann ? -. 13-a a, t*f nn

Additionalbetails: (attach additional pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use.)
O tr <\.r+ {
Ro \-e. r-t c- e. i 9...

tt
,l

t\
t,

t,
tr

I

I

Page 253 of 318



Vendors
\

Does your event indicate vendors? I IVes Llruo

lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ ortoolSlv", nruo

lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event?

POMC 5.96, if your event hos two or more vendors engaged in public property vending, you dre required to have c Master
Multi-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVELfee is $ts.00 per day or $200 per month. POMC 5.96.020(3)(a) stotes the

sponsor of the moster event shall provide d list ol porticipdting vendors, their business ndmes, their oddresses ond tieir State
Tox Revenue ldentification Numbers to the city clerk within three working days afier the first day of the operation.

o No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, rlR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

r Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.
r Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitaLl= refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed
each day along with vending devices.

r Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The
location shall be deemed the vending site.

o Utility service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission fom the
adjacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the
sidewalk.

o No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.
e A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet. Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area c,n which
the vending device stands.

r lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event ad'rertising
signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

o Noconductshall bepermittedwhichviolatesanyothersectionofthePortOrchardMunicipal Code,

Site Mop
A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

Vendors: N y", n ruo n ruot applicabte

Beer Garden: E yes -Nl rrro n ruot applicable

signage: -SLYes n ruo n ruot applicable

Tents: nYes \."o n ruot appticabte

Public entrances and exits: -ElYes [ ruo n ruot applicable

Road closures and detours: Nt", n ruo [ ruot applicable

Traffic patterns: \r", n ruo t$,vo, appticabte

Fire Lanes: \t", n ruo fl ruot appticabte

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application

Revisa 1/3/202j
Fage 8 of 10

Page 254 of 318



spontot at the mataer event shatt ptovtde a ltst of parttd'x'd,ng wdo't, ilnir ilslmss names' 
''|rjlr 

addresses ond fielr SIE'€

Tox R*enue Henfr'fiufton ltumlrlrstoillecfrydrl*wtthkthreeyllultitrg dalc6ofterthefrrstdayof dte operotion'

r No public vending is alloffed within tweBty-f$e l25l feet of any rmrni'cipal building monurnent, or fountain' oR with n

ten {10} feet of anters€ction sideunlkt
rVendingdevicesm05tberemovedfiomventrrng,sitesdailybetweenthehorsoflo{Dp.m.and6:&}a.m.
r vending devices and veading sites must ahr"i b" dean and ordedy. The vsr&r nust furnish a suitable refuse

container ard J,*prt.nrl ar d|e canv iJ&r of rcfuse deposiH therein- Retuse aontainers must be remoued

each daY along with vending datis'
r vendon may er€age in publk prop€rty vending onfu in the kcration specified in the public pronertv license' rhe

location shall be deemed the vendingsite'

r utility service connections are not peilnitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the

adjacent property owner. Electrical lines 
"r" 

noi allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of lhe

sidewalk.
r No mechanical audio or noisemaklng devices are alhued, and no hau*ing is allowed'

r A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the rrending dearice, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and on:-

half feet, Any part of the rlmbrelb rnust ruve a minimum of serrcn feet of vertical clearance to the area on wldch

the vending deYice stands'

r lndividual vendor advertising sigm may be plaed only rpon tln vending device. Temporary master event advertis fig

signs may be placed as approred bythecity engineeq and

r No conduct shall be permitted wtrictr vblates anyotters€.tbn ofttre Port orchard Municipal Code'

Site Map
A site map is requircd to be submitted ralhich includes the following:

\,to E rco fl notaPPllcaule
Vendors:

Eeer 6arden:

Signage:

Tents:

Public entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours:

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes:

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

Restrooms:

Evo

flver

flvs

\'o
\,",
\,",

\'o
\,",
'Evo

-Rvo

fl ve

\},*

BNt
[]ro

'Eno

D trto

D t'to

Eno

fl ro

fJtto

Ero

fltto

Ino
firo

D tuotapplicable

[ ilotapplkabh

D ilmapplkable

E ITot apPlicable

fl Notapplicable

D uotappltaue

Elnotappllable

il Notapplicable

E t{ot applicable

, fJ Notapplicable

\notappticalte

il Notapplicable

SqQ "ynq p

lf enent is a run/wallq list start and stop locations and water/rest

ElYes flno
s:btions:

\* appllcabh

Special Event AppllcaEc n

ReYtsed 7U37/20i7
CItyotPortO.cftatd I

Page 8 ol i0

Page 255 of 318



Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

\,",

El yes

\,",
n Yes

nruo

nruo

nruo

[]ruo

! ruot applicable

n ruot applicable

[ ruot applicable

\ot applicable

Restrooms: \r", E ruo n ruot applicabte

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

n Yes n ruo \o,appticable

lnsuronce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the s,ent with
the City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

$1,000,000 Liability; 51,000,000 Bodily tnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure.hubinternational.corn/.

Relesse

I certify that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organization or entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnify. rnd hold

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, hcluding
attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant cr on the

applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligerce of the

City.

The informotion on this form is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chdpter 42,56 E€W.

l, as the President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions listed above.

-Fr+ R).,.r. \N.,J)^+rt B I r I il \^hb{ ll r- a- L j
Signature of President/dtrair of Oiganization Print Na

-1na f r'tt? -

met r^+\ Cn,rr lul't
Date

FOR CITY CLERI('S OFFICE USE ONLY

Comments received by:

Date final review sent:

Date S50 Permit Fee Received

Date lnsurance Certificate(s) Received

n police n punticworks n Finance n communityDevelopment n ritsapTransit f] clerk'soffice n Health Dist'ict

0[ l]s30 g_sa

' "'''-'"::"i,$"i€ Yes ! No

*:*{K-HilTb,u t
Does event require a

Number of days:

4r..--r n n lntD
\U \L^-^ \rL \r1 .- City of Port Orchard I Special EventLpplication

ReviseC 7/3,/2023
?age 9 of 10

Page 256 of 318



M.mvanon.com

Page 257 of 318



lf, lo lm tz lo t..

er
JJ

r
E

F
99

g9
E

S
=

T
T

aI
E

C
S

^a
=

lO
A

+
+

*=
''v

lo
og

l
q 

I4
 

: 
? 

!'a
 

3 
w

E
 <

-q
ab

oq
5D

P
3o

=
 

b 
o 

o 
i 

! 
.^

 
i.+

 
c

9g
3H

F
E

{E
F

d
: 

J 
'- 

O
 

J 
(' 

- 
a

F
 

U
' 

; o
o= R

d
o

a a a

J1

lr I I I I I I I
rr

 
r 

I 
t 

I 
I 

ll

'.1
'l 

I

6

:"
'*

E E

b' t ? 6 E
I

E
I

E
I a

I

I
lll lr I I I I I I a

H
o

!a
la

aa
trI I I I a

t t 
"*

,o
..

I f''
r

ac
la

ai
Q

.g
,R

60
=

flN
z!

6
3:

r;
!+

x
o-

of
or

=
r,

ql
oo

l
lr^

Y
<

@
o

-t
6,

tu
)

O
r 

) 
6'

Q
g?

J

I I I I I I I I t

aa
at

tta
l

H
III

EI I

'g '\ f I t: I I
,lI

"i I I I
r 

r 
rl

e e

tr
ttt

I a t t

d g f,.

al
lll

'llr 
r 

r 
!-

{+
t\

- 
iJ

L
'I

I I I I T ! a-

I

lr I ! I I I I I atI

It

&
t.

r 
J.

l

I I I I I I I I I

I

-.
 t.

S

ul
tg

rv

Ill
ll

x a $ T

fia
aa

aa

r 
r 

ra

.' E I I I

q
'9

t,

si
dn

sy
 A

ve

C
lir

e p

I a {:
-

I *

I

o J a D f 6' 3 lt -o m

0) o J _@ N
) o N N
)

z -l @

o o) € l E

o 0) o
a o 0) o-

c) N c) g, u,
 t

p
=

rA
,

o= €6
'

,!l io l(D
! A

) o (D J (D

ro
N

[H
s

l- ilD IE ilC
f r

f 
. 

a

H
tlo

n 
A

re

E
q

o

a

@
a

a a

a a
an o o

I I

z+

Page 258 of 318



Crrv on' PoRr OncHenu
Public Works Director
z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
Voice: (g6o)BZ6-q99t o Fax: (g6o) 8Z6-+g8o
mdorsey@ cityofportorchard.us
www. cityofportorchard.us

TO

FROM

DATE

SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION REVIEW

City Clerk's Office

Tony Lang- Public Works Director

March 25,2023

RE Special Event Application - The Cruz by the Bay
ln refponse to the above-referenced Special Event Application received on January 6,
2023, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department approves the event application
with {he following requirements:

Sanilation Control and Cleaninq Event sponsor and/or volunteers to provide all
garbage cans for collection, cleaning, and disposal. The use of merchant garbage
dumQsters and/or containers is prohibited without merchant authorization. The event
sponsor and/or volunteers shall provide portable toilets and hand washing stations as
required by the Health Department.

Parking: Spectators to use outlying on-street parking and Kitsap Transit as needed,
Other than event participants, parking will not be allowed along Bay Street (SR 166)
from Kitsap St. to RockwellAve. Public Works to post advanced notice NO PARKING
signage along Bay Street (between Kitsap Street and Harrison) on Wednesday, August
9th. Towing of vehicles by event sponsor may be required. Car show vehicles may only
enter the road closure area between 6:00 AM and 7:30 AM. Event volunteers shall not
abandon their designated posts unless appropriately relieved from responsibility by
another volunteer. Bay St shall remain closed until confirmation has been received that
there are no obstructions remaining on Bay St. that may pose a hazard to motorists,
vendors, spectators, and participants.

Road Closures:
1) Event Sponsor to obtain Bay Street (SR 166) road closure approval from
WSDOT for closure from Kitsap Street to Orchard and Harrison to Rockwell
Avenue between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM. Towing of vehicles may be required by
event sponsor. All eastbound Bay Street (SR 166) traffic to be diverted to
eastbound Kitsap Street then northbound RockwellAve,, and all westbound
traffic on Bay Street (SR 166) diverted to southbound RockwellAvenue then
westbound Kitsap St.

U:\Licenses-Permits\2023\Speciol Events\The Cruz by the Boy\Comments\PW Event Review -
The Cruz 2O23.doc

Page 259 of 318



Cnvop Ponr OncHeno
Public Works Director
z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA g8S66
Voice: (S6o)8Z6-+99r r Fax: (g6o) 8Z6-+g3o
mdorsey@ cityofportorchard.us
www. cityofpo rtorchard. us

2) Public Works staff to establish corresponding street closure portable barriers
and signs as follows in conjunction with the event holder's Traffic Control Plan;
Bay st at Kitsap st, cline Ave (Kitsap st to Bay st) - popD access only, Geiger
(Prospect to Bay street), Port street, orchard Ave, Frederick (pr:ospect st to
Sidney Parkway), Frederick (Prospect St to Bay St), Sidney (Bay Street to Sidney
Parkway), sidney (Prospect st to Bay st), Harrison Ave (Bay street to sidney
Parkway), Bay St at Rockwell.

Waterfront Parkinq Lo_t Closures: Public Works to post required NO PARKING signage
on Monday, August 7th for all pending lot closures (Kitsap Bank, Lot #1 , Lot#2, Lot#3,
and Lot#4) associated with the event. Approval is required from Kitsap Bank and the
Library for the use of their parking lots prior to the event. Lot 1 may be under ,

construction on the date of the event due to the Marina LS project. The event sponsor
needs to have a contingency plan in place for the potential displacement of these cars if
this area is under construction,

U:\Licenses-Permits\2023\Speciol Events\The Cruz by the Boy\Comments\pW Event Review -
The Cruz 2O23.doc

Page 260 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Tony Lang

Saturday, March 25,2023 2:19 PM

Brandy Wallace; Dan Schoonmaker; Angela Garcia; Josie Rademacher; Business
Licensing; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell; Dayna Katula
Chris Esguerra; Matt Brown; Jenine Floyd; Kathy Garcia; Jeff Heglund
RE: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay
Event Review - The Cruz 2023.doc

Here is public works response for The Cruz. They also need to submit an updated TCP as the one submitted is
illegible. lt is cut off on the ends and you cannot make out what their proposed signs say.

Tong Lang
Public Works Director
276 Prospect St.

Port Orchard, WA 98366

CHARD.

From: Brandy Wallace <bwa llace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March t7 , 2023 3:10 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsa ppu blichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg @ po rtofbremerto n.o rg>
Subject: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the Cruz by the Bay taking place August 13,2023
Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV a//3/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further.

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029

1

Page 261 of 318



Ponr Oncsanr Poucn DnpeRTMENT
Senvrcr . HoNoR. IN'tecRrry

MEM()RANDUM

T0: Brondy Wulloce, (ily tlerk
FR0M: Moll Brown, Chief of Police

SUBJETT: 2023- Ihe (ruz by lhe Buy

DATE: April 3,2023

There are no additional safety concerns with the special event plan for the 2023 - The Cruz by
the Bay. The police departrnent will develop an internal operations plan to manage public safety
the 14,000 spectators and pafticipants anticipated to attend the event.

The following conditions need to be met before final approval:

Event organizers, traffic control staff, and involved city Departments must meet in-
person at least once during the planning process to discuss finaltraffic and public safety
plans.

Event organizers must provide cellular phone numbers for all lead contact persons
involved with the event and with traffic control.

a

o

Page I of 1

Page 262 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dayna Katula < Dayna.Katula@kitsappublichealth.org>
Monday, March 27,2023 1:35 PM

Brandy Wallace

RE: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Hi Brandy,

Approve with the following conditions:
1'. Food vendors will need to be located within 200 feet of a restroom, except food trucks are allowed to be within

500 feet of a restroom. "Restroom" means a toilet with handwashing facilities immediately adjacent to the
toilet.

2. A vendor list that includes anyone serving food- including beer gardens, samples, or food given away at no
charge- must be emailed to Dayna Katula at davna.katula@kitsappublichealth.org at least 14 days before the
event.

3. The food vendors may need a Temporary Food Establishment Permit with the Kitsap Public Health District and
should apply for a permit at least 14 days before the event. lf they have any questions, they can call 360-728-
2235 and ask for the Food lnspector of the Day.

Thanksl

Dayna Katula, RS I Program Manager
Food & Living Environment Program
Kitsap Public Health District
345 6*' St., Suite 300 | Bremerton, WA 98337
(360)728-2301office | (360) 633-9018 cell | (350)728-2235Main
Davna.Katula@kitsappublichealth.org I kitsappublichealth.ore

x
x

From: Brandy Wallace <bwa llace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17,2023 3:10 PM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<Dayna.Katula @kitsa ppublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

1

Page 263 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Angela Garcia
Tuesday, March 21,2023 3:09 PM

Brandy Wallace
RE: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

site plan example.pdf; Special event general guidance.docx

Brandy,

Applicant needs to provide a detailed site plan identifying vendor locations that reflect the site plan example forvarious
vendors and food trucks require permits. Please provide the attached to the applicant.

Thanks,

Angela Garcia CBO/CFM
Deputy Director Community Development
Building Official/Fire Code Official
City of Port Orchard
(360) 874-3130

Please note that my email address has changed to agarcia@portorchardwa.gov . Please update your address book
accordingly.

Please make official submittals to the Permit Center at permitcenter@portorchardwa.gov to ensure maintenance of an
accurate Record.

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwallace @portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17,2023 3:10 PM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jf loyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofbrem e rto n.o rg>
Subject: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the Cruz by the Bay taking place August 13,2023.
Please review the materials and provide me your comments by  /ft/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

Page 264 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Business Licensing
Tuesday, March 21,2023 1:57 PM

Brandy Wallace; Tony Lang; Dan Schoonmaker; Angela Garcia; Josie Rademacher;
Business Licensing; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell; Dayna Katula
Chris Esguerra; Matt Brown;Jenine Floyd; Kathy Garcia
RE: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Cc:

Subject:

No comment, they have an active City license

Thank you,

Susnn uruser

Accounting Assistant ll
City of Port Orchard
L6 Prospect Street
Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 874-ss29 / (360) 89s-9029 FAX

Please visit our website at https://portorchardwa.gov/

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwallace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17,2023 3:10 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy G a rcia <kathyg@ po rtofbremerto n.org>
Subject: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the Cruz by the Bay taking place August L3,2023.
Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV a/B/2O23.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)875-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
www. porto rcha rdwa.gov

1

Page 265 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
IO:

Cc:

Subject:

Hurguy, Josh <jhurguy@skfr.org >

Friday, March 24,2023 1 1:29 AM
Brandy Wallace

Goodwin, Cody
RE: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good morning, Brandy,

Good morning, Brandy,

SKFR has no concerns with this event. We will need some space dedicated for unit staging in the area of Sidney and Bay,
north and south of the intersection, which has been handled via incident planning in conjunction with POPD for past
events.

Thanks,

Josh

From: Bra ndy Wallace <bwa llace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March L7,2023 3:10 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; Prevention <Prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofb rem e rton.o rg>
Subject: Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the Cruz by the Bay taking place August 13,2023
Please review the materials and provide me your comments by a/B/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
https://link.edeepilot.com/s/ed4cde66/504hB2YlxUvLHZDhOQNZ8Q?u=http://www.portorchardwa.eov/

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day
by calling 911.

L

Page 266 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Kevin Futrell < kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>
Friday, March 24,2023 3:39 PM

Brandy Wallace
RE: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Kitsap Transit has no issues with the proposed event.

Kevin Futrell, f D

Kitsap Transit, Transit Service Planner

360-478-6224 (office)

lntraoffice Ext. 1004
360-900-7095 (cell)

From: Brandy Wallace <bwallace@portorchardwa.gov>
Sent: March t7,2023 3:10 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jf loyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofbreme rto n.org>
Subject: IEXTERNAL] Special Event - The Cruz by the Bay

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the Cruz by the Bay taking place August 13,2023
Please review the materials and provide me your comments by a/fi/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further.

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
www.oorto rchardwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day
by calling 911.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-moil.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notify the sendervia e-
mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

Page 267 of 318



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8F Meeting Date: April 11, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: Cruisin’ Sunday  City Clerk 
        Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: City staff received a Special Event application for the Cruisin’ Sunday, a Car, Truck, and Bike 
Show, scheduled for Sunday, August 27, 2023. The application state’s the following: 
 

EVENT:           26th Annual Cruisin’ Sunday Car, Truck, and Bike Show 
TYPE:               Car, Truck, and Bike Show  
DATE:              Sunday, August 27, 2023 
TIME:              Setup starts Saturday, August 26, 2023 and is open to public on August 27, 2023 at 8:00 

AM until 4PM  
LOCATION: Christian Life Center, 1780 SE Lincoln Avenue 
CLOSURE(S):  Mitchell Road SE from Bethel to the Lincoln Avenue intersection, and Lincoln Avenue SE 

from Mitchell Road SE to the Northeast corner of the church property.  
 

The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring safety 
measures and traffic control are in place.  
 
The applicant is requesting closure of several side streets. Pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 
5.94.050(4), staff shall bring forward the special event application to the City council for approval when 
the event requires a street or highway closure. 
 
Staff is in support of the road closures as presented and is continuing to work on the final details of the 
event with the applicant, ensuring the street closures are to the safety and traffic control standards 
outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 
 

Page 268 of 318



Business Item 8F 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for Cruisin’ Sunday Car, Truck, and Bike 
Show, event scheduled for Sunday, August 27, 2023, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments 
 

Page 269 of 318



Qott
0Bcl{Au

Sprcnl Everur Pennnn AppllcRTtoN
(Ponr OncHano Murulcrpal Coor 5.94 nruo 5.96)

STANDARD PRocEsslNG rrr: $50.00

Event Overview

Event Details

Name of event: rf, I
ft &tnul

Location of event: CfA".*l A,s Sq. Qa On *o,rs
Type of Event: n Festival n Walk/Run n Parade

n Btock party Xotr,.r, ffrf- 9L)
n Vendor Fair n Concert

Event or Organization Website:
\^l LJ\1, Cfr-lrsln alAcq - cptr/r
+icafuX:C;rirJ, Swup*{

Description of event:
C.o.nr*r.r.rrfv B,€rfr&osr?arje . A^"- see lrrfAan eo L6g6e)

Set Up Starts: Take Down CompletetLr ,t pnor
Start Day: SlrueEllztzs

S}qrt Date-: EVelfvl* Iz9,
Start Time:6.rstT
B'.mAtn-

End Date:
9lz"l?s

ndE T ESd Time:
4t'. OoRrn

Event Dates/Times: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees
BIU lr-t 6CE{ 8: ooarvn- SurqotV

Expected Daily Attendance:
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Date:
AhlL?

Start Time:&ontra. End Time:
4coqr- Abz--A6;D

S.ll.i O/VS.

*oretme \6a
Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for additional days or details)

SEg €rScr,a-:rasg lrfrrl,'rt.eb \- A

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 3 of 12

Page 270 of 318



Admission Fees:

Organization lnformation*

*Please note the organization inlormation provided may be shared for inquires mode on event details

lnsuronce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the

City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

s1,000,000 Liability; s1,000,000 Bodily Injury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsLire.hubinternational.com/.

Porking Impocts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? ff v"r f] ttto n ruot Applicable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicappeil parking)? You may submit a map to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below,

SeaAfibrtlma{< ldA te^t"ra.aes\

\/.rl , .r-'tara r.trrr QAOu. t+ Sf .f f -r- D ?^.., ^,lac I tta ntGr! lar, (tna

OllDoes your event require a paid fee for participants andlor spectators? DYes Eruo SlSrD
GrJr

Does your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators? flVes Etr,to

Admission/participationfee/suggestdonationsamount(s):W,iwT1/s6
ule' asE 6oa- Aflra.oo FNrrs+)Qry\dg ql^"r /ryr., g.r, -.r tc,r.rt E5l@ure.6,5,-
ffi:*ffiffSf* B,Ef,T fio L AiiejJilD aAu6 ftrzrrN .rrre. d;-,bilJ; jfig

Name of orsanization: trrz*,xt Lr* G**a
Do you have an active City Business License? EYes plo What is your UBI number?

Point of Contact Name:
L-toe-v ?,aoo

Street Address:'-"'"""dntct n*: Lgs 4lrtlrez
\-l BO lJrtz-t rl- Arr€.:€.

Mailing Address: (if different from street address)

5A+{e
citY: ?r"- Aaerrrp r.. stRtfr ziptqt4<H^ City: *in6 State zip:

Phone: an-1to-tr D*. cu- l[qL"ts. Email

Gaao. *Je l}.ortrca \Nsrlla,ljc6 cuJ6ft.-fiIel{- Cae.U/,.r.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 4 of !2
Page 271 of 318



Use of City Streets and/or State Highway ( Er$.16=.r,26 -1 )
STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (most common is Bay Street/SR166)? n Ves R *o

lf yes, which highway: ! eay street/sR 166 n sedgwick Road n uile Hill Drive

For State Highway Closures, the sponsorlng organization must submit the application to the city dt least 720 calendar days

before the event dote. Upon cW approval of the event, the sponsoring organization shall seek permission from the Washington
Stote Deportment of Transportation (WSDO| by completing an online opplication, Once permission is granted from WSDOT,

o copy of the Letter of Acknowledgment or an Agreement will need to be provided to the city 45 days prior to the event.
WSDOTs online application is located at: https://www..wsdot.wa.qov/contact/events/special-events

CITY PROPERW/STREETS (Right-of-wavl: Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" means

any road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public travel and

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof
which are designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property/ right-of-way?

lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location
,K"' Cno
'(select all that apply):

City Park(s):

O van Zee Park

O Paul Powers

Park

Parking Lot(s):

O vcCormick
Village Park

O central Park

O Etta Trrner
Park

O Givens Park

O Rockwell Park

Lot 1: between Orchard and Frederick streets on the north side of Bay Street

Lot 2: between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay St.

Lot 3: five rows of parking west of Harrison Ave and east of and parallel to the library

Lot 4: all parking east of Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west of the Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City Hall property in front of the Police department

Lot 6: abutting the landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb St intersection

Lot 7: all parking spaced located on the library property which is limited to library staff only

Lot 8: employee parking lot east of CityHall adjacent to Prospect Alle! which is between Kitsap Street and Prospect
Street.

?,* SzE. ENcr '., :as ? efte(Fc Con tao. f,.r..f {nnp %t-

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Sidewalk(s):

3flsa, Ou*."a-c, 1L0Fr Soauesre0 tsV -rg'9, C.l^r $t-2gZl
Aruo *Pna.rec^{ion- oo(L C{elm LoesrYeo,?-.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/10/2023

Page 5 of 12

Page 272 of 318



street(s): Se<- ToP

lf requestlng street ot highwoy closure, fill out the "Details of Closure" section below and provide o traffic control plan of
the area impacted.

Traffic Control Plan:

A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closures and must be submitted with this application.
See example Site Plan. The following is required to be on the plan(s):

ffi"rourroute(s) fl pedestrian and Bicycle routes fioUnt"ers: how many, where, how long, etc.

6en letrriers: How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, who is putting them up, who will be taking them

down, etc.

I Certified flaggers: how many will there be, where will they be stationed, what time will they be there, what time will

they be gone, etc.

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to manage the road closures, provide the following
information:

Details of Closure(sl:

Name of the Traffic Control company

Point of Contact Name

R.Lea&gac, Cosrazrr- -rNrc. So,-*o /Qr.av r Tnn\
Phone

76->1+9ar, t

Alternate Phone

3Ld:,--ltD. bo\n
Email:

fce-tra9it c-r-on* @- ao\. co v\

Street Name: Between
{rross street}'

And
lrross street)'

Start Date Start Time: End Date End Time:

ts

#
r
Addi-tional details: (attach additional pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use.)

)b>* Qs't>go(ls$tAp €oc- Sraeers Ta C6 CUog-o .
'(Qesecr a 3@, Cr ^srr@6 .sdodlE e.a 1: OO&W\

-cE. !211ct-og11-O*

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 6 of 12
Page 273 of 318



Alcohol Sales/Seruices

The sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board (WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees for alcohol
sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit. Visit the WSLCB website, https://lcb.wa.gov/ for
additional information and to apply for the appropriate license / permit.

Will alcohol be sold or consumed at your event? flYes* XN"
*lf yes, you must contact the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board for a special liquor license,

Food Sales/Service

You will need to reach out to the Kitsop Public Health District as they may require a temporary food establishment permit.
Visit their website at https://kitsappublicheolth.orq/FoodSafetv/food vendors.php or call (36O) 728-2235 for information.

will yourevent have anyfood service and/orsates? ffiye, $lo tfyes, how rr"r' Ei+o3ruffe"*)
Will your event have professional catering? nyes {ruo tf yes, how many:

Will your event have food truck(s)l nves pNo lf ves, how many:

Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:
An operotionol permit is required for mobile food preparation vehicles equipped with applionces thot
produce smoke or greoseJaden vapors or utilize LP-gas systems or CNG systems. Contqct Community
o*l"o"tnotorrucksafetvHandout 

WW 
Dffi' t,ttr- 6c

r Mobile Food Preparation Vehicle Permit Application

Garbage and Recycling

(rlurrerrif^

Collection Stations: How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

Recycle 6 earaaee 26 (fr6ru.oN)
Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or will it be managed by a vendor?

Self-Haul: Hy"r nruo List vendor/company, if applicable: lrlE \LrlE .fT.,go \-labc- DJfi\ErEa
Detail your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood: csN^gtrt.

UttaA VotrNT&,ras tr.)trr. Ga n ar-L-ecrrlC$6,frfe *ras.rfs ar.D Te&Nstuenru€-r-'r Tb 1t-e Loaae, Dunnesuarls. a\ AD/Drrraalm->umgsga\lurGe aerneo A19MOP. Drnesaa gze, b, J/+'. 
"fiFa';AA6=rtr6fi6iif'6E 

eme"v,uer ru6Orrngi*g aN-TtraDAV. nesmv r.-q.ra r.\DRrry\Au-Y E.yrP D.rr- fip trta
C.tleAci+

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

PageT ot L2
Page 274 of 318



Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be available to the public for your event lZ-l{
Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amount of users recomrnended in the FEMA Special Events

Contingency Planning: Job Aids Manuol.

No. of users (50% male and 50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets

up to 240 3

250 to 499 4

500 to 900 6

L,000 to 1,999 L/ t2-lS uilflt rulatl tfilt-noA)
2,000 to 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Master Multi-Vendor Event License

will your event have vendors? fives nruo

lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your eventf ABg.tT i
lf so, will they be selling

4 of this application.

mer,chandise and/ or food? lYes FI,r" - lf you indicated Yes, please see the Food section on Page

Varseswrlr- Ec, l-ocxta qr frl€ Crr.rrc* G€ou,.ps.g EJclxr:rrf- z-f o]thcrl- sAa*s Teva.rozs ftGrh reglw^

hrurru-Vrat)

POMC 5,96, if your event has two or more vendors engoged in public property vending, you are required to have a Moster

Mutti-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVELfee is $t5,00 per day or $ZOO per month. POMC 5,96.020(3)(a) states the

sponsor of the msster event sholl provide a list of participating vendors, their business ndmes, their addresses and their State

Tax Revenue ldentification Numbers to the cW clerk within three working days after the first day ol the operation.

o No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

o Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of L0:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.

o Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed

each day along with vending devices.
r Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The

location shall be deemed the vending site.
o Utility service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the

adjacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the

sidewalk.
o No mechanlcal audio or noisernaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.
o A vinyl or qanvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter m€y not exceed eight and one-

half feet, Any part of the umbrella must have,a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to'the area on which

the vending device stands.
o lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising

signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

o No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

city of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 8 of 12
Page 275 of 318



Tents ENcr-osrr.g'ilqB
Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? ffi Ves ! ruo I Not Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size: Se EXOoglCA ?,* ?. Does the tent have sides? ! yes n ruo n ruot applicable

Moy be required to obtoin a permit per POMC 20,200,076.Pp1ease contact Community Development (360) 874-5533.

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary signs? nYes Ft"
POMC 20.732,290'Temporary sign" (which may include special event sign) means any sign that is used temporarily and is
not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, including any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent
support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials including, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh products of
less than 20-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products without polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or drawn
with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs made of any other materials shall be consldered permanent and are subject to the
permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (360) 874-5533 if
you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

Amplified Sound EAlCcoseES S t I
Does your event have any amplified sound? ffv", fl ruo

Noise levels generated shall not be in excess of allowahle levels, conslstent with POMC 9,24.050, For more Information
please contdct the Port Orchord Police Department (360) 876-1700.

CitV of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/7O/2O23

Page 9 of 12

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sound below

Day: 
=*-TPssrlA 3v <<en

o^'"'916.lz<
\

Start Time:'2-..aEAh End Time:z+t OOPfi'a
Day: <.rJAl
tr^rCnr bA:l ht" n zDLs

Date: Start Time:

6'.mAllt
End Time:

*,orr.r'fl\.
Day: Date: Start Time: End Time

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.g., 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background music, etc.):

€: co Afnar€/narK / 8:=o -qg6An hor6rzorro mus{aeaD.rs. J
lrua $nrrstc srgs AT \?-'. t+S- 

"DOft^, 
Sea a.rr-r-eoat I 6aFVE\f &$€Do."E @

Describe what equipment will be used for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps)
' Ylfu %. 6{ (:r,--r-r{l-€. S

Describe schematics and direction of amplified sound (show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed?rc*x *c brqc"ueE g

Page 276 of 318



SiteMop htc6ro* ,-g '' '' :'
A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

Vendors: {r", n ruo [ ruot applicable

Beer Garden: n Yes F*o n wot applicable

Signage:

Tents:

Public entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours:

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes:

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

Restrooms:

n ves

.dv"t

[] Yes

flyes

pves

dv.,
rtr",
Eves

4r",
,cr",

Ero
nruo

!no

nruo

nruo

nruo

nno

Eruo

!ruo

nruo

! trto

f] tuot applicable

n not applicable

! tuot applicable

Z|nrr-applicable

! ruot applicable

E ruot applicable

f] ruot applicable

E ruot applicable

n ruot applicable

n ruot applicable

! trtot applicableil",
lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

flYes nruo ffit applicable

Releqse

I certifli that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organization of entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees andivolunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including

attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant or on the

applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the

City.

The inlormation on this form is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

l, as President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions listed above.

2
DateSign re of President/Chair of Organization Pri Name

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/7O/2O23

Page 10 of 12
Page 277 of 318



Date Special Event Fee paid (S50)

FOR CIW CLERK'S OFFICE USE ONTY

Receipt No.

I nsu rance Certifi cate(s) Received:

Does event require a Master Multi-Vendor License: n yes ! wo

tf Yes: E S$/day fee D g2O0lmonthty fee

Number of days: Total Amount: _ Date paid: Receipt No.:_

Depa rtment/Agency Routing:

f] potice fl puolic works E Finance E community Development n ritsap Transit fl clerk,s office E Health District

Public Notice Dates:

Council Action Date

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/70,/2023

Page 11 of 12
Page 278 of 318



(t)rnqep€-n rz
(1)r@€.4 t z

Few p.rcF p6r €{4 t t
p@wrn@pz{a t t

ru{6rffiarorsots0u : t

l'ry@
lil---;E.gl'#llH1lffi
r--,,.ijj-fitffiF--

t

s#u
1Wl

ar.

$rr i
'G-*Tf,'rS-h"
,t'' S

Il-1

tl
I

t!
IJ,
\

r.r ir" I

ir

tl

a/

t#;,'
lf;,&

T

't

,.ft.:

|::

.?lla,;

|5,

{

I
j

i

aui'

*

i

tL*

a. r

l-
]F

I

b

"'7

-4,

a.
aa:)

"a(
.1

I

|E

#

r*

*t
f,ir

a.;

' i:Jr{t trtt r:

t
t

r(

a

,.1

I

J

a

t,"'

;*h

1.

t"

'L

-.tl

$

t:i

a
{

a't
\r.

t

-,,t :"#
"t lr

', ,l

tl

I'

. 
'*i'llt'.t'#,,;ffi*

;,"il -,"tta
; {s+r; :

\"

t
aat

li

-a
t
a

a't-
a
,"':"

t(:

;r

.i1
'a

a

p
o
o

b

I

t*

,

,

f

,

I

a

seft*

ri

.t
h,

i

&
J

4uJo)'uoue^ut'MMM
Page 279 of 318



VIRGIL BROWN
LEAD PASTOR

City Staff & Council Committee
City of Port Orchard
216 Prospect Street,
Port Orchard, Wa.

Dear City Staff & Council Committee,

For the past several years, we have been working with the City Traffic
Depaftment to assist us in road closures for our "Annual Cruisin'
Sunday Car, Truck & Bike Show (Cruise for Food Drive)". This year our
community event is set for Sunday, August 27,2023, for Poft Orchard
and the surrounding Kitsap Peninsula. Since the City decided to end
traffic barrier support for special events, RCE Traffic Control, INC
provided us with alternate traffic signs for the road closure last year
and will be doing it again for this year's community event. We are
coming forth to present our request to the City Council for approval of
our event and road closure for 2023. Please see Enclosure 7 for the
projected road closures attached to this year's application. The road
closures listed were suggested to us by the Police Chief and the City
Engineer last year and they made our event safe and successful.
Enclosure 7 was drawn up by RCE Traffic Control, INC. here in Port
Orchard.

1. These are some factors behind our proposal for the closing of these
streets:

a. We are expecting over 405 show cars, which will take up
most of the church's lower and upper parking spaces, and
pafts of Mitchell and Lincoln Ave. In addition, our large
tents, musical performance stage, and planned activities, will
take up the rest of the church's propefi.

b. The safety of children and families as they participate in the
large activity items (giant slides, obstacle courses, etc) and
coming and going from the EPO school field (also used as a
parking lot for families and church parking).

c. The anticipated amount of people in attendance and the
space to park their personal automobiles.

2. The following Enclosures have been enclosed with this
application.

c
LI

HRISTIAN
FECENTER

CHRISTIAN
LIFECENTER

l78O Lincoln Ave SE

Port Orchard, WA 98366
(36O)876-ss9s

www.clcpo.org

(n
m
n
rn

$t

a

a

t-
o
m

O
n
o

=

a. Enclosures L - 4 gives a general layout of our event.

Page 280 of 318



b. Enclosure 5 gives projected sound ray directions and sound
equipment that we rented last year.

c. Enclosure 6 shows the traffic flow for our congregation to
take for parking. This parking area will also be available for
the community to park.

d. Enclosures 7 shows RCE's layout for road closures and
Detour roads.

e. Enclosure B shows a general schedule from 2022 events.

This will be our 26th year hosting this community event and
we are expecting even more businesses to become paft of our
growing list of Sponsors for Cruisin'Sunday. Since 1996, this
event has become an influential and important event for
families and car and bike enthusiasts in the Kitsap County
community and surrounding areas. The free community event
has drawn over 4000 people throughout the day. Right now,
Christian Life Center is actively gearing up for our event. Last
year we exceeded our expectations on the amount of people
and show cars that attended this event. A lot of volunteers,
hard work, community support, great weather, and great
sponsors have made this community event better every year!
The atmosphere at our free community event is filled with fun,
live Rock-N-Roll music and over 410 beautiful show vehicles.
The aroma of BBQ hamburgers and Hot Dogs fill the air. Last
year, an ovenruhelming number of people took part in this
event, enjoying donated Root Beer from Deep Draft Brewing
Company with ice cream to make up our special root beer
floats, Dickey's BBQ Ribs, Coke products, Monster Drinks, door
prizes, vendors, big inflatable toys, and rides for kids to enjoy.
The Fathoms of Fun Royal Court (Queen and Princess) and the
City Mayor even took time out of their busy schedule to be part
of this event. The event has always been a great time for
families and friends to come together in suppoft of the South
Kitsap Helpline Community Food Bank for people in
need of a helping hand.

If it would be helpful, we would be glad to meet with you at a
mutually convenient time to discuss the traffic proposal for
"Cruisin'Sunday". I may be reached on my cell phone @ 360-
7L0-4076, cruisinsunday@gmail.com, or a message may be left
for me at the Church at 876-5595. I have attached a smaller
poster/newspaper version of last year's community for your
viewing.

Page 281 of 318



Thank you for your consideration of our request. I look fonryard
to hearing from you and working with you on this matter.

Sincerely

ristian Life Center
Larry M. Rubio
Event Coordinator
Christian Life Center (Cruisin' Sunday)
1780 SE. Lincoln Ave.
Port Orchard, Wa. 98366
(360) 876-ss9s (Church)
(360) 710-4076
E-Mail Address: cruisinsundav@gmail.com.
Website: cruisinsunday.com

Page 282 of 318



F

lU
TE
f
@o
Joz
LrJsE

CE

I

.a
a

tt
E,

o
F
()
il-t

=

ffi

Showoo
G)o$

e<tr+j
oCLEOEcl'o

L

IL

@
-

It
E,
o
.g
oo
tHrt=l

Beck St.

Dept.
--

Portable
washstation

throughout the
grounds

Show Car
Parking Only

Portable Toilets
throughout the

groundsrs I
I
I

';;,*Ell"';;ffiffi.
Carnival Booths, Fire Dept. Disptayetc. - 

-- |

i""/$;Fxf;
Hoover Ave. e( A{e

Watel ,4
.& l:rilH

riJrqI --

I
t
t

\ t
-a----------

z- Show Car Parking on Lincoln Ave

Guest & Church Parking
On the field outside

the kids area
and at EPO School

--,

Fire Dept. Access

-t, I
Food

SeMng Tent

\

-

r6$now Car Parking-' as directed by
I parking attendant s I

a

Hot Dogs & Chips
Condiment tent
Opens @ 12:00

ffiH

@

Green
Dale Dr.ml f As by Parking attendant

2---a2

,i 1-inCOln AVe -r+, Ltncoln Avem ,. - -Lg6r6lsRoute_dR o r r)

I

tr
directedI a

l--_rt
t
,

t
t

L

Traffic
Volunteer

Posted

a

a

CD
I

@

I
I
lo
.E
r8
,1
,$
3O

ot.=
II

!
r Fire
lr
a

il

Entrance Route

,
t
I
t

Show Car Parking Only

CHURCH PARKING LOT ffir

nr

CN:to
€
o
gt

!
gt

-f,(o
o
f

()
c
:Eo
'u

7x
zo
o{

I

U'

c
=o
I
oc
o

r

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I

t
t

-\
\

I
Fo
(5
z
=E
I

otr3
o

86
=PEE(/)(s

(L

(t
its
Et
G'

E

$
E)c
=Go
o:o
=o,c
U'
d
E
o
.troE
=

Show Car Entrance
to the Lot

Show Gar
Parking Only

North

Christian Life Center
August 27,2023

west BUilding East

South

.- Foot traffic.-

D{
=o

LL
()

(u

F

ffi wlt
BBQArea

.- rr a

'l''---a, -
!

Etr ] Shuttle Route - -s{---e+----------
tHt tHt rtrJ tHtL+J L+! L+-j l+:-l

I fureffi#
ALL Road Closed for incoming traffic will be posted @ 7 AM at Bethel

Except for Show Vehicles ENTRANCE POINT AT BETHEL AND
LINCOLN, they will be allowed to pass through

Road closure barriers displayed on this layout are not
exact. Please see RCE Traffic control Plan on Enclosure 7

School

FIXAUTO

Music &
Award

Ceremony

Shuttle Traffic Stops
12:00 and is

South /w Page 283 of 318



Mitchell

E

CLC Main Entrance

CABE FUN

rcAD

EECTRISL
PBOTrcION

@NTFUCTPN APPrcVED AECFTCAL SPIOER
rcESARE PFOVIOED BYANMS PAFNS.
HEAVY DWELECNOICff IS As

PROVIDED BYANM'S PABM.

and membran€ struclurea shall hat € a pgrmanently atfixed label

Ma6hal Registgr€d Ramo Rotardant sesl or a CPA[84 certitlcatg.
from lh6 renial ag€ncl, but you may ne€d to rsquEst h)

lerg€ tenl 6hown on thls drawlng havo a CPAI-84 cer$ticalo that was
last yegt, bul wfll be avallabl€ trom th€ rental agsncy'Anm's

Parry BenraF" r

NFPATOI, a CA

E HEHH

11WOV

CELE AUN

2A 10 BC (slb)
Fire Exinguisher

EECmtC[

PERWEMOWSIOE
BFEAM PANEL

rfI

*_l fi

CRUISIN'SUNDAY
COMMUNITY EVENT

BASIC LAYOUT

I

Street Entrance Way

C\l
o
5o
-9
C)
c,
ut

-go

o
oo
o

Eo

=otr
o

F
n'offii

r:to
9.

(D

I MsMmtu€aF- I
I tuh.Nhr *il b -d ITF
Eo

ffiw oo

o

g

3

r
I

2't

e

3-

e'o'-

G

NOTE: COIIPANIESNENDOBS HAVE NOT SE FINALIZED YET FOF THE EVENT.
ALL CANOPIES ARE LOCATED ON CHURCH PROPERTY.

TENTS ARE OPEN ON ALL FOUR SIDES UNLESS OTHERWSE INDICATED.

18 - 6'Tables Costco (white)

48 - Flented folding chairs (4 chairs per table)

6'

CHECKEBGUABD ffiCABE
PBOTrcTOBS rcB RtrIC &

PABKIre LOT SAFflY

STAGE TENT FOR LIVE
MUSIC & AWARD CEREMONY

(40o so Fr. AREA)

reffi AAE OPil ONA[ rcUB SIOES

SANDBAG 3

Canopies

All Canopies are 10'X10'

8'Wooden Tables = 40

8'TABLE 8'TABLE

CANOPY SETUP
(Front View)

manned by volunters

I
I

TYPICAL

8'TABLE

*1

6a

$uhre@
Gt6 WB@

sl,td-

8'TABLE

All 10'X 10'canopi€s
are open ended and
wired tight together.

"6P' 
Fe$fjlF

ELECNCAL
SPTDER EioxES

20,

Key

ffi venoor's canoPies

ffi
sdion

I
I MsdmsoEaFh I
I tu."tu-dib-'dl57*
Ee

s
""@

n ffiffi @
5 "## 

"*, *';
o

"rs m

T[E

North Auditorium

Bytb k sd

FIRE DPT

Courtyard
manned by

New Canopies

2-!0Y0'

=

a

t10 &9b
1 wooden

8'Tables & 2
Chairs

CANOPY

HH

!

CANOPY CANOPY

N

=132 manned by volunteers e Page 1

Page 284 of 318



1350 SQ FOODISERVING TENT. THE TENT IS OPEN ON ALL SIDES. THE WILL BE SECURED BY 55 GALLON DRUMS FILLED WITH WATER

(f)

lrJ
TE
fao
Joz
IU

3A 40 BC or
2A 10 BC (sLb)
Fire Exinguisher

6
1 10'x10
Canopy

Fellowship Room
(Open Room)

VolunEer Dinning

2- 8'Costco tables

"T3+{"
I ol

nnen Q}

6
@

3 - I'Costco White
Tables Per Row

BOTTLE
WATER ABEA

for the Prep.
Tables

Key:

22 - 8'Costco Table (white)

3 - '10'x canopies

3-5GallonWashstation

BEVEBreEH4PEBS

POP &

45',

TENT FOOD LINE ENTRANCE

FOOD LINE EXIT

E

i i
TOMATOES, ONIONS & LETTUCE 3- 8'Costco Tables

!rrencan

rF
E

30'
CHURCH FACILITY

PERMANENT
PLUG WALL

Church Access

mi
Kitchen Area

PROECTION

20 Ft

ii
ffi o

t
AREA t

i
ii
i

s0E

20 Fr

II : 
-:lR.

t.'"tcE
ICE EAGS

l';

ffi;--"-

lnlormauon:

We Serueup 2000 Hamburgers &
'1500 Hot Dogs
within 1-112 Hours md that's not
@unting the tomatoes Lettuce and
onions.
We Serueup 95 pounds ot Chips.
We go through 900 pounds of ie.
We go through 1 1 5 cases of water a
soda
No plastic Utensils are serued up.

2 10'x10
Canopy

3- 8'

i./

Tra$ Bin

t

TrGh Elin BecydE Bin

i'/i s
$

i
r

t
Tr6h en

i
i

E

n
!

g

F

@NSMUCNON APPROVED ELrcTREALSPIDER
BOXESABE PFOMDED BYANNAS PARTYS.
HEAVY DUfi ELrcTBCAL CAELE IS ISO

FROVIDED 8Y NNAS PABryS.

a
ulJ
dt
F
Ao

NOVBffiF
HffiUFG4rcTM

E

fizlc
u
@

o

IcFoU
U

I
s

t
l"***
I

i
FECEIVING

sroE
FECEIVING FrcEIVING

*
SIDE

ROAD SPIDER

SIDE

CONSTRUCTION
APPBOWD

ELECTFICAL
SPIDEB BOXES

FECEIVING
SIDE

s+
ELECTRICAL
CABLE RUN

@NSTRUfrION
APPROVED
ELrcTFICAL

SPIDER AOXES

"*-l

tt
aEcmrcft
PFOTrcION

YELLOW JrcKffS

CONSTRUCNON
APPFOVD
ELECTRICAL

io

F
c
oo
Ao

o

ROAD MAE
SLOE

t

s i
csE

FECE]VING

BUN
ELECNlcAL

s
sroE

FMO SENVIM

+

i

"u"u,","ui s
sroE

$$

WASHSTArcN
FOOD

ELECTRICAL CABLE FUN

CABLE RUNSME
PBOTECTED BY

CHrcKEB GUAFD MG
CABLF PROTECTOFS

sr0E

EECTRICAL
CABLE BUN

sfff)(ed label meeting NFPA701, a GA
ildsftd RegisFred Flalle Rctardant sel or a

kom lhe rental agency, butyou may ne6d

brgF Fnt shsm on this drawlng het e a CPAl.o4
that was submitbd last year, but wlll be

f?orn the rental agency "Anna's Pety

re$est lt)

cerfficale.

U
2

b

4

a H;
I

t

I

u

F

TowarG
&

Dinning Arearuaan sEg€
Rod Bsr Ftoab

MOBIG FRIDGE FOOD SC.. i

Tables
ri

ffiryffiPage 285 of 318



Proposed Kid's Area Setup

qr #22

The Area will need to be roped off

2A 10 BC (5Lb)

#23

Ponabb Red Room &

Washing Slalion

20'away

2A t0 BC

(f
I

#21

T

2A 1o BC (ELb)

rFt

F
Podabls Rsst Room &

Washing Station

frr

f

T

ftr.n ""n.

frr
r

#25
Trash Cans

#20

24 10 BC (6Lb)

(f
L

Entry/Exit Point

Fire Depanmenl of display

Entry/Exit Point

t

TWO WOODEN TABLES
& CHAIBS PER CANOPY

#24

#26

o

Key:

14 Wooden Tables (Rentals)
14 black folding chairs (Rentals)1. Hand Cleaner should be available at each

booth.
2. FirstAid Kit & Fire Exinguisher should placed
at the PA Booth.

SkeetBall

oo
P
o)

E

Flre Depailment
Boolh

Own Ted

Nerf Ba,l
Vendor

Q ,n,, wir be posted at each booth

ENCLOSURE 4Page 286 of 318



.onn
LllrLL
a0o-
d u,-
Zl)u<r

[-
I
a

a o---t to.
"e;

ELECTRICAL
APPROVED

PERIVANENT OUTSIDE ,?
BREAKER PANEL

11omv

CABLE RUN

t-
tog
3

!D

\

I
I
,

,,

,
I
t

,,

CONSTRUCTION
APPROVEO
ELECTRICAL

SPIOER BOXES

ELECTRICAL
PROTECTIOI.I
ROAD MATS

zoNE 1 .."

t. i\_ t_ O

Tower SFkeB

t
,ZONE 1 t

ANNOUNCEMENTS LEVEL SHOULD BE MID

STAGE TENT FOR
LIVING MUSIC &

AWARD CEREMONY
(4OO SQ FI AREA)

CHRISTIAN LIFE CENTER
CRUISIN'SUNDAY

COMMUNITY EVENT

2z

MUSIC LEVEL SHOULD BE IN LOW-MID RANGE.
MUSIC DOESN'T HAVE TO REACH THE

THE MUSIC JUST NEEDS TO REACI{
GENERALABEA lN ZONE 2.

-

,
I

----r-"""2
I

"'-t'-------
I

i-----"2
ZONE 2

at-----\

ooc
CL

I
oo
4.
o

,

(t,
o
3e
I
oon
o
=

t-:
og
f

o

----_--tI
I
I
I
i'
t

Center
Building

(Roof Top)

THE MtD RANGE. THE Muslc DoEsN,THAvEto Rencfi rne
THE Mustc JUsr NEEDS To REAoH THE GENc6n_ nnea

----------':i'i""'

MUSIC LEVEL SHOULD NOT BE IN THE HIGH-END LEVEL I

ZONE 1

CONS]RUCTIO$I APPROVED ELECTNEAL SPIDER
BOXES AFE PROVIDED BY ANNAS PARTYS.
HEAVY DUTY ELECTRICAL CABLE IS ALSO

PROVIDED BY ANNAS PARTYS.

TENTARE @EN ON ALL FOUR SIDES

CoNSTRUCIION

:"
APPROVED ELECTRICAL

SPIDER BOXES

R@f SpeakeB

"*"*"*oI

LEVEL SHOULD BE MID

Page 287 of 318



IN@@
P.O. Box 2022,PoulEbo, WA 98370-0937 FLAMIA*O03OM

(360)779-5522uor (360)779-5529
flamingoaudio.com

FAX

ut18na22 Ts rs usT \e4r5
Larry Rubio
Christian Life Center
1780 SE LincolnAve.
Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-5595 (church)
(360) 7 10-4076 (Lany cell)
cruisinsunday @ gmai l.com

Dear Larry,

Thanks for working hard to bring back Cruisin'Sunday again this year after so much uncertainty, and for working
out sound details with us and The Shy Boys to manage the volume levels better the year. This package reflects
those changes in how we set up, and the addition of the wireless monitors for the band. It also includes the wireless
link for audio coming from the sanctuary to feed into the main outdoor PA for Sunday morning services.

We're glad to offer this system in exchange for sponsorship recognition for the Mopar division.

In His service,

Brad

Exarnrue- ctr scbND
EQulgmEl\T To Gg, (ED
Af C,z,Jrs,.{' GrxfnOVl .

e6Oe-€5
s2-d3

E-t tc-o
Pz\e,

Page 288 of 318



Nfl[N@@
P.O. Box 2022, Poulsbo, WA98370-0937 FLAMIA*0O3OM

(360)779-5522uor (360)779-5528 FAX

flamingoaudio.com

Event : Christian Life Center's Cruisin' Sunday 2022

Contaet .................: Larry Rubio

Sound Reinforcement Date(s) .: 0812812022,8:00 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Sound Reinforcement Venue...: Christian Life Center, 1780 SE Lincoln Ave., Port Orchard, WA 98366

Description ....: Provide all sound reinforcement, two engineers for event. Load-in 10:00 a.m.

0812712022. load out immediately after event 0812812022.

Cost ...... : $3,246.79 ($8,495.00 less $5,521.7 5 Mopar sponsorship),
plus $273.54 Washington state sales tax at9.2Vo.

Terms. 50Vo nonrefundable deposit due on acceptance, balance due 08/2812022. A l.5Vo

monthly late charge (187o APR) will be assessed on any outstanding balance after 09i 1012022.

Other Requirements ................ :

. (1) 50A 1251250V CS6369 (California Style) 4-wire AC dedicated to the stage and sound system.

. (1) 20 amp circuit - north roof of building for overflow speaker systems. All AC service must be dedicated to the

stage and sound system. I will coordinate power with Larry Rubio.

Guarantee ..............:
A refund will be given to the promoter for any failure of the system or its operators that is within the scope of
Flamingo Audio's responsibility. The refund will be in proportion to the actual impact on the event. A "failure" is
defined as a mechanical, electronic, or system connection problem. It is the responsibility of the promoter, artist,

and Flamingo Audio to eliminate subjective failures, such as "I couldn't hear the vocals", during the soundcheck.

Proposal

Joint Hold Harmless................:
Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, fficials, employees and volunteers
harml'ess irom any and ill claims,'injuries, damages, l<jssei or suits including attorney fees, arising out of injuries
and damages caused by each party's own negligence.

I have read the above proposal, and agree to its terms (Please sign and return copy with deposit).

Signed

Authorized representative of Christian Life Center Date
Page 289 of 318



NnIN@@
P.O. Box 2022, Poulsbo, WA98370-0937 FLAMIA*0O3OM

(360)779-5522uor (360)779-5529
flamingoaudio.com

FAX

D

1 ia_llgn & Heatll A.y3aligffin 4ieit*l nilsr w{ c_xlglq llg_ $72s.00

:Ilmlleq FOH drive rack w/ DASNet n-fB l+lp.*$ 9-P-i-?,qq 150.00
I ishure Axient 9*?{-e-4 . UHF w/KSM9 heads

Main Speaker System

$72s.00
$1s0.00

$300.00i I $300.00
$rzs.

I

cs, DIs, stands, cables, hardwired IEM for band lllPlllr
f.yll : I*uF9 c9tT'p391 l l +-e_ ?II*y tTrgglllg9 $22s.00

DAS Aero 20A
I ?9- 4-" c -ry [ -t?t] se eelr]P?ej line $22s.00

p-a-$ 
An9ig l-x- 1 1 F ?,99-Q-w?tI. self_?qlpli fied 18" subwoofers $200.00: 1

Shure PSM300 wireless IEM qy9l9s} w/ distro and antenna

Flqgltqysl se FT-x: 19f 2'99Q: wplt ?:wey (*lt.tt9!119I gr9t9)
EAW NT26 1,500-w att 12' active 9Pe-?IgIt (Ip--o-t, lt 4s ) $100.00i

Snake, AC Distro, Rigging

| ;Lol tagrigl CAT6A q4akeq, cable covers DASNet cabling''''''''''':'''''' .'.'. $8s.00i

. . . . ' . . . ' . . . . . . . . . ' {' .

$80.00i 1 $400.00
$120.00

$2oo.oo
$80.00

$8s.00
$400.00

$80.00

1l
. ? :9.esie PlpsT1swq.r v. !. fl.'.x?.91.1 ltswr PAF- $"4is {eeite .1 iLotAC distribution, sierd cabli

Wireless Audio Link, Sanctuary-Stage

Shure UHFR wireless link with

Labor And Thansportation

. ;l{gsn l-"-lyp and

$2s0.00 1 $250,00

28 r.ttg*n lgt*p- erq gnsil.eerits l*h.o..t
i Round trip transportation Poulsbo,

A2
WA to Port Orchard, WA

Subtotal i
. '., . .. '. ' '. '... ., ..... i. '

'...........'..,...i.

$6s.00:
$4o.obi

'..... '.'....... "' i.

$200.00i

$1,040.00
120.00

$8,495.00

1 iL"q'- ppentershtn{.er Mgp.?r $iy:lign (9I7g 4issp.tnt) (ffi)
1 ,w.*tbltstell sjsle s.4ff lel 9.?,?7.p..Qp9?). H

Event Grand Total

CLC's Cruisin' Sunday 2022 Equipment List

aly Item Description Each Days Total

All items are subject to substitution with equivalent items at the sole discretion of Flamingo Audio

4sffia
Page 290 of 318



5

NnIN@O
P.O. Box 2022, Poulsbo, WA98370-0937 FLAMIA?rOO3OM

360)779-5522r0r (360)779-5528
flamingoaudio.com

FAX

oxtr8t2022

Larry Rubio
Christian Life Center
1780 SE Lincoln Ave.
Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-5595 (church)
(360) 710-4076 (Larry cell)
crui sinsunday @ gmai l.com

Invoice

Qty Item Description Each Total

507o nonrefundable deposit due on acceptance, balance due08128/2022. Al.5Vo
monthly late charge.(I\Vo APR) will be assessed on any outstanding balance after 09/1012022.

lnvoice No:: 1)82WgI
wl#.2_9??

verbal
I+vgiss

P. O. Numberi

1

I

1

.$u+-4ev9P.9r?l9lr:.9v
for

i..........'

iLess lvtgprt.s.pglr..s..g1thi

$qsrg.$v*srl
0_q9?)I'.gl,ol ...,.........!

Total!

Sound rentalstem w 2022 CruisinCLC
visidi onCOMPLETE P

Total

@tax 2 7oWashi salesstate

GrandEvent

i

Invoice Total

mi

Thank You ForYour Business!

Page 291 of 318



7:00 AM - 4:00 PM *
Main Traffic Route for Guest. church parking & show car Entrance.

Shuttles/Golf Carls will be ded to transfer to church. Shuttle start time: 8:00 AM

rtl I
Additional

Parking
Area

Hoover St.

---f.
II I

EvenVChurch Parxrng

I

1. Show Car parking Starts at 5:00
AM for the Early Birds.

2. There is no church servlce
parking on the church grounds.

3. All access to the church will
be blocked.

5. Lincoln Ave, Mitchell Rd, Fix
Auto & the Church Parking lot wiil
be reserved for show car parking
only.

6. Only one servlce on August 28.
Service Time 10 AM.

7. Event Parking (Guest & Church)
directlonal Signs will be Posted.

8. Access for Show Cars will
through Bethel Rd. & Lincoln Ave,
directional Signs will be Posted.

ltl
'_ ParkingArea

EvenUChurch Parking

SIGNAGE
ROAD

t- Lincoln

a a
Hoover St,

EVENT
PARKING

-_

<-
Bethel Ave.

I
@I

=.- 
Main
and

ru
ru

I ru '-l

Fzo
=IJJ
E

I itchell Ave.

I
\-l- -

Bethel Ave.

I

I
I

wm

Route for
Event and

Church Parking

16
*
.l\*l Road Barrier-Road closed for thru traffic
rrsl =\\\\\ All Traffic Barriers will be Posted from
/ \ 7:oo AM- 4:oo pM 

_
Enclosure 6

School
Dlst. Office

EPO School

Kids's Area

Show Car
Access Only

Show Car Parking starts @

5:00 AM on the church
grounds.

After 7:0O AM access is
granted to Show Cars only.

FIX AUTO

ru

gl
2l

FI

South
Kitsap Bus

Barn

ru
Christian

Life Center

(;)

?s
Pueils

ve-U?$a

Page 292 of 318



2022 Cruisin' Sunday Event Schedule

5:00 AM Show Car Parking Starts.
(lnformation only for you)

7:00 AM Road Closure Signs Posted
(lnformation only for you)

7:00 AM Registration Booth Opens/Coffee, Krispy Krem e's/Ba gels/Cru m b le Cookies
(lnformation only for you)

7:30 AM Show Car Parking still parking
(lnformation only for you)

8:00 AM Shuttle Service starts
(lnformation only for you)

From this point on Blue lettering is just Stage
Announcements and Red is Door Prizes give away.

8:00 AM Good Morning Announcement from the Stage (Welcome to 25,h Anniversary
Cruisin'Sunday Community Event..... We have Krispy Kreme's/B Bagels/
Crumble Cookies by the Registration booth for enjoyment. Thank you for
coming. (You)

8:00 AM Check in with the Registration Booth to obtain the "YellOW" carbon
copies of the "registration form" for your door prize giveaway. (Monique or
Tracy)

You will have two boxes at the stage.

One Box will be for drowing the "YgllOW registration form" from. You witl
call out the Registrotion number & the owner's Nome,

You will have onother box on stage for the prize winners, that is, after they

win a door prize put the winning "registration form" lYellOW paper) in this
box.

8:00 AM Judges meeting
(lnformation only for you)

8:20 AM Outdoor music starts (not live)
(lnformation only for you)

Door Prize GiveawaY...... First Give Thanks to some of our sponsors

€rtc

-IHts \6 Art\ ExAmfl€
ctr LASI' \EAelS
6C*6Dc)LE:

8:30 AM

QA6E I 67
a

Page 293 of 318



I
t

We would like to Give thanks to the following Sponsors for taking part in
this Community Event.

National Event Pros
Northwest Chimney Service & Stove Shop
Novus Glass Repairs & Replacement
Olive Garden
Outback Steakhouse Puyallup
Panera Bread Baking Company
Starbucks
Gig Harbor Costco
Stoner Car Care
That One Place
Corliss Painting
Let's Finish Those Quilts
Rill's Life Tribute Center
Franz Bakery
Lowes

Door Prize Giveaway (You decide 4 - prizes)

8:30 AM Vendors start setup their booths
(lnformation only for you)

8:30-900 AM Please Visit the Vendors Booth for information or request that they want
announced from the stage. Like Raffles etc...

9:00 AM Check in with the Registration Booth to obtain the "Yellow" carbon copies of
the "registration form" for your door prize giveaway. (Monique or Tracy)

9:15 AM DOOr Prize Giveawa|...... First Give Thanks to some of our Sponsors

We like to Give thanks to the following Sponsors for taking part in this
Community Event.

Grumbl Gookies
Cliffs Gycle Center
Libefi Bay Auto Genter
Pacific Eyecare of Port Orchard
Auto Zone
Swire Goca-Gola, USA
Tool Lady
Saints Car Club Port Orchard
Scott Mclendon's Hardware
Shy Boys
Mary Kay
Tractor Supply
Frito Lay
Family Pancake House
VFW Ridders Post 2669 Note.' Sponsor list continued on next page

Page 294 of 318



Flamingo Audio
Paramount Real Estate Group
Minder Meats
MONSTER ENERGY
Meguiars
My Printing Source
Le May-American's Car Museum
Lincoln Auto Repair
Krispy Kreme

Note: Announce at 10.30 at the registration booth there are starbuck
items that have been donated for the cruise-For-Food Drive. The cost
for these products have been greatly reduced and all proceeds will go
to the Food Bank. So please check them out.

Door Prize Giveaway (You decided 5 - prizes)

9:30 AM Pastor Virgil's invitation to us for Service @ 10:00 AM

9:40 AM Door Prize Giveaway......Give Thanks to some of our sponsors

we like to Give thanks to the following sponsors for taking part in this
Community Event.

Port Orchard Pub
Pancake House
Manchester Pub
Fathoms O' Fun Pageant Court
Puget Fence
Fine Arts Lito
Cosmo's Ristorante & Delicatessen
C & C Railroad
Dickey's BBQ Pit
Dick Vlist Motors, lnc
D&W Automotive
Point S Tires
Port Orchard lndependent
Premier Rentals
Puget Sound Auto Repair
Restoration & Rods
Rod Shots Automotive Art by Glen Davis
SK Towing

Door Prize Giveaway (5 Prizes)

Rrr r.<)R€; I
tAt\t- zoFz

Page 295 of 318



t

10:00 AM

10:00 AM

11:45 AM

Church Service starts no stage

announcements. Broadcast outside

Check in with the Registration Booth to obtain the "Ygllow" carbon

copies of the "registration form" for your door prize giveaway. (Monique or

Tracyf

You girls can attend the church service at this time if you

like... but please come back out 11:30 for stage

announcements

Church should be out soon... "JUSt a femindef tO evefyone that
the Food Line opens @ L2zOO."

We like to Give thanks to the following Sponsors for taking part in this

Community Event.

We like to Give thanks to the following Sponsors for taking part in this

Community Event.

Jukins DryWall
Simply lrresistible Pets!
Haselwood Auto Group
Air Masters Inc.
Western Landscaping & Tree Servivces
AllThings woodworking ... Aaron Barber
Farmers lnsurance... Trina Knoche
Roof Renewal NW
Mustang Club
Saints Car CIub
The Bethel Saloon
Kitsap Credit Union
Kitsap Klassics Car Club KitsaP
Premier Real Estate... Brittani Thornborough
Port Orchard Plumbing
Fix Auto Port Orchard Branch
GEICO LOCAL OFFICE
Griot's Garage

Page 296 of 318



12:00 AM Announcements "Kids Area" Opens @ 12:45.

Door Prize Giveawa!......Give Thanks to some of our sponsors.

We like to Give thanks to the following Sponsors for taking part in this
Community Event.

FOGLE & Juarez Family Dentistry
Dana's Heating & Gooling, lnc.
The Bonneville Team... Deborah Bonnville
US Army Recruiting Station Port Orchard
US Navy Recruiting Station Port Orchard
Westbay Auto Parts
Wileys Automotive & Collision
20120 Eyecare Centers
Sound Publishing INC

12:30 AM Door Prize GiveawaV......(2 - Prizes)

The Band should be on stage getting for their set...

12:45-3:00 Live Band

2:00 PM Band 10 - 15 minute break...Door Prize Giveaway (3- Prizes).

2:15 PM Band goes live again

3:00-4:00 Award ceremonies starts/While the Judges are getting ready.... pleaSe

announce, "Don't Forget the winners lap around the
building to line up for pictures". Explain the route to
take. Please announce this again at the end ;0)

l'll let you the know the route for them to take

"Thanks for coming and see you next year for the 26,h

Annual Event on August27,h,2023

ptrcu>srt268
?AG€ 3oF-3

Page 297 of 318



Ci1rrs Q*
&:tee-#ffi

I-IATETWggD

novus
alassffi

GiEICCt
Local Office

GARAGE

GNIOTS
!E>

RUEU$I 2t,2022
Evenl opens ql 8:00 AM to lhe community. Food line opens al Noon.

Kid Fun Areo/Live Music Enlerluinmenlslurls l2:45 PM.
Church Service stcrrts 10:00 AM

CHRISTIAN
CFNTER

AIIGIISTffiM?8

Awcd orenony slris al 3:00 PM

eaafibcatun/ ah
1780 LINCOLN AVE SE

PORT ORCHARD WA 98366

. nqdSa&d
*-1 O

AIJTO
REPAIR

E FOR FOOD DRIUE
6RlllCIl/8 lll f000 00NAIIBNS 0t N0ll PtBlSllABtt lltlns f0R fAllll"lIS ltl l']tt0 0f A HttPlllC HAN0.

SOIITH KITSAP HELPLINE COMMT'NIIT FOOD BAIVK
GO TO CRIIISINSUNDAY.COM FOR WIIAT TO BRING

I

CRUIS
SUPPOBI TIIT fOOl] DRIUT BY

a;,t; '8

"qhfr-'..@
@w

@ds,
,, PT,B

woffi'

ffi
fiilttrIgltlx
\lrtstP?!,Ycg

PORT ORCHARO
141! OlMyAvoSE'3S.!71ilS

ffi

€

ffi i#:M^ NtlD
t',,,,,,,,,,,t,,,.,.,, /, ".?fi;."#i! lhtiona(€ucxt?,oc

w

@
iilirit

STATIONRECRUIIING

.-'"-#qElE!r*-''-
folrHlrr&kr

ffiuodrDtcognghSo.dmMrtablo&

Regrlrtratlon !r free, but donatloag towards tJre event are appreclated.

REGI$TRATIO$ trs O![.SITE
OIIFHONS? Catl360-87&6696 !ION-fiII!RS 1(}00 Ar[ - 3:dl PM & DtNntn Houst

ffiw,#,ffi
iIf A\ri.r,1f

20/20 Eysore c€nleF

kr-rn
\/I8iiff.,".

Page 298 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Tony Lang

Monday, April 3, 2023 9:33 AM
Brandy Wallace

Matt Brown
RE: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday
PW Event Review - CLC Cruisin' Sunday 2023.doc

Here is Public Works approval of the Cruisin' Sunday Event. Thanks

Tong Lang
Public Works Director
2L6 Prospect St.

Port Orchard, WA 98366

lt RD

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwallace@portorchardwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17,2023 3:24 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsappu blichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Subject: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin'Sunday

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday taking place

August 27,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments by a/1,0/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360) 876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
www. po rtorcha rdwa.gov

1

Page 299 of 318



Crrv op Ponr Oncrmno
Public Works Director
z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA g8966
Voice: (S6o)8Z6-+99r r Fax: (g6o) 826-+g8o
mdorsey@ cityofportorchard.us
www. cityofpo rtorchard.us

SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION REVIEW

TO City Clerk's Office

Tony Lang- Public Works Director

April 3, 2023

FROM:

DATE

RE Special Event Application - 2023 Christian Life Center Cruisin' Su nday
ln response to the above-referenced Special Event Application dated February 22,
2023, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department approves the event application
with the following requirements:

Sanitation Control and Cleaninq: Event sponsor and/or volunteers to provide all
garbage cans for collection, cleaning, and disposal. The event sponsor and/or
volunteers will also provide the appropriate number of portable toilets.

Road Closures: Road closures of 1 ) Mitchell Road SE at BethelAvenue (2) and at SE
Beck St (a detour route via SE Beck Street. Jefferson Avenue SE and Hoover Avenue
SE to Lund Avenue SE provided), 2) Lincoln Avenue SE at BethelAvenue, the east
intersection of Mitchell Rd SE, and Hoover Avenue SE and 3) Greendale Drive SE at
Lincoln Avenue SE. Road closures are to be implemented according to the approved
Traffic Control Plan and posted by the event sponsor's traffic control company on
Sunday, August 27th, 2023 (7:00 AM to 4:00 PM.)

Event volunteers shall not abandon their designated posts unless appropriately relieved
from responsibility by another volunteer. All closed roads designated on the TCP shall
remain closed until confirmation has been received that there are no obstructions
remaining on the roads that may pose a hazard to motorists, vendors, spectators, and
participants.

Parkinq: Offsite parking for spectators, participants, and/or vendors is to be approved
by the corresponding property owners prior to the day of the event.

U:\Licenses-Permits\2O23\Speciol Events\Cruisin Sundoy\Comments\PW Event Review - CLC
Cruisin' Sundcry 2023.doc

Page 300 of 318



Ponr Oncneno Poucn DspenrMENT
SeRvrcE . HoNoR. INTEGRTTY

MIMO RANDUM

I0: Brondy Wolluce, tity (lerk

FR0M: Moll Brown, (hief of Police

SUBJETT: 2023 - 26th Annuol (ruisin' Sundoy

DAT[: April 3,2023

There are no additional safety concerns with the special event plan for the 26th Annual Cruisin'
Sunday. The police department will develop an intemal operations plan to manage public safety
the 2,000 spectators and participants anticipated to attend the event.

The following conditions need to be met before final approval:

Event organizerso traffic control staff, and involved city Departments must meet in-
person at least once during the planning process to discuss final traffic and public safety
plans.

Event organizers must provide cellular phone numbers for all lead contact persons
involved with the event and with traffic control.

a

a

Page I of 1

Page 301 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dayna Katula < Dayna.Katula@kitsappublichealth.org>
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 9:28 AM
Brandy Wallace
RE: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday

Hi Brandy,

Approve with the following conditions:
1. Food vendors will need to be located within 200 feet of a restroom. "Restroom" means a toilet with

handwashing facilities immediately adjacent to the toilet.
2. A vendor list that includes anyone serving food- including beer gardens, samples, or food given away at no

charge- must be emailed to Dayna Katula at davna.katula@kitsappublichealth.org at least 14 days before the
event.

3. The food vendors may need a Temporary Food Establishment Permit with the Kitsap Public Health District and
should apply for a permit at least 14 days before the event. lf the rootbeer float tent is sited separately from the
Food Serving Tent, which it appears to be on the maps provided, it must have a separate food permit. lf they
have any questions, they can call 360-728-2235 and ask for the Food lnspector of the Day.

Thanks!

Dayna Katula, RS I Program Manager
Food & Living Environment Program
Kitsap Public Health District
345 6u'' St., Suite 300 | Bremerton, WA 98337
(360')728-2301 Office | (360) 533-9018 Cell | (360) 728-2235 Main
Davna. Katula@kitsappublichealth.ors I kitsappublichealth.ore

x

x

tr

From : B ra ndy Wa I la ce < bwa I lace @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17,20233:24PM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<Dayna. Katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

Page 302 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Angela Garcia

Monday, April 3, 202310:27 AM
Brandy Wallace

RE: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday

Brandy,

ln case I have not commented on this one yet, the application looks good and I have met with the organizer

Thanks,

Angela Garcia CBO/CFM
Deputy Director Community Development
Building Official/Fire Code Official
City of Port Orchard
(360) 874-31_30

Please note that my email address has changed to agarcia@portorchardwa.gov . Please update your address book
accordingly.

Please make official submittals to the Permit Center at permitcenter@portorchardwa.gov to ensure maintenance of an

accurate Record.

From: Brandy Wallace <bwallace@portorchardwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March t7,2023 3:24 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; iosie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsappu blichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>
Subject: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin'Sunday

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday taking place
August 27 ,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV a/fi/2o23.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard

1

Page 303 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Hurguy, Josh <jhurguy@skfr.org >

Friday, March 24,2023 1 1:31 AM
Brandy Wallace

Goodwin, Cody
RE: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday

Good morning, Brandy,

SKFR has no concerns with this event. Any public safety concerns will be addressed in conjunction with POPD.

Thanks,

Josh

From : Bra ndy Wa llace < bwa I lace @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March' 17,2023 3:24 PM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; Prevention <Prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrellckevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <,cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>
Subject: Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin'Sunday

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday taking place

August 27,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments by  /L012023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
https://link.edeepilot.com/s/dd b07421lksvZ5ZsWxOKU KpU KKqnGwA?u=http://www.portorchardwa.eov/

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day
by calling 911.

1

Pleose consider the environment before printing this e-moil

Page 304 of 318



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
lo:
Subiect:

Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>
Friday, March 24,2023 3:37 PM

Brandy Wallace

RE: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday

Kitsap Transit has no issues with the proposed event.

Kevin Futrell, f D

Kitsap Transit, Transit Service Planner
360-478-6224 (office)

lntraoffice Ext. 1004

360-900-7095 (cell)

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwallace @portorchardwa.gov>
Sent: March 17, 2023 3:24 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the 26th Annual Cruisin' Sunday taking place

August 27,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV ahO/2O23.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360) 876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
www. porto rcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911.

Please consider the ,environment before printing this e-mail.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notify the sender via e-

mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

1

Page 305 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of March 14, 2023 
           
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  

Councilmember Chang Present  
 Councilmember Clauson Absent  

Councilmember Cucciardi Present  
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present via Zoom  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Public Works Director Lang, City Attorney Archer, Police Chief Brown, and City Clerk 
Wallace. 
 
Due to technical issues, the meeting was not streamed live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 00:21) 

 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:41) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to add to the consent 
agenda, the excusal of Councilmember Clauson for business purposes. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the 
agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Time Stamp: 01:46) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 

Page 306 of 318



Minutes of March 14, 2023 
 Page 2 of 4  

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:47) 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 85637 through 85720 including bank drafts in the amount of 

$401,252.61 and EFT’s in the amount of $180,934.04 totaling $582,186.65. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 85633 through 85636 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $156,623.10 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $230,131.37 totaling $386,754.47. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Twenty-Five Patrol Rifle Systems via PCA 

Contract No. OD-337-21 (Resolution No. 021-23) 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Kohler Generator for Upgrades to 

Eaglecrest Sewer Lift Station (Resolution No. 022-23) 
E. Adoption of a Resolution Rescinding a Fence Agreement and Requiring Removal of a Fence 

Located in City Right of Way for the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Project (Resolution No.  023-
23) 

F. Adoption of Resolution Confirming the Appointment of a Code Enforcement Officer (Resolution 
No. 024-23) 

G. New: Excusal of Councilmember Clauson for Business Purposes 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the consent 
agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
5. PRESENTATION  
 
There were no presentations. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
There were no public hearings. 

 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
A. Adoption of a Resolution Fixing the Date of a Public Hearing on a Petition to Vacate City Right 

of Way, Portion of an Alley Commonly Known as Mystery Lane and the Westerly Portion of 
Harrison Avenue (Time Stamp 03:13) 

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to adopt a resolution 
 setting a Public Hearing for April 11, 2023, at 6:30pm, on a petition from William C. and Virginia 
 Anderson and Macailla Barden to vacate a portion of unopened right-of-way, commonly known as 
 Mystery Lane and the Westerly portion of Harrison Avenue. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 025-23) 

Page 307 of 318



Minutes of March 14, 2023 
 Page 3 of 4  

 
B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Lease with Peninsula Feed for Use of Public Right of Way, 

Harrison Avenue (Time Stamp: 08:37) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to adopt a resolution, 
 approving a lease agreement with Peninsula Feed Company as presented. 
 
 Discussion was held regarding the 1-hour parking and Council noted they would like to indicate this 
 is a contemplative action, and the exhibit map which references the parking is not a binding 
 agreement. 
 
 City Attorney Archer noted this can be a friendly amendment, with the approval of the motion 
 maker and second. Approval was given. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 026-23 and Contract No. 031-23) 
 
C. Approval of the February 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes (Time Stamp 19:54) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the February 
28th meeting minutes as presented. 

  
The motion carried. Councilmember Cucciardi abstained. 
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 
A. Council Strategic Planning Date (Time Stamp 20:29)  
 
Mayor Putaansuu provided new proposed dates for the Council Retreat which was earlier postponed.  
 
After a brief discussion, Council agreed on April 14th. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp: 22:25) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported the Utilities Committee is scheduled to meet March 28th. The Festival of 
Chimes and Lights Committee is scheduled to meet March 20th. The Land Use Committee is 
scheduled to meet March 22nd. The Sewer Advisory Committee is scheduled to meet March 22nd. 
 
Councilmember Chang reported on the March 14th Transportation Committee meeting. 
 
10. REPORT OF MAYOR (Time Stamp 27:01) 

The Mayor reported on the following: 
• Update on Development Agreement with Kitsap Bank, Port Orchard Plaza, shoreline, and 

Community Events Center 

Page 308 of 318



Minutes of March 14, 2023 
 Page 4 of 4  

 
• LEED Certification process 
• Homelessness policies and procedures and short-term stay in Port Orchard 
• Drug possession and gross misdemeanors 
• Law enforcement pursuit bills 
• Abatement bill 
• Pickleball and sports court 
• Waterfront parking with Port of Bremerton 
• Read into record portions of minutes from 50, 75, and 95 years ago. 

 
11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 42:30) 
 
There were no reports from department heads. 
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS (Time Stamp 43:05) 
 
Dianna McConnaughey voiced her concerns with her water usage, utility bills, new utility program 
and asked the Council to relook at the program. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
There was no executive session. 
 
14. GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 48:52) 
 
There was no good of the order. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 309 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Work Study Session Meeting of March 21, 2023 
          
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  
Councilmember Chang Present  

 Councilmember Clauson Present 
Councilmember Cucciardi Absent  
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Police Chief M. Brown, Public Works Director Lang, HR Manager Lund, City Attorney 
Archer, City Clerk Wallace, and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: Community Development Director Bond 
 
The meeting also streamed live on YouTube. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance (Time Stamp 00:10) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

1. New Item: Approval to Accept a Special Event Application and Waive the Submittal Timeline: 
South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise (Time Stamp 00:29) 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Trenary, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the South 
Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise application be accepted and processed by staff, as presented, and to 
waive POMC 5.94.030(4) for this event. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
2.  Councilmember Salary (Time Stamp 07:16) 
 

Page 310 of 318



Minutes of March 21, 2023 
 Page 2 of 3  

 
HR Manager Lund explained Councilmembers are paid a monthly salary and the City pays other 
employees bi-weekly. Staff are required to manually edit payroll to avoid overpayment to 
Councilmembers. Staff have voiced their preference of a salary based on an annual amount. 
 
She pointed out several options discussed in the Finance Committee; using historic salary study 
models; using the City of Aberdeen’s model in which staff tracks the annual COLA increases provided 
to non-represented employees of the City. Once a council term expires, the accumulated COLA 
increases are applied to the salary for the newly elected councilmembers term; or by utilizing a Salary 
Commission made up of citizen volunteers. 
 
City Attorney Archer described the process of establishing a Salary Commission and spoke to other 
cities who use this process. She also spoke to automatic salary increase by ordinance. 
 
Discussion was held regarding each of the options, including a salary commission that only discusses 
Councilmember salaries, input from the public, yearly COLA increases, change in Council positions, 
when the salary change would be in effect, getting people involved with the City, proposed annual 
salary amounts, union agreements, and timeframes,  
 
Council Direction:  Bring forward an ordinance for adoption which has a $13,000 starting annual pay 
with COLA increases tied to the Tacoma/Seattle/Bellevue CPI-U index with a minimum of zero 
percent and maximum of 4 percent.  
 
3. Report on Forthcoming Enforcement Code Amendments (Time Stamp 41:45) 
 
City Attorney Archer reported that she, and the code enforcement team, have been working on a 
cleanup effort to harmonize existing provisions of the municipal code related to enforcement 
penalties and appeals. The City’s appeal structure and active enforcement are varied throughout the 
code. 
 
She explained the proposed ordinances will tie together all the enforcement code issues, with very 
limited exemptions, back to the code enforcement officer as an option and will allow the code 
enforcement officer to issue civil violations in lieu of infractions. 
 
Further discussion was held regarding changes in laws, gaining compliance, remedies, and penalties, 
appeals through the hearing examiner, removing City Council as an appellant body, and appeal and 
hearing examiner fees. 
 
Council Direction: Council asked staff to investigate an appeal sliding fee scale depending on the fine. 
 
4. Updated Procedures for Response to Unauthorized Trespassing /Camping on Public Property 

(Time Stamp 56:40) 
 
City Attorney Archer spoke to the use of public property, noting we have been implementing the 
procedure set out in the document. One of these is the cleanup of abandoned campsites and slight 

Page 311 of 318



Minutes of March 21, 2023 
 Page 3 of 3  

 
modifications have been made in response to their findings of implementation. Another area in the 
policy that is being revisited has to do with occupied campsites. 
 
She also discussed a recent decision out of the 9th circuit referred to as the Grants Pass Decision. The 
courts had decided we must have shelter available within the city/jurisdiction. Another takeaway 
from this decision is the act of sleeping, which is constitutionally protected unless there is alternative 
real estate shelter, includes prohibitions against the use of bedding. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding unhoused individuals who do not accept offered services, 
possible short-term shelter at the Vista Hotel and requirements of staying at the Hotel, standards 
and operations for shelters and tiny homes, dedicated camp space and shelters, safety concerns, 
staffing, sanitation, monetary penalties, working with the county HEART Coordinator, storage of an 
unhoused individual belongings if needed, and grants. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
5. NEW: Mayor’s Report (Time Stamp 1:37:50) 

 
The Mayor reported on the following: 

• Poulsbo Legislative Dinner and possibly hosting at the City of Port Orchard 
• In accordance with Ordinance 008-20 “Delegating Authority to the Mayor for Creating and 

Modification of Job Descriptions,” he reported his approval of the revised job descriptions for 
Civil Engineer II, Building Inspector, Project Inspector, Procurement Specialist, and Permit 
Clerk. 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:40:19) 
 
Councilmember Clauson spoke to the upcoming Energy Summit event. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported on the Ruby Creek Park & Ride open house held earlier in the evening. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
          
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk   Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 312 of 318



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of March 28, 2023 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present 
Councilmember Chang Present 
Councilmember Clauson Present 
Councilmember Cucciardi Present 
Councilmember Diener Absent 
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present 
Mayor Putaansuu Absent 

Staff present: Public Works Director Lang, Community Development Director Bond, HR Manager 
Lund, City Attorney Archer, and City Clerk Wallace. 

The meeting was streamed live on YouTube. 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 00:31)

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:59)

MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to add to the consent 
agenda the excusal of Councilmember Diener due to personal reasons. 

The motion carried. 

MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Clauson, to approve the 
agenda as amended. 

The motion carried. 

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Time Stamp: 02:03)

There were no citizen comments. 

Page 313 of 318



Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 Page 2 of 6  

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:40) 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 85729 through 85766 including bank drafts in the amount of 

$140,872.62 and EFT’s in the amount of $612,781.70 totaling $753,654.32. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 85721 through 85728 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $232,261.66 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $226,767.96 totaling $459,029.62. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Valve Maintenance Trailer for the 

Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund 500 (Resolution No. 009-23) 
D. Excusal of Councilmember Diener Due to Personal Reasons 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the 
consent agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
5. PRESENTATION (Time Stamp 03:06) 
 
A. Fathoms O’ Fun 2023 Royalty Court Introduction 
 
Fathoms O’ Fun Royalty Director Helene Jensen introduced the 2023 Royalty Court and Sharron King 
spoke to upcoming events. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
There were no public hearings. 

 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 9.60, Pertaining to 

Camping on Public Property and Associated Procedures (Time Stamp 14:07) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt an 
 Ordinance amending  POMC Chapter 9.60 and acknowledging procedures to implement these 
 amendments and existing regulations pertaining to unlawful conduct on public property. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Ordinance No. 004-23) 
 
B. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting Sanitary Sewer Project #6-5C, the North Sidney Station, 

Documenting Certified Constructions Costs, and Establishing the Maximum General Facility 
Fee Credits Granted Pursuant to Contract C063-21 (Time Stamp: 21:39) 

 

Page 314 of 318



Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 Page 3 of 6  

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to adopt a 
 resolution, accepting  the dedication of a North Sidney Lift Station know as CIP #Project 6-5C, and 
 authorizing the Mayor to execute related documents.    

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 027-23) 
 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting Transportation Improvement Program Project #2.5C, 

Documenting Certified Constructions Costs, and Establishing the Maximum Transportation 
Impact Fee Credits Pursuant to Contract C076-21, and Accepting a Deed for right of Way (Time 
Stamp 25:55) 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Chang, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt a resolution, 
accepting the dedication of a portion of the Sidney Road Widening Project, TIP Project 2.05, and 
authorizing the Mayor to execute related documents.  

  
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 028-23) 
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting Hiring Personnel Policies Related to the City’s Practices 

(Time Stamp 30:00) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt a 
 resolution, amending  personnel policies related to promotions, demotions, employee transfers, 
 position reclassifications, pay range adjustments and temporary assignments as presented. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 029-23) 
 
E. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with KR Homes, LLC for the Sroufe Water Main 

Replacement Project (Time Stamp 33:59) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Clauson, to adopt a 
 resolution, Resolution No. 004-23, thereby approving Contract No. C125-22 with KR Homes, LLC 
 for the Sroufe Water Main Replacement Project in the amount of $317,542.68.  

 
The motion carried.  
 
F. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Payment of Reestablishment and Relocation Benefits 

for Venture Charters, Inc., for the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Project (Time Stamp 40:16) 
 

Page 315 of 318



Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 Page 4 of 6  

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to adopt a resolution, 
 authorizing the payment of $2,670.50 for eligible relocation benefits and up to $50,000 for 
 eligible reestablishment benefits for Venture Charters, LLC. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 030-23) 
 
G. New National Opioids Settlements (Teva, Allergen, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart) Regarding 

In Re:National Prescription Opiate Litigation, Case No. 1:17-MD-2804, United States District 
Court (Time Stamp 52:25) 

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Clauson, to authorize the 
 Mayor to Execute the Participation Forms and Allocation Agreement for settlement of claims with 
 Teva, Allergan, CVS. Walgreens and Walmart in the National Prescription Opioid Litigation, and to 
 ratify all actions taken prior to this motion consistent with this authorization.  
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 At 7:28 p.m., Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary recessed the meeting for a 10-minute executive session 
 pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss active litigation the City is currently engaged in. City 
 Attorney Archer was invited to attend, and City Attorney Archer noted action will follow. 
 
 At 7:38 p.m., Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary reconvened the meeting back into session. 
  

The motion carried.  
 
H. Approval to Accept a Special Event Application and Approval of Road Closure for a Special 

Event: The Unforgotten - Run to Tahoma (Time Stamp 59:33) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the 
 Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma application, an event being held on May 27, 2023, to be accepted and 
 processed by staff waiving POMC 5.94.030(4) requirement and to approve the road closure upon all 
 safety and traffic controls are in place. Additionally, this is to be approved with the approval of the 
 police chief and public works director. 
 
 Councilmembers voiced their concerns with the application being brought before Council for 
 approval before all the requirements have been met. 
 
 Councilmembers Clauson and Lucarelli withdrew their motion. 
 
 NEW MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to authorize 
 the acceptance of the application and waive the time limit. 

 

Page 316 of 318



Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 Page 5 of 6  

 
The motion carried.  
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 
A. 2022 Annual Impact Fee Report (Time Stamp 1:12:21)  
 
Community Development Director Bond explained our municipal code requires an annual report on 
impact fee collection and reported on park and transportation impact fees. The City is waiting on the 
school to provide the report on school impact fees. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp: 1:16:00) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary reported the Economic Development and Tourism Committee is scheduled 
to meet April 17th. The Finance Committee is scheduled to meet April 18th. The Transportation 
Committee is scheduled to meet April 25th. The Festival of Chimes and Lights Committee is scheduled 
to meet April 17th. The Land Use Committee is scheduled to meet March 29th. The Council Retreat is 
April 14th. 
 
Councilmember Lucarelli reported on the March 28th Utilities Committee meeting. The next meeting 
is scheduled for June 13th. 
 
10. REPORT OF MAYOR (Time Stamp 1:18:32) 
 
There was no report of the Mayor. 

 
11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 1:18:47) 
 
Public Works Director Lang reported on water quality reports, spring clean-up, and water main 
flushing. 
 
HR Manager Lund reported on the Inclusion Commission.  
 
City Attorney Archer reported on the pursuit legislation and the middle housing engrossed second 
substitute house bill.  
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS (Time Stamp 1:22:04) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Held earlier. 
 

Page 317 of 318



Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 Page 6 of 6  

 
14. GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:22:23) 
 
Councilmember Clauson reported on the upcoming Energy Summit. 
 
In response to Councilmember Rosapepe, Councilmember Clauson said Kitsap Transit is not affected 
by new legislation to have ferries built outside of Washington State. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Page 318 of 318


	4C 01 SR POMC 10.12 Parking Updates April 2023(10651579.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4C 02 ORDINANCE-April 2023_UPDATES POMC 10.12 - ORDINANCE_Clean(10651575.1)
	4C 03 Attachment-April 2023_Municipal Code Modifications - ORDINANCE_Redline(10651617.1)
	4D 01 STAFF REPORT Stormwater Capacity Grant amendment FY2022-2023(10651571.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4D 02 ORDINANCE-Stormwater Capacity Grant Amend No1(10651570.1)
	4D 03 Amend_1-WAECOL_Amendment_Report 21-23-signed
	4D 04 C103-22-WQSWCAP-2123-PoOrPW-00135 Capcity Grant-EXECUTED
	4E 01 2023 - Staff Report - Moving Radar Systems
	Agenda Staff Report

	4E 02 2023 - Resolution - Moving Radar Systems
	4E 03 Quote Form_13134374-Copy
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13

	4E 04 Interlocal-GPO Agreement Checklist - Mobile Radar Systems
	4F 01 2023 - Staff Report - CodePros Amendment(10648075.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4F 02 Amendment #2 to CodePros LLC(10648029.1)
	4F 03 074-21 - CodePros - Contract Amendment 1
	4F 04 074-21 - CodePros - Contract (1)
	4G 01 SR Surplus City Equipment
	Agenda Staff Report

	4G 02 Res Declaring Surplus
	4G List of Surplus Items
	A-_Governmental
	IT_Items
	B_-_Enterprise

	6A 01 SR PH Mystery Lane Street Vacation
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	6A 02 PH 025-23 Mystery Lane Vacation Hearing
	PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED
	PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

	6A 03 Kitsap Law Group - Street Vacation
	6A 04 Kitsap Law Group Letter
	8A 01 SR Mystery Lane Street Vacation
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8A 02 Ord Mystery Lane Street vacation
	8A 03 Kitsap Law Group - Street Vacation
	8A 04 Kitsap Law Group Letter
	8A 05 Street Vacation Petitions
	8B 01 4Leaf Inc Staff Report
	Agenda Staff Report

	8B 02 4LEAF signed Contract by Gene_Port Orchard
	8B 03 Fee schedule
	8C 01 Staff Report-Williams Additional Storage Payment 4.6.2023(10651658.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	8C 02 RES - Williams Relocation for Additional Storage 4.6.2023(10651647.1)
	8C 03 Ex. A - Tierra Memo 4.6.23_Redacted
	8C 04 Tierra Memo 4.4.22
	8D 01 SR Vista Motel Agreement(10651719.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	8D 02 RES - Vista Motel Agreement(10651717.1)
	8D 03 Vista Motel-Signed Draft Version
	8E 01 SR Road Closure-Saints The Cruz
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8E 02 The Cruz Special Event Applicaiton
	8E 03 Cruz Special Event Comments
	8F 01 SR Road Closure-Cruisin Sunday
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8F 02 Cruisin Sunday Special Event Application
	8F 03 Cruisin Sunday Comments
	8G 20230314 minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:41)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:47)
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	8H 20230321 minutes
	8I 20230328 minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:59)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:40)
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	ADP56EF.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Tony Lang
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:

	ADP7BC7.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Tony Lang
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Button1: 


